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STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Chairman: Mr. Alan Macnaughton,

Vice-Chairman: Mr. Murray Smith (Winnipeg North)

and Messrs.

Beech, Dupuis,
Bell (Carleton), Fraser,
Benidickson, Grenier,
Bissonnette, Hales,
Bourget, Hanbidge,
Brassard (Chicoutimi), Hellyer,
Broome, Keays,
Bruchési, Lahaye,
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Deschatelets, Morton,
Dorion, Murphy,
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Pratt,

Regier,
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Rouleau,

Smith (Calgary South),
Smith (Simcoe North),
Spencer,

Stefanson,

Stewart,

Tucker,

Valade, s
Villeneuve,

Winch,

Woolliams,
Wratten—50.

E. W. Innes,

Clerk of the Committee

Note: The name of Mr. Nugent replaced that of Mr. Smith (Calgary South)
following the March 3 meeting and prior to the March 23 meeting.
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Bell (Carleton),
Benidickson,
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Bourget,
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Bruchési,
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Campeau,
Chown,
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Denis,
Deschatele‘ts,
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House oFr COMMONS,

TueEsDAY, February 16, 1960.
Resolved.—That the following Members do compose the Standing Committee

Messrs.
Dupuis,
Fraser,
Grenier,
Hales,
Hanbidge,
Hellyer,
Keays,
Lahaye,
Macdonald (Kings),
Macdonnell,
Macnaughton,
McGee,
McGrath,
McGregor,
Morissette,
Morton,
Murphy,

(Quorum 15)

Pickersgill,

Pratt,

Regier,

Robichaud,

Rouleau, :

Smith (Calgary South),
Smith (Simcoe North),
Smith (Winnipeg North),
Spencer,

Stefanson,

Stewart,

Tucker,

Valade,

Villeneuve,

Winch,

Woolliams,
Wratten—50.

. Ordered.—That the said Committee be empowered to examine and inquire
into all such matters and things as may be referred to it by the House, and to
report from time to time its observations and opinions thereon, with power to
send for persons, papers and records.

THURSDAY, March 3, 1960.

Ordered.—That the Standing Committee on Public Accounts be empowered
to print such papers and evidence as may be ordered by the Committee, and that
Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation thereto; that its quorum be reduced

from 15 to
relation thereto.

10 members, and that Standing Order 65(1) (e) be suspended in

TuEsDAY, March 15, 1960.

rh Ordered.—That the Report of the Canada Council for the fiscal year ended
arch 31, 1959, laid before the House on July 10, 1959, be referred to the

Standing Co

mmi.ttee on Public Accounts in order to provide for a review thereof
Pursuant to section 23 of the Canadian Council Act.

b Ordgred.—That the Public Accounts, volume I and II, and the Report of
te Auditor General for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1959, and the financial
Statements of the Canada Council and the Report of the Auditor General thereon

for the fiscal

year ended March 31, 1959, be referred to the said Committee,

MonDAY, March 21, 1960.

& .Ordered.—That the name of Mr. Nugent be substituted for that of Mr.
mith (Calgary South) on the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

Attest.
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L. J. RAYMOND,

Clerk of the House.



REPORT TO THE HOUSE

THURSDAY, March 3, 1960.

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts has the honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee recommends:

1. That it be empowered to print such papers and evidence as may be
ordered by the Committee and that Standing Order 66 be suspended in relation
thereto;

2. That its quorum be reduced from 15 to 10 members and that Standing
Order 65(1) (e) be suspended in relation thereto.

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN MacNAUGHTON,
Chairman.



MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, March 3, 1960.
(1)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met, for organization pur-
DPoses, at 11.30 a.m. this day.

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Benidickson, Bisson-
nette, Bourget, Brassard, (Chicoutimi), Broome, Bruchesi, Campbell (Lambton-
Kent), Campeau, Deschatelets, Drysdale, Hales, Keays, Lahaye, Macdonald
(Kings), Macdonnell (Greenwood), Macnaughton, McGrath, MecGregor,
Morissette, Morton, Pratt, Robichaud, Stefanson, Stewart, Tucker, Valade,
Winch and Wratten.—(30).

Mr. Bell (Carleton) moved, seconded by Mr. McGrath,

That Mr. Alan Macnaughton take the Chair of this Committee as Chairman.

Mr. Bell’s motion was resolved in the affirmative, wunanimously. Mr.
Macnaughton, having been duly elected Chairman, took the Chair and thanked
the Committee for the honour conferred on him for the third successive year.

The Clerk of the Committee read the Order of Reference.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Morton,

Resolved,—That permission be sought to print such papers and evidence as
may be ordered by the Committee.

Mr. Morton moved, seconded by Mr. Broome,

That a recommendation be made to the House to reduce the quorum
from 15 to 10 members. Carried on division.

On motion of Mr. Hales, seconded by Mr. Broome,

Resolved,—That a subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure, comprised of
the Chairman and 6 Members to be named by him, be appointed.

The following suggestions were placed before the Committee and then

referred to the subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure:

(1) That Mr. Watson Sellar, the former Auditor General, be invited to
appear before this Committee.

(2) That the Committee follow up the recommendations made by the
Standing Committee on Public Accounts during the 1959 session to
ascertain what action has been taken by the departments concerned to
implement those recommendations.

At 11.50 a.m. Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

WEDNESDAY, March 23, 1960.
(2)

The_Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9.30 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton presided.

.Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Bissonnette, Brassard
(Chicoutimi), Bruchesi, Campbell (Lambton-Kent), Drysdale, Hales, Keays,
Macdonald (Kings), Macdonnell (Greenwood), Macnaughton, McGee, McGrath,
MQGregOT, Morissette, Morton, Pickersgill, Pratt, Regier, Robichaud, Smith
(Simcoe North), Smith (Winnipeg North), Spencer, Stefanson, Stewart,
Tucker, Villeneuve, Winch, Woolliams, Wratten. (31).
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In attendance: From the office of the Auditor General: Mr. A. Maxwell
Henderson, Auditor General; Mr. Ian Stevenson, Assistant Auditor General;
Mr. B. A. Millar and Mr. G. R. Long, Supervisors; and Mr. E. Cook.

On motion of Mr. Bell (Carleton), seconded by Mr. McGee,

Resolved,—That Mr. Murray Smith be appointed Vice-Chairman of this
Committee. :

On motion of Mr. McGee, seconded by Mr. Drysdale,

Resolved,—That pursuant to the Order of Reference of March 3, 1960, the
Committee print 750 copies in English and 250 copies in French of its Minutes
of Proceedings and Evidence.

The Chairman referred to certain correspondence between himself and
Mr. Watson Sellar, the former Auditor General. Mr. Sellar’s letter was read
into the record.

Mr. Macnaughton announced that the following persons have been chosen
to act with him on the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure: Messrs.
Murray Smith, Morissette, Morton, Pickersgill, Winch and Woolliams.

The following recommendations were submitted by the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure as its First Report:

1. That the Committee meet on Wednesday mornings at 9.30 o’clock,
preferably in Room 112 N.

2. That there be a “follow-up” on the action by the wvarious depart-
ments respecting the Committee’s recommendations in previous years.

3. That the Committee examine the Annual Report of the Canada Council
and the Auditors’ Report thereon on March 30, 1960.

On motion of Mr. Winch, seconded by Mr. Bell (Carleton),

Resolved,—That the First Report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Pro-
cedure, presented this day, be now concurred in.

Mr. A. Maxwell Henderson, the recently appointed Auditor General, was
introduced to the Committee by Mr. Macnaughton, Mr. Henderson in turn
thanked the Chairman and addressed the Committee. During the course of
his remarks he introduced his colleagues.

The Auditor General submitted a memorandum respecting “suggestions
and recommendations made by the 1958 and 1959 Committees in their Reports
to the House of Commons, together with curernt comments by the Auditor
General regarding action taken by the departments concerned”.

On motion of Mr. Pickersgill, seconded by Mr. Spencer,

Resolved,—That the above-mentioned memorandum, which is an im-
portant submission to this Committee, be printed as Appendix “A” to this day’s
Evidence.

The Committee studied the Auditor General’s Memorandum, by para-
graphs. The witness and Mr. Stevenson commented on various points and were
questioned thereon.

Further information was requested, for a future meeting, respecting
architects fees, a new scale of charges for second class mail, and the possibility
of removing some of the anomalies mentioned in Section 17 of the Auditor
General’s Memorandum. ’

Agreed,—That the Committee resume consideration of the abovementioned
Memorandum on Wednesday, March 30.

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.



EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, March 23, 1960.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum.

I wish to welcome you here to our first active meeting of this committee.
It is true we had to change our room for today’s meeting. We hope to be back
in our old room next week. However, there are so many committees meeting
it is difficult.

We have a certain amount of unfinished business. The first is the election
of a Vice-Chairman.

Mr. Benn (Carleton): I would like to nominate the hon. member for
Winnipeg North, Murray Smith, as Vice-Chairman of the committee.

Mr. McGEeE: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other nominations?

Mr. MorToN: I move that nominations cease.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Smith is the Vice-Chairman of the committee.

The next item on our agenda is a motion in' respect of the printing of
certain numbers of copies of the evidence and proceedings in English and
French. We have that authority by virtue of the first report presented to the
Eouse. May I suggest that someone move and someone second a motion that

pursuant to its order of reference dated March 3, 1960, the committee print
750 copies in English and 250 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence”.

Moved by Mr. McGee, seconded by Mr. Drysdale.

Motion agreed to.

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting Mr. Winch suggested Mr. Watson
St_allar be invited to attend our meetings on account of his great experience and
hl_s previous help to this committee. In accordance with that wish I took it up
with the steering committee and wrote Mr. Watson Sellar. I now have received
a reply from Mr. Sellar which I would ask the clerk to read.

(Letter read by the committee clerk)

. The CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that this letter be included
In the evidence?

Agreed.

28 Monkland Avenue,

Ottawa,

20th March 1960.
Dear Mr. Macnaughton,

With all sincerity I appreciate the compliment. extended to me by
the invitation, at the instance of Mr. Winch, to attend meetings of the
Public Accounts Committee—it is one without precedent. It may be
that I have accumulated some knowledge and experience in connection
with the accounts of Canada that may be of use to your committee this
year, but might I venture to suggest that the invitation in your letter
of the 16th be regarded as “stand-by”.

7
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In the late fall of 1958 it was agreed with the Minister of Finance
that I would not take any retiring leave, the reasoning being that I
should be available to explain and justify the audit report shortly to
be tabled over my name.

It followed that, while I took an active part in the interim audits
of 1958-59 accounts, I did not participate in the year-end examinations
—the more important—nor did I share in the preparation of the audit
report now before your committee. In the circumstances, while I hope
it would never happen, I could be an irresponsible, and perhaps, mis-
chievous non-official witness.

I can never forget that over the years the Public Accounts Com-
mittee has invariably been considerate towards me, so what I suggest is
that I do not accept your invitation but regard myself as on call at any
time by the subcommittee on agenda and procedure, should it be thought
that, by reason of my past experience, I can be of use in dealing with
some particular problem.

Yours sincerely,
Watson Sellar.

Mr. Alan Macnaughton, M.P.,

Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee,
House of Commons,

Ottawa.

The CHAIRMAN: It is my pleasure to report on the steering committee. In
accordance with the resolution of this committee passed at our last meeting on
March 16, the steering committee has been appointed consisting of Messrs.
Smith, Winnipeg North, Morissette, Morton, Woolliams, Winch, Pickersgill, and
myself.

With your permission I would like to give a verbal report. The steering
committee met last week and decided in principal we should meet each
Wednesday for the remaining weeks of the session from 9:30 until 11 o’clock,
preferably in room 112N if we can secure it.

It was also decided we should have an immediate follow-up on the various
- suggestions and recommendations which this committee has made in its last
two reports to the House of Commons, that is the report of 1958 and the report
of 1959. I will have more to say about that in a minute.

The steering committee also suggests that at the next meeting, or as soon
as possible, we proceed to the examination of the Canada Council report and
the auditor’s report thereon. That presumably would be at the next meeting
on Wednesday, March 30.

Those are the suggestions of the steering committee. May I have approval
in principal, if you agree.

Mr. WincH: I so move.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): I second the motion.

Agreed.

The CrHARMAN: It is now my great pleasure and privilege to introduce
to you our new Auditor General. The appointment of Andrew Maxwell Hen-
derson, O.B.E., C.A., as Auditor General of Canada was announced in Ottawa
on February 1, by Prime Minister Diefenbaker.

On March 1, this month, Mr. Henderson assumed his new position, re-
placing Watson Sellar, C.M.G., C.A., who retired last August.

Born in England, Mr. Henderson came to Canada at an early age and
worked with Crowell-Balcom and Company, Halifax, from 1924-29 when he
obtained his certificate qualifying him as a chartered accountant.
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He then joined Price, Waterhouse and Company in Toronto for five years,
before becoming controller of Hiram Walker, Gooderham-Worts Limited in
Walkerville, Ontario.

From 1946-56 he was secretary treasurer of Distillers Corporation, Sea-
grams Limited, Montreal, and director of its Canadian and foreign subsidiaries,
except those in the United States.

Mr. Henderson is no stranger to government. Until his recent appoint-
ment he was controller and chief financial officer of the Canadian Broad-
casting Corporation, the accounts of which he will now be required to examine
with a critical eye. :

During World War II he was on loan to the federal government as chief
of the manufacturing section on the foreign exchange control board, and also
as assistant to the chairman and comptroller of the wartime prices and trade
board.

He was president of the association of Canadian distillers from 1949 to
1954 and during the 1950-56 period was a member of the council and chairman
of the foreign trade committee of the Canadian chamber of commerce. He was
chairman of the chamber’s executive council in 1957.

Mr. Henderson is a member of the institutes of chartered accountants of
Nova Scotia, Ontario and Quebec; a member of the Quebec institute; and chair-
man of the institute’s public relations committee.

As you know, the Auditor General cannot be removed by this government
Or any subsequent one. This can only be done by passage of a joint address by
both houses of parliament.

Sometimes referred to as “the watchdog of the treasury”, the Auditor
General is parliament’s scrutineer on how the government spends the money
barliament has voted.

Perhaps Mr. Henderson would care to say a few words to the members
of the committee.

Gentlemen, Mr. Henderson.

Mr. A. M. HENDERSON (Auditor General of Canada): Thank you very
much Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I appreciate the generous introduction you
have given me, Mr. Chairman, on this my first appearance before the standing
Committee on publi¢ accounts. As you have stated, I took office only on March 1
and consequently I am not as familiar as I would like to be with the details
you will be examining and the information you will want. However, I have
sought to brief myself as adequately as time would permit, and I am indebted
to Mr. Ian Stevenson, the assistant Auditor General, for the help and assistance
he has given me in this effort.

At the outset, Mr. Chairman, may I pay a personal tribute to Mr. Watson
Sellar, C.M.G., C.A., my predecessor in office, who, as you know, retired last
August after occupying the position of Auditor General for almost twenty years.

It was my privilege to meet Mr. Sellar first during the difficult war years
Wl}en I served as assistant to the chairman and comptroller of the wartime
Prices and trade board. He was of great assistance in helping us to solve the
nitial problems we had to face in setting up offices quickly and in forming
C/rown corporations for wartime purposes.

Mr. Sellar set an example during his many years in office which I shall

€ proud to try to equal. He earned a reputation of reporting fearlessly when
he found irregular transactions while at the same time being scrupulously fair
to the responsible departmental administrative officers. During his tenure of
Ofﬁce tremendous changes took place, not only in the volume of public expen-
itures but in their pattern, with each change adding to his responsibilities.
1 the short time I have had to study the background of the audit office, I have
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been impressed by the way in which the office has been organized and also by
the value of the Audit Office Guide. This manual for the guidance of the audit
staff was revised by Mr. Sellar shortly before he retired, and contains instruc-
tions to the staff in the performance of their audit duties which are well
calculated to ensure the effectiveness of their work. I feel, Mr. Chairman, that
you and your associates on the committee would like to know this because it
is rendering my task at the present time so much easier.

During the period from August 5 to February 29, Mr. Ian Stevenson was
acting Auditor General, and the Auditor General’s report you will be con-
sidering this year bears his signature. As you are aware, Mr. Chairman, I have
discussed this report with Mr. Stevenson and we come before you prepared
to discuss the comments made therein and to endeavour to give you any
additional information that may be required. Where we do not have informa-
tion readily available, I shall be glad to arrange to obtain it and report at a
later meeting of the committee.

In paragraph 5 of the report, appreciation is expressed for the coopera-
tion extended to audit officers by treasury and departmental officers, and I
would like to add my personal appreciation of this, for no audit can be
effectively performed if such cooperation is lacking.

The relatively small number of what might be termed critical observa-
tions in the report—no more numerous than in the preceding year—bears
testimony, I feel, to the conscientious manner in which treasury and depart-
mental officers have continued to satisfy themselves as to the regularity and
propriety of the multitudinous financial transactions of the government.

Mr. Stevenson has informed me that the practice of previous years was
followed of giving departments concerned the opportunity of reviewing and
commenting upon drafts of proposed report observations. I am glad of this
because I feel that this practice gives assurance, as far as possible, that facts
have been correctly stated and observations fairly presented in the report.

As you may already be aware, the Auditor General’s office is divided into
five branches. Two of these are responsible for the audits of groups of large
spending departments, a third is responsible mainly for the audit of the defence
services, one is engaged mainly in the audit of the large revenue collecting
departments, and the remaining branch is charged with responsibility for
the audit of crown corporations. Each audit branch is headed by an audit
supervisor who, with a senior assistant, directs the work of staff divided into
several audit sections, each of which is responsible for the audit of a depart-
ment or of a group of departments or crown corporations. With your per-
mission, Mr. Chairman, I have arranged for our supervisors to be present at
some of these meetings, and today I should like to introduce two of them to
you, and perhaps they would rise: - Mr. B. A. Millar, whose principal responsi-
bility is the audit of the defence services, and Mr. G. R. Long, who is mainly
responsible for the audit of the large revenue collecting departments. :

The CuarrMaN: Will you come up and sit at the front, gentlemen, so
we can really have a good look at you.

Mr. BerLr (Carleton):Hear, Hear.

Mr. HenpersoN: It would be premature at this stage for me to comment
at any length on the functions of the Auditor General of Canada. I believe,
Mr. Chairman, that you and your associates on the committee are familiar with
the definition of his duties and responsibilities contained in the Financial
AQmiMStration Act, and you know from your discussions with Mr. Sellar in
this committee over the past two years something of the concept he had of
those c_luties and responsibilities: I have no hesitation in saying to you that I
subsc.rlbe to the views he has expressed before this committee on previous
occasions. One of these views in particular was that the observations and
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comments made by this committee in the course of its deliberations and the
suggestions and recommendations included in its reports to parliament are
calculated to have a profound influence towards containing public expendi-
ture. I need hardly stress the great importance of this to the Auditor General
in the performance of his duties.

I am conscious that the operations of the government of Canada through
its various departments, agencies and crown corporations in plain terms of
receipts and expenditures since World War II have reached unprecedented
heights. In fact, government has emerged as the biggest business in the country.

Consequently, I am entering upon my new duties fully aware of the signal
Tresponsibility resting on the Auditor General of Canada in his capacity as an
officer of parliament under legislation which enables him to take an independent
and objective view of the results of public service operations. I shall be
approaching my responsibilities always with the object of understanding and
assessing the basic or underlying reasons causing all expenditures of public
funds.

We must appreciate I think, that the public service lacks what I might
loosely call the private enterprise or profit incentive without which a private
business cannot survive. This acts as an all-powerful incentive to private
managements to increase revenues and cut costs. The public service must
develop its own incentive yardsticks in administering public funds, not only
to ensure that expenditures remain controlled, but that built-in costs, which
can so often escape the notice of the best intentioned managements, come under
constant scrutiny and revision.

The expenditure of public funds imposes a great responsibility both on the
managements administering it and those who are charged with examining the
results, like this committee and myself. Unlike private business, no portion of
these expenditures can be charged to any taxable income. It is not a “fifty cent”
or “tax” dollar we are working with: it is expenditure of the taxpayer’s whole
dollar. To my way of thinking, this presents a challenge and responsibility of
No mean proportions.

The contribution which the Auditor General of Canada can bring to this
task, in my opinion, is similar to the one brought every day by independent
auditors to the operations of private corporations. They must seek to ensure
Not only that there is adherence to the provisions of the Companies Act and
to related legislation, but, in cooperation with management, that there is a
bositive and constructive appraisal or diagnosis of the operations so that the
shareholders may be assured that they are receiving their money’s worth.
I believe that such an approach is especially appropriate in examining the
affairs of our crown corporations today. As a result of his detailed knowledge
of the operations of his client obtained in the course of his regular audit duties,
the auditor can work constructively with management in evaluating not only
the system of internal control, organization, methods and procedures and related
Matters in the corporation, but also the results achieved thereunder, particularly
In terms of their cost. Only in this way can the shareholders—in this instance
the government of Canada—be assured that maximum efficiency is being
achieved at minimum cost. '

Mr. Sellar has passed on to me a record of excellent relations with parlia-
ment, with your committee, Mr. Chairman, and with all branches of the public
Service, and so, in carrying on the job, I know that I, along with Mr. Stevenson,
our supervisors and their staffs, can count on government managements at all
levels continuing to work with us in the challenging task that lies ahead.

Thank you, very much.

The CuarMAN: Thank you, Mr. Henderson, for a very interesting state-
£ Ment of principle.
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Now that we are talking of principles, gentlemen, it seems to me that this
committee should always strive to progress towards more efficient operation.
In that respect your steering committee, at its last meeting, thought it would
be not only useful but extremely necessary that we have a follow-up on those
suggestions and recommendations that this committee has made during the
last two years’ sittings, especially in their last two reports, the report of 1958
and the report of 1959.

Acting on the suggestions of the steering committee, I wrote to Mr. Hender-
son, the Auditor General, and asked him if he could give us an up-to-date
report—and I believe it is up-to-date as of yesterday morning at 9 o’clock—on
what the various departments of government had done with respect to those
suggestions your committee has made during the last two years.

If this committee is to be effective, it seems to me that our suggestions
should be carefully read, digested, listened to, and acted upon, if they are worthy
of consideration. If we have made any mistakes, it is up to the various depart-
ments to come and tell us we have gone off the rails; and then, shall we say,
we can “arbitrate” the matter.

In any event, I have before me the official report of the Auditor General.
It is the follow-up report on the suggestions this committee has made during
the last two years, and I believe you have copies of this report before you.

How would the committee like to proceed with this report?

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, that is exactly the question I was going to ask
you—had you any proposals in mind—because I must admit I am a little bit
disturbed at finding in this report that a great many of the anomalies that
were drawn to the attention of the house—and, therefore, the departments—in
the last two reports still remain.

I was going to ask if you have any proposal as to what we should do;
as to whether we should take it up seriatim; and as to whether you would
then permit us to call the department that might be concerned, to ask them
just why they have not acted on the recommendation.

The CHAIRMAN: Any other suggestions?

Mr. PickeERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest we take these items
seriatim—deal with each one, then go on to the next one.

It may be there will not be any need to deal with some of them, but in
order to avoid reading the whole item; I think we could skip the reading of
our recommendation and have the clerk read what has happened since. If anyone
wants to make any comment on it, we can deal with that item. Then, when
we have finished with that one, we can go on to the next.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): In order that out record be complete, ought not
this report to be inserted?

Mr. PrckerscILL: I suggest the whole thing be printed as though the clerk
had read the whole of each item, but that he only start reading the pertinent
parts of it.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Agreed.

The CHalRMAN: First of all, gentlemen, I take it the committee is extremely
interested in this report and directs that it should be printed as an appendix;
or shall we take it step by step?

Mr. PrckersernL: I think probably it would be convenient to have it
included as an appendix as well, the whole thing, so that for future consultation
of the records it would be there in a single document.

The CHAmRMAN: Just in order to make sure it forms part of our present

up-to-date record will somebody move it be printed as an appendix. (See
Appendix “A”.)

Mr. PrckERSGILL: I so move.
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The CHAIRMAN: With one or two words to indicate the committee is very
pleased to receive this report and to proceed to consider it? In other words,
I suggest to you we make this a very official part of our proceedings. It is the
follow-through of our previous recommendations.

Mr. P1cKERSGILL: I so move.

Mr. SmatH (Winnipeg North): I second that.

The CHAIRMAN: I think you are the best witness, Mr. Henderson. These
are the words for which you are being made responsible.

Have the members of the committee had time to read the opening part
of this report, this memorandum? :

Mr. PIcRERSGILL: I suggest we start at paragraph 6.

The CrAIRMAN: I should just point out to members that paragraphs 1 to 3
are merely a summary of the activities of this committee in the last two years,
and it is background information.

This memorandum has been made up, first quoting the recommendation
of the committee and then current comment—is that right, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, we thought there were several ways of handling it.
One would have been to have dealt with them verbally; but there is quite a mass
of material here, and I suggested to your chairman, when he made this request
to me, it might be better to put it all down with what are virtually notes behind
each of the comments.

Some of the explanations are longer than I would have liked to see and
Probably than you would have liked to read; but we thought it better at this
time that we set it out like this. Then you would have a chance to study it,
and base your questions with a firm knowledge of the facts.

The CHAIRMAN: Did someone move and second, and was it agreed that
this report be tabled? '

Mr. PI1cKERSGILL: Moved by me and seconded by Mr. Smith.
The CHAIRMAN: Is it carried, gentlemen?
Agreed.

—See Appendix “A”.

Expenditures on construction projects in excess of anticipated amounts.

4. In its third report, 1958, the committee made reference to the
considerable extent to which expenditures incurred under the Printing
Bureau construction contracts exceeded the anticipated amounts as
detailed in the estimates—and it was indicated as the committee’s view
that the Department of Public Works should endeavour to avoid such
a situation in future.

5. Current comment by the Auditor General. Votes 329 to 340 of
1958-59, under the Department of Public Works, read:

Construction, acquisition, major repairs and improvements of,
and plans and sites for, public buildings listed in the details of the
Estimates, provided that treasury board may increase or decrease
the amount within the vote to be expended on individual listed
projects.

Mr. HENDERSON: In dealing with the first item, taking the 1958 report, that
Comes up, as the Chairman says, under item 5. Each section is headed “Current
Comment.” The first one is expenditures on construction projects in excess of
Anticipated amounts.

I take it you do not want me to read the committee’s reference—or do you?

Some cases we did not quote it verbatim, but did a sort of summary.
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Mr. WincH: I think the important thing, so far as the committee is
concerned—or, at least, as far as I am concerned—is as to whether the Auditor
General has obtained an explanation as to why, in two instances, you have work
which exceeded the anticipated cost, in one case by 74 per cent and in the
other case by 34 per cent. I think it is an explanation of these items that
would be of interest to the committee.

Mr. HENDERSON: Do you want me to read it, or comment?
Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Just comment.
CHAIRMAN: Comment.

6. A review was made of the exepnditures incurred during 1958-59
under the above noted Votes, as augmented by supplementary Votes,
with a view to ascertaining if there had been instances where expen-
ditures under construction contracts had exceeded anticipated amounts
as detailed in the estimates by significant amounts. Only two instances
were noted where this seemed to have been the case:

1. Where $300,000 had been included in the details of the estim-
ates for the testing laboratory for the Department of Public
Works on Riverside Drive, Ottawa, an amount of $523,000, or
74 per cent in excess of the anticipated amount, had been ex-
pended.

2. Where $750,000 had been included in the details of the Estim-
ates for a public building in Kingston, an amount of $1,006,000,
or 34 per cent in excess of the anticipated amount, had been
expended.

7. In the interest of greater parliamentary control, consideration
might be given to the question of whether the treasury board’s authority
to increase amounts to be expended on individual listed projects, be
limited to a specified percentage over the amount included in the details
of the estimates.

Mr. HENDERSON: It was observed, in looking through the votes, that there
were two cases where the amount in the estimates had been exceeded by
transfers between allotments to the order, in one instance, of 74 per cent, and,
in the other instance, of 34 per cent.

As I understand it—and I would like Mr. Stevenson to correct me on this,
if I am wrong—he is following the proceedings, and I must naturally refer
to him on a number of these points for more information.

As I understand it, under the present methods such excesses are possible,
unless, in order to achieve a greater parliamentary control, there is established
some percentage limit beyond which they should not go.

For example, you might say it would be reasonable to allow the excess
to go to a figure of the order of 25 or 30 per cent, or something like that;
and that beyond that point they could not go without reference back to par-
liament. Under the present system they are apparently able to go as high
as the two cases you have before you.

On the othe side of the coin, in discussing this with the supervisors, I can
appreciate there might be some extraordinary circumstance, such as building
program that has to be gone ahead with during the winter and which has to
be finished for some very important reason, in which a 25 or even 30 per cent
ceiling would be an unnecessary restriction.

Mr. Stevenson, is there anything further you would like to add to that?

‘Mr. IAN STEVENSON (Assistant Auditor General): In the review referred
to in paragraph 6 of the memorandum, notice was taken only of instances
where expenditures under construction contracts had exceeded the anticipated
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amount in the estimates by over 25 per cent. These two cases that are referred
to in paragraph 6 were cases where the difference was more than 25 per cent.

This percentage was the one we felt might be regarded as representing
a reasonable variation from the anticipated amounts.

The CHAIRMAN: Your major suggestion is in paragraph 7 though, is not it?
Mr. HenDERSON: That is correct.

Mr. WincH: Could I ask if any explanation has been obtained as to why
in that first instance it was exceeded by 74 per cent? It strikes me as a very
unusual excess over an estimate.

Mr. STEVENSON: No, we did not ask for any explanation. Actually, of
course, what was done was perfectly legal. Under the wording of the present
appropriation, treasury board has the authority to make transfers to any extent
that might be regarded as desirable, and I think it was felt that the committee
might wish to call before it representatives of the department, who would be
able to give that explanation.

Mr. WincH: From the point of view of the audit department, as long as
the matter is within the powers of the department or branch, then is it not
the responsibility of the audit department to ask them just, “How come”?

: Mr. STeEVENSON: No, I think our view has been that it is not, but that
We should draw it to your attention.

Mr. HEnpersoN: I would like to amplify that, if I might, Mr. Winch.
I think we obviously should now obtain the reason. I am sorry we have not
added a few words in here indicating perhaps there was—I am sure—some
Very good and sufficient reason for the excess in these cases. After all, it is not
Unusual for estimates to be exceeded.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: It is unusual for them to be exceeded by 74 per cent
though, surely?

Mr. HENDERSON: I quite agree. It seems to me the point here is the question
of Whether you might not feel it advisable to suggest some limit be placed.
It 1s perhaps not unreasonable to put a ceiling of 25 or 30 per cent, beyond
Which point you would have to return to parliament.

Mr. SmITH (Simcoe North): Would it not be useful if we knew whether
Or not these expenditures were caused by some absolutely unforeseen circum-
stance, in relation to the building, or whether or not they were caused by less
Careful estimating than ought to take place in a project of this size? If this
IS only bad estimating, I think there ought to be an outside limit beyond
Whlqh treasury Board should not go. But if it is for some absolutely unforseeable
contingency, then they should be given a certain amount of leeway.

It would seem to me that here we have a chance of possibly bringing
the estimating procedures of the various departments up to scratch. Sometimes,
115 has occurred to me, estimates are made in accordance with exigencies of
Circumstance rather than in accordance with the realities of the projected
building.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, as the members of the committee know,
I had quite a good deal of experience in treasury board, and I really think
that_lt would be a very undesirable thing, both from the point of view of the
administration of the government and from the point of view of real parlia-
Mmentary control, to carry out the recommendation of the Auditor General
In the form in which it is made here. I would like to explain very briefly why.

These votes are deliberately made to include all the public buildings in
the Pyovince, precisely so that the errors or misjudgments or accidents, or
anything else, in estimating in one case and in another, will iron themselves
out so that we will not have grossly inflated estimates in the aggregate. I can
Tecall a good many cases where extraordinarily good progress was made.
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Often you will get a good fall and you can get a lot of building done in one
part of the country, hereas you get a poor fall in another part of the country
and the building is delayed. The estimates will reflect much more truly the
real state of affairs if this practice is continued.

I agree with the Auditor General completely, that anything as much as 74
per cent needs some real explanation by the department; but why I think this
particular method would not be helpful from the point of view of parliamentary
control is that it would mean putting a whole lot of items in some years into
supplementary estimates, having even further delays in the supplementary
estimates and perhaps delaying the building and adding considerably to the
cost while those supplementary estimates were being debated.

What I think would be very much better would be to put a provision in
the Appropriation Act—perhaps put it in once and for all so that it would
be part of the law of Canada—that if one of these estimates was exceeded
by more than a certain amount, that should be included in the Auditor General’s
report and the reasons given in. the report. In that way we would have any
difficulty drawn to our attention right in the report and there would not be
these delays in getting parliamentary approval, which can be and very often
are fairly exasperating to the opposition.

We had a very recent case—with which I will not waste the time of
the committee—where because some item was wanted to be passed urgently,
pressure was put on us to curtail our freedom of speech in regard to other
items. I feel that the flexibility of having these provincial votes in the
present form gives us a much truer estimate and a much better picture of
the real state of finances. But I quite agree that this is a problem which—

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, may I ask Mr. Pickersgill if he would not
perhaps agree to go further and couple with that the suggestion that the
departments themselves, right in the public accounts where the votes are
exceeded, furnish the explanation? It would seem to have a place there.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: I have never had anything to do with the public accounts.
Mr. Bell has, and I would be interested to know what is the special advantage
of that. I am not anxious to get more material printed in blue books than
is necessary, if it can be helped: I like to be able to try and read them.

Mr. HENDERSON: The reason I suggest that is that it is better to give the
department responsible for it the opportunity to explain the reason for the
increase in the first instance in tabling its accounts. Then you could have
the auditor himself come along and give that explanation.

Mr. PickersGILL: Except that more public attention is drawn to things
that are in the Auditor General’s accounts.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Pickersgill has referred to the possi-
bility of weather affecting these things, the progress and what we anticipate
being done in this way. It seems to me that is one thing. Then there is
another thing, and that is an actual error, gross error, in the original estimate.

It seems to me that in one case we should be very ready, as Mr. Pickersgill
says, to concede almost any amount of authority to people to enable them
to deal with unexpected situations; but not if there has been some entirely
inefficient estimate. The other point seems to me to be different, and I am
wondering whether each case should be treated differently. In other words,
gross—

The CHAIRMAN: Mismanagement.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Yes, gross inefficiency—that seems to me to be very
different.

Mr. PicgersGILL: Mr. Macdonnell and I both served in government. I
suggest this would involve a qualitative judgment, which would be very difficult
for treasury board to make in respect of one of its colleagues. I suggest that

i aidatad gt
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it would be very much better for treasury board merely to have to draw atten-
tion to the fact that the estimate was exceeded by 74 per cent and then let
parliament deal with the minister. The minister is responsible to parliament;
he is not responsible to treasury board; and he is making the qualitative
decisions. A

Being a colleague of other ministers, I know how hard it is to make these
qualitative decisions, and the responsibility of the minister is not to treasury
board; it is to the House of Commons.

Mr. WincH: The only tough spot there is that the house, as a house, does
not deal with public accounts as public accounts. .

Mr. PickerscILL: But we do here in this committee.

Mr. WincH: You cannot call witnesses before parliament, and therefore
you have to have this information given before the committee.

Mr. McGggE: Mr. Chairman, are we not reaching the point where there is
agreement that any change above 25 per cent be noted and that this com-
ml_ttee be required, at their pleasure, to summon any official to explain these
things? Certainly in the original instance the possibility of being called to

explain will have the effect mentioned by the Auditor General in his opening
remarks.

Mr. McGregor: I would like to ask, why 25 per cent? If it were run by
any private concern, the minute they went over their estimates somebody
would get into trouble. I do not see why we should allow this thing to drift
on from 25 per cent to 74 per cent, and I think there certainly should be some
explanation as to how this got out of hand to 74 per cent. Who okayed it;
did this pass treasury board; if so, why?

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, we could bring those facts back to the
committee, if you so wished, in answer to your question, and give you the
reasons on these two cases. In the time at our disposal in putting this together,
I regret that we did not add a few sentences by way of explanation which,
would have lent a lot more intelligence to the point. But we could contact
‘{he departments, get a report and then bring it back in this case, if you would
like to see the precise reasons behind it.

Mr. McGRrecor: I think we should have a complete report from the
department as to how these two cases got out of hand.

Mr. McGeg: Do not we want these individuals here, rather than the
Summary which we have?
~ Mr. HenpersoN: Mr. Chairman, that brings me to this point. I noticed,
In doing my homework on the background of the committee, and of my duties
of office, and so on, that Mr. Sellar was the principal witness in a great many
of the meetings of this committee. I would like to express the hope that some
of the departmental officers, who, after all, are responsible for these matters,
be called before the committee as occasion demands, and when you feel it in
order, to explain some of the points that have been raised.

_ The present system puts the auditor of the government in the position of
being called upon, in effect, to explain the actions of his client. It would be
better if in this committee the client could be put on the stand a little more
often than has been the case in the past. I would like to express the hope
g:lallt gs you proceed in this committee some of these departmental officers be

ed.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: I would like to raise a point of order here, Mr. Chair-
ma_n. It seems to me that the point Mr. McGregor has raised—and I am not
objecting to it; I agree with him completely—is introducing a new subject. As
I read it, these two other estimates are concerned with the 1958-59 Auditor

General’s report, which we are not now considering and which we are going
22688-6—2
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to consider later. What we are considering now is what was done about the
recommendations we made regarding previous reports, and I think we should
really hold this point in abeyance until we come to it in the present Auditor
General’s report.

I think we should go on and deal with the generalized point in paragraph 7,
as to what we think ought to be done in principle about these things, and we
should come back to the other point when we reach it.

Mr. McGREGOR: Before we reach that point, I think it should be made clear
just who made these mistakes. Was it because there was not sufficient time
for planning, or were the plans wrong, or was it something else from there up
that caused all this trouble, because this is certainly something that needs an
explanation?

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, the suggestion was made by the Auditor
General—and I think most of us agree in principle—that we should, wherever
possible, get the best evidence. That means calling a witness from the depart-
ment concerned, rather than asking our friend, the Auditor General, to pass
judgment all the time on things which were done by other people. It would
be a very salutary thing for all of us: if there is an explanation, we would
have it. That would satisfy your point?

Mr. McGREGOR: Does that mean we would be out of order in asking the
auditor to make a survey of this particular case? I do not think we would.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think so either, but I do think it would be much

better to bring a witness in to explain it.

Mr. McGreGor: I do not agree with that at all, because I think it is going
to involve a lot of political manoeuvering, and if the auditor comes in with
a statement that we all believe, we would know it is the truth-—and that is
what we are looking for.

The CHAIRMAN: This is a matter that should be given considerable thought.
Will you leave it to the steering committee; I do not want to give a ruling one
way or the other?

Mr. McGRrEGOR: I do not suppose we have any option but to leave it to the
steering committee.

Mr. WincH: I suggest this is a very simple matter, along the lines suggested,
that it is the responsibility of the Auditor General’s department to report to
this committee, and if the committee wants an explanation it could ask the
Auditor General to get it. But if, in his opinion, he would prefer to have it
enlarged upon by some member of some other department, he could bring in
a member of that department.

Mr. SmatH (Simcoe North): Mr. Chairman, to get back to general prin-
ciples for a moment, rather than dealing with these specific cases, and for the
possible guidance of the Auditor General: do you not think it would be wise
in all cases where the cost has exceeded the estimate by, say 15 per cent,
- that he should report that fact in his report in regard to each contract, and
include in that the tender price, the actual cost and a summary of the explana-
tion of the department? Then from there it is a matter of each individual
committee.

I do not think it will take much space because it would be just a paragraph.
Then it would be up to the committee whether or not they wanted further
explanations and whether or not they wanted to call witnesses. But if it were
drawn to the attention of the committee, it seems to me that that is one of its
prime functions. If we get to know about these things, then the committee
itself is left to decide the course of action which should be followed.

Mr. DrRYSDALE: On the same point, Mr. Chairman, I object to this idea of
putting the matter purely on a percentage basis, because 15 per cent or 25

ek .
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per cent of one dollar is one thing, but 25 per cent of several million dollars
is a very different and substantial amount. If it is decided to have a percentage
basis, I think consideration should be given also to establishing an absolute
amount, whether it be $5,000 or $10,000, because 15 per cent or 25 per cent
could still amount to several hundred thousand dollars.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, may we leave it this way, that we ask the
Auditor General to get the facts and report at the next meeting?

Mr. Recier: I take it that preceding this discussion, in our minutes—so
that our minutes have a meaning—there will be a reproduction of this item?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: That is a very good suggestion, otherwise anybody
reading the minutes will not have the faintest idea what we have been talking
about. Paragraphs 6 and 7 could be reprinted just ahead of the discussion.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Do we understand that not only is the Auditor
General going to get the details of the two instances he has referred to, but he

is also going to discuss techniques of additional control with officers of the
treasury?

Mr. PickERSGILL: That is the main point.

~ Mr. BeLL (Carleton): The principle is the more important matter here, I
think, In general I agree with the statement made by Mr Pickersgill, but I
cOr'lfess I have not sufficient information, as of this stage, to formulate an
Opinion as to the adequacy of any particular technique in achieving the type
of parliamentary control that I think all members of the committee want.

The CHAIRMAN: May we go on to agreements with ‘architects?
Mr. MACDONNELL: Mr. Chairman, I have only one comment. It seems to

Mme that this is a $64 question and we should not hurry It. It seems to me it
IS Immensely important.

Mr. McGEgg: Agreed.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Agreed.

 Mr. MacponneLL: I do not disagree with what has been said, but I just

think we should register that comment.

Mr. DRYSDALE: One point that was raised in the discussion was the matter
of the Auditor General making the decision as to witnesses. I disagree with
tha’c_wewpoint. I think the Auditor General could give his explanation of the
particular item and it is the decision of the committee from there, I would
TuEg_est, as to whether or not a witness should be called to amplify, rather than
eaving it within the discretion of the Auditor General. Also, I suggest that it
Put_s him in a rather embarrassing position, as to whether or not be should call
Individuals.

The CHAIRMAN: There must be a misunderstanding, Mr. Drysdate.

Mr. DRYSDALE: Somebody suggested that.

Mr. WincH: That was I: but I said that if he thought he required them,
then he should bring them down. j

Mr. DRYSDALE: I still think the discretion should be in the committee,
rather than in the Auditor General.

The CHATRMAN: There is no doubt about the committee having the right,
the sole right.

Mr. Dryspare: I just wanted to comment on that.

The CHATRMAN: Shall we move ahead, gentlemen, to paragraph 8, agree-
ments with architects?
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Agreements with Architects.

8. In its third report, 1958, the committee made the suggestion that
“whether 5 per cent is invariably a reasonable rate. .. is a subject which
might usefully be explored”.

9. Current comment by the auditor general. The committee, in
suggesting that this subject be explored, had in mind that a lower rate
than 5 per cent might be reasonable in the case of very large con-
struction projects. However, the 5 per cent fee continues to be the one
ordinarily allowed, regardless of size. The variation from this rate is
upwards: to 6 per cent in the case of complex technical buildings.

10. These rates are lower than architects ordinarily receive from
commercial concerns, and it is understood that for many years there has
been pressure on the government to permit increased fees, on a de-
creasing scale, based on the actual overall construction cost, together
with reimbursement for the salaries aid to supervising clerks-of-work.
We understand that such an upwards revision of fees is currently under
consideration the Department of Public Works having made a submission
to treasury board, on its own behalf and that of other interested depart-
ments.

11. The architect’s fee covers the preparation of plans and specifi-
cations and the subsequent supervision of the contract through to com-
pletion.

Mr. HENDERSON: On paragraph 8, as you observe, in your report to parlia-
ment in 1958 you suggested that the 5 per cent fee seemed to be rather the
general rate, and that in buildings involving more money a lower fee might
be indicated. In investigating and exploring this, which was your request, we
found that five per cent was in fact the minimum regardless of size and that
sometimes it moved as high as six per cent in the case of complex technical
buildings.

In paragraph 10 we go on to say that these rates are lower than architects
ordinarily receive from commercial concerns in private business, which I
think most of us would recognize to be the case. We now find that the Depart-
ment of Public Works does have an upward revision of fees in mind and
currently has made that recommendation to treasury board. I do not believe
treasury board has as yet acted on this. They have had to consider the merits
of whatever the decision is based on.

Mr. McGRreGoR: Did I understand you to say that architects’ fees in private
business are more than six per cent?

Mr. HENDERSON: I believe you would find there are not very many today
which run around five per cent. I suggest they are in fact a little bit higher,—
six and a half or seven and that sort of thing.

Mr. WincH: I believe there is a big difference between an architect’s
_ responsibility in respect of government construction as compared to private

construction. In private construction he handles the whole job. In respect of
government jobs the government has a very large architectural staff and nearly
all the preliminary or basic work is done by the government. Therefore the
work of the outside architect is not the same as in private construction.

Mr. HENDERSON: I believe this comment is based on those cases where the
outside architect is doing all the work, and not a case where the department
moves in.

Mr. MCcGREGOR: From my experience I understand that the architects

- association fee is six per cent. If we are going to suggest to the government

they pay more than six per cent I think we should certainly look into it before
we get our foot into it.
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Mr. WoorLiaMS: Is it not a fact that all professional men who work for
the government in a professional way probably receive less than they would
from commercial concerns. I am thinking, for instance, of the medical profes-
sion or the legal profession.

Mr. McGREGOR: I do not believe it has been proven so far as architects
and engineers are concerned. I know it is not a fact in respect of them.

Mr. RoBICHAUD: Your suggestion is that the Department of Public Works
has in mind an upward revision of architects fees. Do you know whether or
not the department has ascertained, or have you ascertained, that it is because

of a shortage of architects or any difficulty in obtaining architects at that
rate?

Mr. HENDERSON: No sir. At this stage I have not looked into the economics
behind the submission. I only know a submission has been made to the treasury
board, the details of which I have not seen.

Mr. Recier: I understand that when an architect works for a private
corporation he is also liable for personal responsibility in the performance of
his duties. How much responsibility does an architect actually assume if he
Wworks on a government project?

_Mr. HeNDERSON: I feel that question would have to be addressed to the
officials of the Department of Public Works.

. Mr. WincH: Maybe we should call Mr. Cormier and ask him to answer
that question.

: Mr. REGIeR: I remember a four classroom school completely disappearing
In the muskeg and the architect could not be held liable because it was being
built by a municipality, and the municipality and the taxpayers had to
stand the complete loss. If this had happened to a business house in respect
of which the architect assumed responsibility, if I were the owner of the
Property I would be able to make that architect account for the disaster; he
Would have had to assume responsibility.

Mr. WooLriams: I think we should reserve decision on this. Unless we
have all the facts before us we cannot come up with an answer. It might
€ a question of the contract being drawn a certain way or it might involve
Municipal contracts and so on.

.Mr: DRryYSDALE: Mr. Henderson said these rates are lower than those
ordinarily received from commercial concerns. What is the basis for that
statement?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is a general statement, Mr. Drysdale.

Mr. DrySpALE: Based on what?

Mr. HENDERSON: The architects association has a scale of professional fees.
When this point was brought to my attention I did seem to recall that the
Scale was higher. I think Mr. McGregor mentioned it was six per cent. I
know many cases in Montreal where it is seven or seven and a half per cent.

Mr. DryspALE: For buildings of a similar nature to those put up by the
government of Canada?

Mr. SmMiTH (Simcoe N orth): It runs from six to seven per cent in Ontario
I believe.

& t‘?Mr. McGREGOR: You mentioned seven per cent in Quebec. Who pays
at?
Mr. HENDERSON: I think the scale put out by the Quebec association of

ar.ch.ltects provides a range, if my memory serves me right, in which the
Minimum is around seven.
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Mr. DryYsSDALE: Mr. Chairman, would it be possible to have some examples
of the architectural fees from the various provinces and information as to
what the fees cover?

The CHAIRMAN: I think so.

Mr. DRYSDALE: So far there is no comparable basis, in other words,
buildings being constructed commercially and being constructed by the federal
government where there is the same architectural problem.

The CHAIRMAN: We will try to get some information for the next meeting.

Mr. REGIER: Along with that could we also have a comparison of the
responsibilities of the architects who work for private enterprise and those who
work for the government.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Could we also have the percentage of the buildings being
built by Public Works where the plans are done by government architects and
outside architects? I understand a certain percentage of it is done by the
department itself.

The CHAIRMAN: I believe that was included in Mr. Regier’s question.

Mr. REGIER: It is part of my question.

The CHAIRMAN: May we move on. We are dealing with comments really,
and not recommendations.

Second Class Mail

12. The following observations were.included under this heading in
the committee’s third report, 1958:

The rates for mailing of newspapers and periodicals are fixed
by parliament, section 11 of the Post Office Act being the pertinent
section. The attention of the committee was drawn to the probability
that the cost to Post Office in handling this class of mail may have
exceeded $24,000,000 in 1957 while the revenues approximated
$6,000,000. This heavy deficit incurred in second class mail is likely
to increase in future years. Your committee accepts with reservation
these financial statistics provided by Post Office and trusts that its
costing program now in progress will be both more comprehensive
and informative than that followed in 1955-56.

In his report on 1956-57 accounts, the Auditor General points

' to anomalies in current application of section 11 of the Post Office
Act because of changes that have since taken place in publishing
practices and in the fields of distribution and communication, such
as new types of publications, new arrangements with respect to
places of publication and the growth of magazines where the
recipients are members of associations rather than subscribers.

13. Current comment by the Auditor General. The handling of second
class mail was estimated by the Post Office Department as costing almost
$28,000,000 in 1958-59, while revenues were just over $6,000,000. Thus,
compared with 1956-57 costs increased by about $4,000,000, or 16§ per
cent, while revenues remained about the same,

14. We were informed that the cost ascertainment procedures
followed in 1958-59, in estimating the expenditures for that year, were
the same as those followed in 1955-56, and used as the basis for the
corresponding 1956-57 figure—and we were informed that no material
change in procedure is contemplated. The 1958-59 costing was based on
time and volume studies made at 236 post offices during periods of one
week each in May and September, 1958. We understand that the proce-
dures followed by the department’s cost ascertainment section are
similar to those used in the United States, and that they are still regarded
by the department as being reasonable in the circumstances.

Ehale oo .
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15. It might be noted that, by reason of the fact that there has
been no material change in the basis of cost ascertainment procedures
in the past two years, the estimated cost figure referred to above, namely,
$24,000,000 in 1956-57 and $28,000,000 in 1958-59, may be taken as
providing a fair basis of comparison.

16. The cost of handling this, or any other class of mail, cannot
be recorded in the accounts in exact terms; it can be little more than an
informed estimate, based on the results of time and volume studies. It is
a matter of deciding to what extent expenditure on time and volume
studies—having in mind the associated interference with the handling
of mail—is warranted in arriving at estimates that may be regarded as
reasonably accurate for the purposes for which they will be used.

17. The anomalies referred to in the second observation made under
the- heading “Second Class Mail” in the committee’s report, as having
been pointed to in the Auditor General’s report on 1956-57 accounts,
included the following:

1. Although a newspaper or periodical is supposed to consist
wholly or in great part of political or other news in order to
qualify for the special rates, these rates were being extended
publications of statistical or reference character.

2. In 1908 it was established that in order to qualify for the special
rates, the news content should be 40 per cent or more. Special
rates had been provided for the advertising content of daily
newspapers but not for magazines, and although the advertising
content of these sometimes exceeded 60 per cent, they were
still being accepted at the special rate.

3. Periodicals were sometimes mailed to other than “bona fide”
subscribers as defined by the department, but the special rate
was nevertheless allowed in some cases.

4. Publications were permitted to be mailed in a postal area other
than the one in which they were published, providing the postal
revenue was not adversely affected—but in some cases the
revenue did appear to suffer.

So far as we know, these anomalies still exist.

18. In the course of its 1958 meetings (page 377 of the minutes) the
committee considered the question of week-end supplements printed in
one locality and then distributed to various newspaper publishers, to be
placed within the folds of their newspapers on week-ends. These mailings
have, since April 1953, been allowed at the statutory newsdealers’ rate
of 4 cents per pound. Further consideration might be given to the
propriety of accepting the week-end magazine supplements as second
class mail, because they do not come within the statutory definition of a
newspaper or periodical. For example, they cannot be purchased
separately, and no copies are addressed to bona fide subscribers or news-~
dealers. An alternative method of shipment available to the publishers
would be by express, but at considerably higher rates than the present
4 cents per pound; for example, the rate from Montreal to Vancouver is
understood to be $14 per 100 pounds. t

3 Mr. HENDERSON: The comment in respect of this in the 1958 report is a
fairly lengthy one. I think the principal point made here has to do with the
Method that the post office has followed in costing up the operations governing
Second class mail. On the surface it may seem as though they could arrive at
the cost fairly quickly, but I think we all know, and perhaps it is easily
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understood, that in an operation like the post office where there is a great
volume of second class mail, if it is taken as a single operation the only effective
way one can arrive at a costing of it is by volume studies. In this particular
case you will notice they based their costing on studies of 236 post offices
for one week in May and one week in September 1958. These procedures are
not dissimilar to those elsewhere, particularly in the United States. We find, in
speaking to post office officials, that they have continued this approach through-
out. They have not gone to what would have been a very great expense of
installing a complete costing system. Therefore, in fairness to them we felt
the basis on which they operate should be explained. That is the reason for
the comments in paragraphs 14 and 15. I have no information before me at
the moment as to why, with the costs going up, the revenue would not go
up particularly at a time when there is generally more business abroad. That is
the situation at the moment.

In paragraph 17 we refer to certain anomalies which exist. Apparently
none of these has been altered. It may be they should be studied and examined
further and the committee might wish to make some recommendations on
that.

In paragraph 18 there is a point which Mr. Sellar discussed with you at
some length at your previous meetings regarding the distribution of these
weekend magazine supplements which continue to go through the post office
on the basis of second class mail, as distinct to going by the express companies,
which would cost three times as much. They continue to be classed as second
class mail. As you know they are shipped out and put in the local papers
with perhaps an overprint.

Mr. WincH: I think there is a very important principle here. As past
members will remember, the public accounts committee made a very exhaustive
study of this question as it relates to the Postmaster General’s department.
Although the fact is that there is a big loss on certain types, that is not in our
purview; that is a matter of policy. I think, however, the important principle
is that as a result of that exhaustive study certain anomalies were drawn to
the attention of the house and the department—anomalies on he basis that
if they are going to be continued they should be continued on a constitutional
and legal basis.

It would appear from the report which the Auditor General has just given
us that not only is the situation continuing, but it is continuing without
authorization to do it. In other words they are breaking the regulations and
the law. I think it is a very serious principle, that a department should be
conducting itself in & manner in which it is not authorized to do. I think this
is a major matter ‘'which we have to consider, and as a public accounts
committee we cannot be satisfied with a condition being allowed to continue
and the anomalies still remain. I believe this is a very important matter for
this committee to consider; that is, without going into the question of whether
or not first class mail should be carrying the burden of second class mail. It
is on the operation of second class mail itself.

The CHAIRMAN: There are two points, one being in paragraph 18. The
wording here is:

Further consideration might be given to the propriety of accepting
the weekend magazine supplements as second class mail, because they
do not come within the statutory definition of a newspaper or periodical.

Mr: WincH: Nor do a number of magazines come in because of their
advertising content.

e Qi{AmMAN: In paragraph 13 he compares 1958-59 with 1956-57. There
Is a growing annual loss of at least sixteen and two thirds per cent in cost.
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Mr. BeLL (Carleton): I think that figure is deceptive. We had the deputy
Postmaster General before us two years ago. From the evidence, I am not
at all satisfied that if we were to stop carrying newspapers and periodicals
there would be any substantial saving. I think in fact in the form of cost
accounting adopted in the post office there is likely far too much attributed
to the cost of carrying second class mail. That cost, or a very substantial cost,
would still be there if the mail were not carried. I would think we have a
totally inadequate system of costing in the post office department.

Mr. WincH: Even if your contention is correct, would you agree that the
method of handling this should be made legal?

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I see no actual illegality. I would not be surprised
if in subparagraph 3 of paragraph 17 we would find there are publications
in which my hon. friend from Vancouver East is very much interested.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Have we given up getting a better cost accounting
system? It seems we are arguing in the dark.

The CuAmRMAN: It appears that in 1958 a witness from the post office
department said they had instituted a review of their costing system and in
1959 he said it was still continuing. It may take two or three years for all
we know. Some time in the future we would like to hear what they have done.
. Mr. REGIER: On orders of the day the other day the Postmaster General
indicated there had been a change in certain second class mail rates. I wonder
Whether we could have a report on that, to see whether or not the changes
;0 which he referred in the house have any influence on our major complaints

ere,

Mr. McGee: I think it just referred to things of a householder type.

Mr. PrckeRSGILL: Third class mail. As a member of parliament I am much

fmnoyle interested in seeing that third class mail pays its way than second class
ail.

Mr. WoorLiam: It is a good thing this is not an election year, because some
of our mail might go second or third class and increase the cost of the campaign.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you like the Auditor General to inquire and report
on this to the next meeting?

Agreed.

Mr. McGeE: What will be the nature of his enquiry? Will it be as to the
Progress made on the cost accounting system?

Mr. WincH: And the removal of the anomalies.

Mr. HENDERSON: The type of system. I would like to find out more precisely
What the type of system is and to what extent it can be improved or made
ngOI‘e accurate without going to a lot of unnecessary expense. Then there are

€ Othf:r points which were brought up and the situation in respect of the
anomalies. I should explain that in putting these comments together I did
hot have the benefit of any discussion with officials of the post office department
at this point.

Mr. MACDONNELL: There is also the question of the statute of limitations
Tunning against us. Seriously, does it take two years?

The CHAIRMAN: I am afraid only the Postmaster General can answer that.

Is there anything else on this matter of second class mail? If not, shall
We go to public accounts.

The Public Accounts
19. The committee’s third report, 1958, included the following ob-
servation under this heading:

The financial Administration Act requires that the Minister of

Finance settle the ‘form’ of the public accounts, but long estab-
22688-6—3
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lished practice is that the book, especially the degree of partic-
ularization, be periodically discussed with the public accounts
committee. There has been no conference on the subject for several
years; therefore it is suggested that the attention of the Minister
of Finance be drawn to submissions recently made to this com-
mittee, together with associated comments by committee members,
to the end that ministerial proposals for improving the public
accounts may be considered when this standing committee is again
organized.

20. Current comment by the Auditor General. This subject was,
of course, considered by the committee last year and, as a result, a rec-
ommendation was included in that committee’s second report, 1959.
Reference is made later in this memorandum to the action taken as a
result of the recommendation.

SECOND REPORT, 1959

The Form of the Public Accounts

31. The committee recommended in the second report, 1959, that
the Minister of Finance give further consideration to the form of the
public accounts. The committee suggested that the task of printing the
publication might be distributed over a longer period by printing in
a separate volume, the financial review by the deputy minister and
the certified financial statements. The committee noted that were the
listings of salaries to commence at $8,000 instead of $5,000 in Part II,
the comptroller of the treasury estimates that the book would be
substantially reduced and his work of preparation expedited and money
saved.

32. Current comment by the Auditor General. The 1958-59 public
accounts continues to include Parts I and II in the same volume, but
listings of salaries were shortened by the inclusion of salaries of only
$8,000 and over.

33. Should the committee wish to make further suggestions to the
Minister of Finance regarding the shortening of the public accounts, it
might wish to consider suggesting the omission of travelling expenses
incurred by employees in the under $8,000 salary range, whose names
would then not require to be listed (almost 10 pages, each with three
columns of names and amounts, are used for the Agriculture Depart-
ment alone, in the 1958-59 volume).

34, The committee might also wish to consider further whether
the desirability of including, in each departmental section of the public
accounts, the payments made to each supplier and contractor to a total
of $10,000 or over, justifies the considerable cost that might be involved
in the preparation of these listings by the office of the comptroller of the
treasury. :

35. We have requested from the comptroller of the treasury an
estimate of the cost of publishing the 1958-59 public accounts.

36. It is understood that this printing cost may be to the order
of $50,000, with the cost of preparing the material approximating
$200,000, or a total of about $250,000.

Mr. HEnNDERSON: In paragraph 31 there is reference to the form of the

public accounts. They continue to be published in parts I and II but the listing
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of salaries has been shortened in that the salaries included are only those of
2113,000 and over. That is in the one published for the year ending March
, 1959,

You will have noted that travelling expenses, however, were listed with
Tespect to people who were earning under $8,000 and whose names otherwise
Wwould not appear. As pointed out in paragraph 34, the committee might also
wish to consider the desirability, in each departmental section of these accounts,
of including payments made to each supplier and contractor to a total of
$10,000 or over.

The cost of preparing this report was the subject of discussion at your last
year’s meetings, when the comptroller of the treasury appeared before you and
gave you the printing costs. He made the statement, I believe, that the cost
of Preparing the material—that is the time consumed in putting all this to-
gether, through the various government departments and offices of the chief
treasury officer—was probably four or five times the cost of the printing.

I do not at the present time have the actual cost of the 1958-59 accounts,
but the comptroller is very kindly getting it for me. However, notwithstanding
the changes that were made this year, we expect it to run around $50,000 for
the printing, and about four times that amount for the time and overhead
Consumed in putting all this voluminous material together. So, you have
here a $250,000 job.

The Cuamman: Mr. Auditor General, I understand the position is that
the Minister of Finance is charged with the responsibility of deciding as to the
form; and that, in point of fact, after listening to some of our recommenda-
tions, he has made some changes. Is that not right, Mr. Bell?

Mr. Bern (Carleton): Yes.

Mr. WincH: In following those recommendations and making those changes,
What saving has been effected?

Mr. HenpErson: I would wish to ask Mr. Balls that question. He has not
yet got me the cost for 1958-59.

11The CHAIRMAN: Have you any comment, Mr. Bell? You know this pretty
well.

Mr. BerLL (Carleton): I think, Mr. Chairman, the attitude of the Minister
of Finance is that he would welcome any unanimous view of the committee
and would pay, of course, the very greatest of respect to any unanimous rec-
Ommendations that this committee might make.

. I think I should only qualify that by saying that the minister of Finance
18 anxious to provide to parliament every possible detail of information which

S committee or any member of parliament thinks desirable, and he does
Dot wish to restrict that degree of information in the public accounts in any
Way, unless it is clear that parliament desires such restriction in the in-
formation,

If, from any quarter of parliament, there is any view that information
Stould be contained in the public accounts which is not so contained, he
Would certainly give attention to that view.

his is a matter which is really for parliament, and you will find, in this
Tespect certainly, the Minister of Finance is very sensitive to the views of all
Members of parliament, in all sections of the house.
Mr. Wincu: Do you think we could extend that attitude a little?
Mr. BeLL (Carleton): I do not think it needs much extension, Mr. Winch.

5 Mr. PicrERsGILL: Mr. Chairman, there is just one observation I would
ike to make,
There are two aspects to this matter. There is the question of saving

g li;tzle money. I have some grave doubt as to whether very much money is
688-6—3}
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likely to be saved by any reduction in the amount of detail of public accounts.
But I think the very much more important consideration is this, that anybody
who weighs the public accounts, or looks at them in their present form,
is very apt to open something else. It does seem to me that if they are
engulfed with a whole lot of detail of the names of, no doubt, very worthy
but obscure people who, for one reason or another, have got a few dollars
out of the treasury, the whole effect of that is to discourage people who have
. a limited amount of time from reading the public accounts at all.

I do think, from the point of view of this committee, from the point
of view of the House of Commons and from the point of view of the effective
control of public expenditure, the less insignificant detail that goes into the
public accounts, the more chance there is there will be real financial control.

I know this is an odd view for a member of the opposition regarding
public expenditure, but it is my. considered judgment as a member of the
opposition.

The CHAIRMAN: Any comment, Mr. Auditor General?

Mr. HENDERSON: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman. I find myself in agree-
ment with those members who have spoken on it.

I agree with Mr. Pickersgill’s point that the clearer, the better the presenta-
tion of them, the more you are going to have the public pay attention to
them and read them.

This is a very forbidding volume, and I have certain ideas about it.
Unfortunately, I have not had time to advance too far into it, but I am looking
forward to the opportunity of discussing that with the officials of the Depart-
ment of Finance and treasury board. The responsibility for its preparation is
theirs, as Mr. Bell pointed out. If we can render any assistance to them, I
would be more than happy to work toward that goal.

Mr. McGRrEGOR: Has the Auditor General any recommendations as to what
should be done, or do you intend to bring in a recommendation? Would you
like this committee to ask you to bring in a recommendation as to what you
think should be cut out?

Mr. HENDERSON: At this stage, Mr. McGregor, I really have not had all
the opportunity I would like to put together those recommendations, and
therefore, if I might be permitted, I would like to withhold my comments
on that until some later occasion.

Mr. MorToN: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest, in view of what the Auditor
General has said, and in view of the fact that we ourselves are not sure of
exactly what we would like to do in this respect, that it would be much
more advisable to proceed more cautiously; and, perhaps, the Auditor General
might have a year in which to look at the thing, rather than our going off
saying something now. Would not it be sounder to 'wait and let him think
his views over for a period of a year; and let us pick out things we would like
to consider and re-consider during that period? Then, perhaps next year,
we could bring forward some recommendations. Perhaps, meanwhile he could
discuss it with the Minister of Finance.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraphs 21 to 30 are rather technical—

Mr. PickeRSGILL: There is a lot of sense in the very conservative point of
view expressed by Mr. Morton, but the Auditor General has had a long
experience in private business, and, before he becomes too bureaucratically
set in his ways, I hope he would not mind telling us what private business
would do about a thing like this, trying to get value for its money.

Mr. MorToN: Of course, we appreciate that Mr. Pickersgill has had long
~experience in bureaucracy.

The CHAIRMAN: The objective is very simple: how to make public accounts
reports more readable and easier to digest by the general public.
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Paragraphs 21 to 30 are fairly technical, and I think Mr. Pickersgill was
the expert on that aspect last year. Could you summarize it in one minute?

Treatment of Receipts for Services Rendered.

21. The committee’s third report, 1958, included the following com-
ment on this subject:

Practice in some countries and provinces takes one form and
in others the opposite. Your committee therefore maintains an open
mind but is of opinion that the subject should be thoroughly ex-
plored because ever-expanding public activities correspondingly
add to the responsibilities resting on parliament when voting supply.
It is recommended that the Minister of Finance cause a review
to be made of vote structures to provide for the needs of two
servicing departments with some distinguishing characteristics in
services provided in return for fees or charges—for example, the
departments of Veterans Affairs and Secretary of State. It being a
fact-finding study of administrative and parliamentary needs, it
would be desirable were an officer of the Auditor General to
participate.

22. Current comment by the Auditor General. The audit office has
not been informed of any fact-finding study planned or made by the
Department of Finance regarding this matter, although some changes in
the treatment of receipts have been observed in the 1960-61 main
estimates. For example the “deduction allotment” previously provided
with respect to the annual vote for “Indian and northern health services
—operation and maintenance” for the Department of National Health
and Welfare has been dropped, with all receipts now to be credited
as revenue. The “deduction allotment” had previously been used to
record, as credits to the vote, amounts recovered for services provided
under agreements with Northwest Territories and Yukon Territory.

23. The problem of when to credit a vote and when revenue is a
complex one, and it is suggested that further consideration be given to
it. Receipts arising out of expenditures made under appropriations
might be regarded as falling into two classes:

(a) where all the expenditures charged to an appropriation are
related to its basic purpose, and where the receipts are inci-
dental;

(b) where some expenditures are incurred, and charged to the
appropriation in the first instance, which are additional to the
expenditures incurred in relation to the basic purpose of the
appropriation, and the additional expenses are recoverable
wholly or in part through receipts.

24. The practice is for receipts in the first of these classes to be
credited as revenue, as is done, for example, in the case of the
annual appropriation for “Administration of the Food and Drugs and
the Proprietary or Patent Medicine acts” (vote 241 in 1958-59). In this
case, all expenditures charged to the appropriation are for the basic
burposes of the appropriation and are incurred without consideration
as to the nature or amount of receipts that might result.

25, Receipts in the second of the above-noted classes are credited
to the appropriation concerned, assuming, of course, that such accounting
action was contemplated when the estimate was being made of the
net amount required.
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26. Recoveries of extraneous expenditures are recorded as credits
to appropriations in two different ways: (i) through the allotment
account concerned, where the amounts recovered are equal to and
identifiable with the individual expenditures incurred (e.g., a recovery
of an outlay in travelling expenses), and (ii) through a “deduction
item” provided for in the estimates details, where the amounts recovered
are not identifiable with individual expenditures incurred (e.g., re-
coveries in respect of treatment services, etc., provided to persons for
whom the Veterans Affairs Department is not financially responsible).

27. The first of these two methods presents no problem from the
point of view of parliamentary control. After the amount received has
been credited to the appropriation it cancels out the charge that had
previously been made, leaving the appropriation to record charges
associated with the basic purpose of the vote.

28. But when the second procedure is followed it becomes a matter
of importance, from the viewpoint of parliamentary control, to consider
extent to which the actual receipts exceeded what had been estimated.
It would seem that any excess of receipts should be credited as revenue,
otherwise funds become available for expenditure beyond what was
contemplated by parliament. This point arises in connection with the
Veterans Affairs vote for “treatment services—operation of hospitals and
administration”, and is involved in the comment made in paragraph 39
of the Auditor General’s report for 1958-59. It should be mentionéd, how-
ever, that although the excess amount became available in this case, it
was not actually spent by the department.

29. In the case of appropriations under the Secretary of State, to
which reference was made in the committee’s third report, 1958, the
revenues would seem to fall under the first of the two classes referred
to above, i.e., all the expenditures charged are related to the basic
puposes of the appropriations and the receipts are incidental (even
though, in the cases of two votes, the revenues exceed the expenditures)
—and they are credited as revenue.

30. The committee’s comment on the question of the treatment of
receipts included reference to the practice varying in different countries
and provinces. In the United Kingdom the practice is followed of
granting appropriations-in-aid which, on the face of it, would seem
to correspond to permitting the crediting of receipts to appropriations
in Canada However, in the United Kingdom funds are provided to and
expended by the individual departments, and when an appropriation-
in-aid is granted the departmental accounting officer is permitted to
retain receipts and use them for the payment of expenditures, only up
to the amount of the appropriation-in-aid, paying over to the con-
solidated fund (corresponding to our consolidated revenue fund) any
excess of receipts beyond the amount of the appropriation-in-aid.
Parliamentary control is therefore maintained in a way that would not
be possible under our system of centralized expenditure payment, were
receipts permitted to be credited to appropriations to an extent greater
than had been estimated for purposes of calculating the net appropri-
ations required. In British Columbia the practice has been followed of
crediting receipts to appropriations to a greater extent than in the
case of the federal government, but many classes of sundry receipts,
e.g., licences, fees and fines and penalties, are still credited as revenue.
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Mr. PickeRSGILL: As a matter of fact, I think it is a very big subject, on
which I have a great deal to say. I think this is the most fundamental point
in the whole report. I hold very strong and very radical views on this subject.

Mr. BeLL. (Carleton):Oh no!

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Views which I held when I was minister, and I think
it is absolutely ridiculous to include in our revenues all these receipts that are
not revenues at all, but that are payments for services.

I believe there should be a radical re-casting of the public accounts on
the British basis, but I do not think we should start it at three minutes to
eleven.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): No. .

The CuamrMAN: Gentlemen the next meeting is next Wednesday, March 30,
and I think we should continue with this memorandum,

Mr, BeLL (Carleton): Should we not follow what the steering committee
decided, and go on to the Canada Council?

The reason I suggested that is that the other place is also to review the
Canada Council, and we do not want to get into a situation where there is a
conflict between the two houses.

Mr. PickersgILL: We are going on with this, are we not?

Mr. BeLn (Carleton): I was suggesting we follow the steering committee’s
decision, of going to the Canada Council, so that there should be no conflict
between the two places.

; Mr. Prckerscinn: I understood we made a decision we would complete
this document with the Auditor General before going on to Canada Council.

The CHamrMAN: I think we could complete this in about half of the next
Meeting, and then start on the Canada Council.

ol Mr. BeLn (Carleton): You will probably be in conflict with the other
ace.

Mr. PrcgersciLL: We have priority.
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APPENDIX “A"”

MEMORANDUM

Suggestions and recommendations made by the 1958 and 1959 Committees in
their Reports to the House of Commons, together with current
comments by the Auditor General regarding action taken
by the departments concerned

1. The Standing Committee on Public Accounts held 25 meetings between
July 29, 1958, and September 5, 1958, for the purpose of examining the Public
Accounts, Volumes I and II, and the Auditor General’s Report for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1957. In its Third Report to the House of Commons,
presented on September 5, 1958, suggestions and recommendations were made
regarding action that might be taken by departments with respect to some of
the matters that the Committee had considered in the course of its meetings.

2. In 1959 the Committee held 16 meetings between March 3 and June 22,
for the purpose of examining the Public Accounts, Volumes I and II, and the
Auditor General’s Report for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1958. In its
Second Report to the House of Commons, presented on July 30, 1958, suggestions
and recommendations were again made as to the departmental action that
might be taken regarding various matters.

3. Extracts from, or summaries of, the suggestions and recommendations
made in the above-noted Reports of the Committee, together with current
comments by the Auditor General regarding action that has been taken by the
departments concerned, are now given in this Memorandum.

THIRD REPORT, 1958

Expenditures on construction projects in excess of anticipated amounts.

4. In its Third Report, 1958, the Committee made reference to the con-
siderable extent to which expenditures incurred under the Printing Bureau
construction contracts exceeded the anticipated amounts as detailed in the
Estimates—and it was indicated as the Committee’s view that the Department
of Public Works should endeavour to avoid such a situation in future.

5. Current comment by the Auditor General. Votes 329 to 340 of 1958-59,
under the Department of Public Works, read:

“Construction, acquisition, major repairs and improvements of, and
plans and sites for, public buildings listed in the details of the Estimates,
provided that Treasury Board may increase or decrease the amount
within the vote to be expended on individual listed projects.”

6. A review was made of the expenditures incurred during 1958-59 under
the above noted Votes, as augmented by supplementary Votes, with a view to
* ascertaining if there had been instances where expenditures under construction

contracts had exceeded anticipated amounts as detailed in the Estimates by
significant amounts. Only two instances were noted where this seemed to have
~ been the case:

1. Where $300,000 had been included in the details of the Estimates
for the testing laboratory for the Department of Public Works on River-
side Drive, Ottawa, an amount of $523,000 or 749% in excess of the antlcx-
pated amount, had been expended.
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2. Where $750,000 had been included in the details of the Estimates
for a public building in Kingston, an amount of $1,006,000, or 34% in
excess of the anticipated amount, had been expended..

7. In the interest of greater Parliamentary control, consideration might be
given to the question of whether the Treasury Board’s authority to increase
amounts to be expended on individual listed projects, be limited to a specified
percentage over the amount included in the Details of the Estimates.

Agreements with Architects.

8. In its Third Report, 1958, the Committee made the suggestion that
“whether 59 is invariably a reasonable rate . . . is a subject which might
usefully be explored”.

9. Current comment by the Auditor General. The Committee, in suggesting
that this subject be explored, had in mind that a lower rate than 59 might
be reasonable in the case of very large construction projects. However, the
59 fee continues to be the one ordinarily allowed, regardless of size. The
variation from this rate is upwards: to 6% in the case of complex technical
buildings.

10. These rates are lower than architects ordinarily receive from com-
mercial concerns, and it is understood that for many years there has been
pressure on the Government to permit increased fees, on a decreasing scale,
based on the actual overall construction cost, together with reimbursement for
the salaries paid to supervising clerks-of-work. We understand that such an
upwards revision of fees is currently under consideration, the Department of
Public Works having made a submission to Treasury Board, on its own behalf
and that of other interested departments.

11. The architect’s fee covers the preparation of plans and specifications
and the subsequent supervision of the contract through to completion.

Second Class Mail

12. The following observations were included under this heading in the
Committee’s Third Report, 1958:

“The rates for mailing of newspapers and periodicals are fixed by
Parliament, section 11 of the Post Office Act being the pertinent section.
The attention of the Committee was drawn to the probability that the
cost to Post Office in handling this class of mail may have exceeded
$24,000,000 in 1957 while the revenues approximated $6,000,000. This
heavy deficit incurred in second class mail is likely to increase in future
years. Your Committee accepts with reservation these financial statistics
provided by Post Office and trusts that its costing programme now in
progress will be both more comprehensive and informative than that
followed in 1955-56.

“In his report on 1956-57 accounts, the Auditor General points to
anomalies in current application of section 11 of the Post Office Act
because of changes that have since taken place in publishing practices
and in the fields of distribution and communication, such as new types of
publications, new arrangements with respect to places of publication and
the growth of magazines where the recipients are members of associa-
tions rather than subscribers.”

13. Current comment by the Auditor General. The handling of second
class mail was estimated by the Post Office Department as costing almost
$28,000,000 in 1958-59, while revenues were just over $6,000,000. Thus, com-
pared with 1956-57, costs increased by about $4,000,000, or 163%, while revenues
Temained about the same.
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14. We were informed that the cost ascertainment procedures followed
in 1958-59, in estimating the expenditures for that year, were the same as
those followed in 1955-56, and used as the basis for the corresponding 1956-57
figure—and we were informed that no material change in procedure is
contemplated. The 1958-59 costing was based on time and volume studies
made at 236 post offices during periods of one week each in May and September,
1958. We understand that the procedures followed by the Department’s Cost
Ascertainment Section are similar to those used in the United States, and
that they are still regarded by the Department as being reasonable in the
circumstances.

15. It might be noted that, by reason of the fact that there has been no
material change in the basis of cost ascertainment procedures in the past two
years, the estimated cost figures referred to above, namely, $24,000,000 in
1956-57 and $28,000,000 in 1958-59, may be taken as providing a fair basis
of comparison.

16. The cost of handling this, or any other class of mail, cannot be recorded
in the accounts, in exact terms, it can be little more than an informed estimate,
based on the results of time and volume studies. It is a matter of deciding
to what extent expenditure on time and volume studies—having in mind
the associated interference with the handling of mail—is warranted in arriving
at estimates that may be regarded as reasonably accurate for the purposes
for which they will be used.

17. The anomalies referred to in the second observation made under the
heading “Second Class Mail” in the Committee’s report, as having been pointed
to in the Auditor General’s report on 1956-57 accounts, included the following:

1. Although a newspaper or periodical is supposed to consist wholly
or in great part of political or other news in order to qualify for
the special rates, these rates were being extended to publications
of statistical or reference character.

2. In 1908 it was established that in order to qualify for the special
rates, the news content should be 409 or more. Special rates had
been provided for the advertising content of daily newspapers but
not for magazines, and although the advertising content of these
sometimes exceeded 60%, they were still being accepted at the
special rate.

3. Periodicals were sometimes mailed to other than “bona fide” sub-
scribers as defined by the Department, but the special rate was
nevertheless allowed in some cases.

4. Publications were permitted to be mailed in a postal area other
than the one in which they were published, providing the postal
revenue was not adversely affected—but in some cases the revenue
did appear to suffer.

So far as we know, these anomalies still exist.

18. In the course of its 1958 meetings (page 377 of the Minutes) the
Committee considered the question of week-end supplements printed in one
locality and then distributed to various newspaper publishers, to be placed
within the folds of their newspapers on week-ends. These mailings have,
since April 1953, been allowed at the statutory newsdealers’ rate of 4 cents
per pound. Further consideration might be given to the propriety of accepting
the week-end magazine supplements as second class mail, because they do
not come within the statutory definition of a newspaper or periodical. For
example, they cannot be purchased separately, and no copies are addressed
to bona fide subscribers or newsdealers. An alternative method of shipment
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available to the publishers would be by express, but at considerably higher
rates than the present 4 cents per pound; for example, the rate from Montreal
to Vancouver is understood to be $14 per 100 pounds.

The Public Accounts

19. The Committee’s Third Report, 1958, included the following observation
under this heading:

“The Financial Administration Aect requires that the Minister of
Finance settle the ‘form’ of the Public Accounts, but long established
practice is that the book, especially the degree of particularization, be
periodically discussed with the Public Accounts Committee. There has
been no conference on the subject for several years; therefore it is
suggested that the attention of the Minister of Finance be drawn to
submissions recently made to this Committee, together with associated
comments by Committee members, to the end that ministerial proposals
for improving the Public Accounts may be considered when this Standing
Committee is again organized.”

20. Current comment by the Auditor General. This subject was, of course,
considered by the Committee last year and, as a result, a recommendation
was included in that Committee’s Second Report, 1959. Reference is made
later in this Memorandum to the action taken as a result of the recommendation.

Treatment of Receipts for Services Rendered.

21. The Committee’s Third Report, 1958, included the following comment
on this subject:

“Practice in some countries and provinces takes one form and in
others the opposite. Your Committee therefore maintains an open
mind but is of opinion that the subject should be thoroughly explored
because ever-expanding public activities correspondingly add to the
responsibilities resting on Parliament when voting Supply. It is recom-
mended that the Minister of Finance cause a review to be made of vote
structures to provide for the needs of two servicing departments with
some distinguishing characteristics in services provided in return for
fees or charges—for example, the departments of Veterans Affairs and
Secretary of State. It being a fact-finding study of administrative and
parliamentary needs, it would be desirable were an officer of the Auditor
General to participate.”

22. Current comment by the Auditor General. The Audit Office has not
been informed of any fact-finding study planned or made by the Department
of Finance regarding this' matter, although some changes in the treatment of
receipts have been observed in the 1960-61 Main Estimates. For example, the
“deduction allotment” previously provided with respect to the annual Vote
for “Indian and Northern Health Services—Operation and Maintenance” for
the Department of National Health and Welfare has been dropped, with all
receipts now to be credited as Revenue. The “deduction allotment” had previ-
ously been used to record, as credits to the Vote, amounts recovered for
services, provided under agreements with Northwest Territories and Yukon
Territory.

23. The problem of when to credit a Vote and when Revenue is a complex
one, and it is suggested that further consideration be given to it. Receipts
arising out of expenditures made under appropriations might be regarded as
falling into two classes:

(a) where all the expenditures charged to an Appropriation are related

to its basic purpose, and where the receipts are incidental;
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(b) where some expenditures are incurred, and charged to the Appro-
priation in the first instance, which are additional to the expenditures
incurred in relation to the basic purpose of the Appropriation, and
the additional expenses are recoverable wholly or in part through
receipts.

24. The practice is for receipts in the first of these classes to be credited
as Revenue, as is done, for example, in the case of the annual Appropriation
for “Administration of the Food and Drugs and the Proprietary or Patent
Medicine Acts” (Vote 241 in 1958-59)." In this case, all expenditures charged
to the appropriation are for the basic purposes of the appropriation and are
incurred without consideration as to the nature or amount of receipts that
might result.

25. Receipts in the second of the above-noted classes are credited to the
appropriation concerned, assuming, of course, that such accounting action was
contemplated when the estimate was being made of the net amount required.

26. Recoveries of extraneous expenditures are recorded as credits to ap-
propriations in two different ways: (i) through the allotment account con-
cerned, where the amounts recovered are equal to and identifiable with the
individual expenditures incurred (e.g., a recovery of an outlay in travelling
expenses), and (ii) through a “deduction item” provided for in the Estimates
Details, where the amounts recovered are not identifiable with individual
expenditures incurred (e.g., recoveries in respect of treatment services, etc.,
provided to persons for whom the Veterans Affairs Department is not finan-
cially responsible).

27. The first of these two methods presents no problem from the point of
view of Parliamentary control. After the amount received has been credited
to the appropriation it cancels out the charge that had previously been made,
leaving the appropriation to record charges associated with the basic purpose
of the vote.

28. But when the second procedure is followed it becomes a matter of
importance, from the viewpoint of Parliamentary control, to consider the
extent to which the actual receipts exceeded what had been estimated. It
would seem that any excess of receipts should be credited as Revenue, other-
wise funds become available for expenditure beyond what was contemplated
by Parliament. This point arises in connection with the Veterans Affairs vote
for “Treatment Services—Operation of Hospitals and Administration”, and is
involved in the comment made in paragraph 39 of the Auditor General’s
Report for 1958-59. It should be mentioned, however, that although the
excess amount became available in this case, it was not actually spent by the
Department.

29. In the case of appropriations under the Secretary of State, to which
reference was made in the Committee’s Third Report, 1958, the revenues
would seem to fall under the first of the two classes referred to above, i.e., all
the expenditures charged are related to the basic purposes of the appropria-
tions and the receipts are incidental (even though, in the cases of two Votes,
the revenues exceed the expenditures)—and they are credited as revenue.

30. The Committee’s comment on the question of the treatment of receipts
included reference to the practice varying in different countries and provinces.
II} the United Kingdom the practice is followed of granting appropriations-in-
aid which, on the face of it, would seem to correspond to permitting the
crgditing of receipts to appropriations in Canada. However, in the United
Kingdom funds are provided to and expended by the individual departments,
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and when an appropriation-in-aid is granted the departmental accounting
officer is permitted to retain receipts and use them for the payment of expen-
ditures, only up to the amount of the appropriation-in-aid, paying over to
the Consolidated Fund (corresponding to our Consolidated Revenue Fund)
any excess of receipts beyond the amount of the appropriation-in-aid. Par-
liamentary control is therefore maintained in a way that would not be possible
under our system of centralized expenditure payment, were receipts permitted
to be credited to appropriations to an extent greater than had been estimated
for purposes of calculating the net appropriations required. In British Colum-
bia the practice has been followed of crediting receipts to appropriations to
a greater extent than in the case of the Federal Government, but many classes
of sundry receipts, e.g., licences, fees and fines and penalties, are still credited
as Revenue. :

SECOND REPORT, 1959

The Form of the Public Accounts.

31. The Committee recommended in the Second Report, 1959 that the
Minister of Finance give further consideration to the form of the Public
Accounts. The Committee suggested that the task of printing the publication
might be distributed over a longer period by printing in a separate volume,
the financial review by the Deputy Minister and the certified financial state-
ments. The Committee noted that were the listings of salaries to commence
at $8,000 instead of $5,000 in Part II, “the Comptroller of the Treasury esti-
mates that the book would be substantially reduced and his work of pre-
paration expedited and meney saved”.

32. Current comment by the Auditor .General. The 1958-59 Public
Accounts continues to include Parts I and II in the same volume, but listings
of salaries were shortened by the inclusion of salaries of only $8,000 and over.

33. Should the Committee wish to make further suggestion to the Minister
of Finance regarding the shortening of the Public Accounts, it might wish to
consider suggesting the omission of travelling expenses incurred by employees
in the under $8,000 salary range, whose names would then not require to be
listed (almost 10 pages, each with three columns of names and amounts, are
used for the Agriculture Department alone, in the 1958-59 volume).

34. The Committee might also wish to consider further whether the desir-
ability of including, in each departmental section of 'the Public Accounts, the
payments made to each supplier and contractor to a total of $10,000 or over,
justifies the considerable cost that might be involved in the preparation of
these listings by the Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury.

35. We have requested from the Comptroller of the Treasury an estimate
of the cost of publishing the 1958-59 Public Accounts.

36. It is understood that this printing cost may be to the order of $50,000,
with the cost of preparing the material approximating $200,000, or a total of
about $250,000.

National Defence Expenditures on Education

37. The following observations are included under this heading, in the
Committee’s Second Report, 1959:
“ ..only where capital expenditures were incurred in constructing
schools—the total in the year approximately $5,400,000—is any dis-
closure made in the Public Accounts of expenditures by the Department
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of National Defence in providing educational facilities for children of
members of the Service Forces. On inquiry, your Committee was in-
formed that, including the $5,400,000 noted above, approximately
$11,500,000 was spent by the Department in the year, and that these
expenditures are distributed in the National Defence section of the
Public Accounts to 7 standard objects of expenditure: headings for
each of the Service Forces, such as Professional and Special Services—
travel and removal expenses, municipal or public utility services.

“Your Committee is of the opinion that it would be more inform-
ative were these Department of National Defence costs consolidated
and suitably disclosed. Whether this may be more efficiently done by
use of a special vote or otherwise is regarded as a matter for the
Treasury Board to consider.”

38. Current comment by the Auditor General. It is understood that the

Department proposes to consolidate its education costs and to give a summary
of such costs, under suitable headings, in the annual Defence White Paper,

commencing with that for 1959-60, in order to meet the suggestion made by
the Public Accounts Committee.

X

39. An unofficial summary of the 1958-59 expenses is:
Operating Costs:

Salaries’ of tedchers i il SRl ieg e ok s e o5 oge $5,412,000 '
Travel 'and transportdlion S et c. i lades < heons 210,000
(< vioTolod g1 h0) o] n (s i g X e R SR S s 515,000
3BT 37205 0 0 o) s RO A 2 il AR A TR AR 723,000
Rental of school buildings (Overseas) ............ 243,000
Non-resident school fees .... i viasiveesonocass 989,000
S IRIRICS: 5 s S eI BT o bR o s e s Mo s AL s a3 32,000
8,124,000
Bebssy . Provin@ial Grants <l oio i e cae v ai i S v 1,570,000
ot e@feratng TCoSE TN st S BT e i TG0 6,554,000
Capital Costs:
Construction ..... sy Ll i s aie o tehe 2,705,000
Eapital < Assistanees TG L BTN e s 206,000
ToralaCapital “Copta =, L el vo ik el Wi e 2,911,000
Fotal tEdueation Comtg’: . on v v milooun il 9,465,000

Non-Productive Payments.

40. The following observation was included under this heading in the

Committee’s Second Report, 1959:

“The attention of your Committee was drawn to a number of
charges where payments were legally made but without any public
benefits resulting. Among the cases were rents paid for space unoccupied
over extended periods. Your Committee appreciates that payments of
this type can never be wholly avoided but is of the opinion that some
publicity would be a useful safeguard. It is, therefore, recommended
that the Minister of Finance consider directing that, when the accounts

of a year include charges of the type now referred to, they be suitably
detailed in the Public Accounts.”

f
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41. Current comment by the Auditor General. No listing of non-productive
payments was included in the Public Accounts for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 1959. ;

Suggestion Award Board Expenditures.

42, The Committee’s Second Report, 1959, included the comment under
this heading that:

“The Auditor General noted that in recent years it has been annual
pratice to charge this vote [Miscellaneous minor or unforeseen ex-
penses] with expenditures incurred by an interdepartmental service
known as the Suggestion Award Board. The amount involved is not
large, being $21,859 in the year under review as compared with $16,992
in the previous year. However, your Committee is convinced that, in
principle, it impairs Parliament’s control of Consolidated Revenue Fund
when recurring administrative costs are financed by this vote and
recommends that, in future, costs of the Board be charged to some other
vote.”

43. Current comment by the Auditor General. In the Main Estimates,
1960-61, the wording of the Vote for salaries and contingencies of the Civil
Service Commission (Vote 65) is enlarged to provide for the payment of
“compensation in accordance with the Suggestion Award Plan of the Public
Service of Canada”. In the Details of the Estimate (page 2), an amount of
$32,000 is listed opposite a special object of expenditure heading, the effect
being that a ceiling is placed on the payments, subject to increase only with the
approval of the Treasury Board.

International Relief Payments.

44, The following is included under this heading in the Committee’s
Second Report, 1959:

“To establish the present state of affairs, your Committee recom-
mends that the Department of Finance decide whether the Government
has any financial responsibility with respect to the undistributed balance
held by the Red Cross Society.”

45. Current comment by the Auditor General. We understand that this
matter is under active consideration at the present time.

Agricultural Institute of Canada Publications.

46. The observations made under this heading in the Committee’s Report
include:

“Since 1934, the Department of Agriculture has been absorbing the
printing costs of certain publications of the Agricultural Institute of
Canada. The arrangement was then entered into because of the financial
problems of the society. In 1957-58, costs absorbed by the Department
exceeded $18,600, with the amount distributed over six votes of the
Department. ;

“It is long established practice to disclose, in the Estimates any
grant to a non-governmental body, but that has never been done in this
case. Moreover, it is generally regarded as being contrary to the public
interest indirectly to subsidize what is represented to the public as a
non-public publication. Your Committee is therefore of the opinion that
the existing situations should be reviewed and corrected.”
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47. Current comment by the Auditor General. In the 1960-61 Main
Estimates the wording of the annual Appropriation for the Information Division
of the Department of Agriculture was enlarged as follows:

Vote 2 Information Division including a grant in the amount of
$26,000 to the Agricultural Institute of Canada .............. $638,410.

This enlargement in the wording of the Vote would appear to remedy the
situation commented upon by the Committee, by bringing the grant under
Parliamentary control.

Service Forces Expenditures.

48. Tt was noted in the Committee’s Report that consideration had been
given to “some cases of extremely high transportation and removal expenses
incurred by the Service Forces which were decidedly unrealistic”, and the
following comment was recorded:

“It is recognized that those subject to military discipline necessarily
enjoy limited discretionary powers in raising queries with respect to
decisions of superiors but, financial consequences falling on taxpayers
generally, it is recommended that, simultaneously with the review of
regulations and practices, consideration be given to extending the financial
role of the civilians in the Department to prevent the recurrence of
similar extravagances in the future.”

49. Current comment by the Auditor General. One case which had given
rise to the comment by the Committee was that mentioned in the Auditor
General’s Report for 1957-58, where there had been reimbursement of the
$313 cost incurred in a short local removal. In a departmental review of
practices associated with removals, it was decided that effective financial
control would best be attained in the case of local moves, were a cash allowance
of a set sum established, to apply regardless of the distances travelled, the
rank of the claimant or other circumstances. The Minister of National Defence
informed the House of Commons on March 9, 1960 (Hansard, p. 1883) that
“under the new regulations servicemen are limited now to an allowance of $75
to cover these costs, but in exceptional circumstances authority may be
granted for the reimbursement of expenses in excess of this amount”.

50. Action has also been taken by the Department along the lines recom-
mended by the Committee, by arranging with the Chief Treasury Officer in
the Department that transportation and removal expense claims submitted to
his office for payment, and thought to be excessive or unreasonable, would be
held back for review by civilian administrative officers of the Department.

Post Office Savings Bank.

51. Comments were included in the Committee’s Second Report, 1959,
regarding the changes that had taken place over the past half-century in the
relationship between Post Office Savings Bank deposits and deposits in the
chartered banks, which might be expected to affect Post Office Savings Bank
policy. The Committee suggested that consideration be given to the present-day
role of the Post Office Savings Bany—although it indicated that it would be
unfortunate were service discontinued at the approximately 450 communities
that were wholly dependent on the Post Office for banking service.

52. Current comment by the Auditor General. We understand that the
f}tl)_st Office Department has continued throughout 1959 to give consideration to
1s matter.

R
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ORDER OF REFERENCE

Fripay, March 25, 1960.

Ordered.—That the name of Mr. Danforth be substituted for that of Mr.
Murphy on the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

TuESDAY, March 29, 1960.

Ordered.—That the name of Mr. Fisher be substituted -for that of Mr.
Regier on the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.
Attest

L.-J. RAYMOND,
Clerk of the House.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, March 30, 1960.
(3)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9.30 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Bissonnette, Campbell
(Lambton-Kent), Coates, Danforth, Deschatelets, Hales, Macdonald (Kings),
Macdonnell (Greenwood), Macnaughton, McGrath, MecGregor, Morissette,
Morton, Nugent, Pickersgill, Robichaud, Smith (Winnipeg North), Stefanson,
Tucker, Villeneuve and Winch.—23

In attendance: From the office of the Auditor General: Mr. A Maxwell
Henderson, Auditor General; Mr. Ian Stevenson, Assistant Auditor General.
Fraom the Post Office Department: Mr. G. A. Boyle, Deputy Postmaster General.
From the Department of Public Works: Mr. L. V. McGurran, Financial
Adviser.

The Committee resumed its consideration of the memorandum submitted
to it during the last meeting respecting “Suggestions and recommendations
made by the 1958 and 1959 Committees in their Reports to the House of Com-
mons, together with current comments by the Auditor General regarding
action taken by the departments concerned”.

The Auditor General read into the record certain information relative to
Second Class Mail—Costs and to Second Class Mail—Anomalies in Classification.

The witness also tabled a memorandum re: Cost Ascertainment Procedures
in the Post Office Department.

Agreed.—That the abovementioned memorandum be inpluded in the Com-
mittee’s Record; (See Appendix “A-1” to today’s proceedings).

Mr. Boyle, Deputy Postmaster General, was called and questione:d respect-
ing the subject-matter of the memorandum submitted today respecting second
class mail. He was then permitted to retire.

Mr. Henderson read into the record a memorandum respecting:

(1) Expenditures on construction projects in excess of anticipated
amounts; and

(2) Agreements with architects.
The witness was questioned thereon.

Mr. McGurran was called, questioned briefly and permitted to retire.

The Committee considered Paragraphs 21 to 30 of the memorandum sub-
mitted by the Auditor General on March 23rd, as they appear on Pages 35-37
In Appendix “A” to the Committee’s Proceedings No. 1.

The Auditor General tabled a memorandum re: Audit Office suggestions
for recording receipts for services rendered: (See Appendix “B-1” to today’s
Proceedings).
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On motion of Mr. Pickersgill, seconded by Mr. Bell (Carleton),

Resolved.—That the Committee continue, on April 6, 1960, with the points
referred to in the Auditor General’s memorandum dated March 23rd; and
that the hearing of the representatives of the Canada Council be postponed

until after the Easter recess.
At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.




EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, March 30, 1960

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. If it is possible, I wish
we could start at 9.30 prompt. I know that, because there are so many com-
mittees at work, the pressure is quite great, but let us try to start at 9.30,
if we can.

This morning we are to continue the examination of the memorandum,
submitted on March 23, by the Auditor General, with current comments,
regarding action taken by the departments concerned on the suggestions and
recommendations made by this committee in its last two reports to the House
of Commons.

At the last meeting a few questions were asked with regard to the Post
Office and also with regard to Public Works. I understand Mr. Henderson
has the answers with him. Perhaps you would like to hear those answers now.

First, we could have the answers with regard to the post office?

Mr. A. MAXWELL HENDERSON (Auditor General): Mr. Chairman and gentle-
men, at the last meeting the committee asked for up-to-date information
concerning two things: firstly, the post office’s procedure in allocating its
costs against the several classes of mail handled and services performed; and,
secondly, why the five anomolies listed under items 17 and 18 on page 3 of my
March 22 report still prevail.

I have the facts on this, and because there are a number of figures involved,
Mr. Chairman, I put them together in the form of a memorandum, which you
might care to have distributed.

There are two memoranda being distributed. The first is a sort of summary,
and the supporting one is the detail of the cost ascertainment methods, to which
reference is made in this item.

Taking the first point, second class mail costs, reference was made to the
cost of handling second class mail, estimated by the Post Office at $24 million
in 1956-57 and at $28 million in 1958-59, while revenues therefrom remained at
the $6 million level in both fiscal periods.

In 1956-57 total Post Office expenditure for all classes of mail and all
services was $140 million and total net revenues $145,800,000, giving a surplus
of $5,800,000. The second class mail expenditure estimate as stated was $24
million and the revenue $6 million. Thus 14.8 per cent of the expenditures and
slightly ever 3.6 per cent of revenues were attributed to second class mail.

In 1958-59, that is, two years later, total Post Office expenditure for all
classes of mail and all services was $157,800,000 and total revenues $157,500,000,
giving a deficit of $300,000. The second class mail estimated cost for that year
is stated to be $28 million with revenues still $6 million. Thus 15.2 per cent of
the expenditures and 3.3 per cent of revenues were attributed to second class
mail. .
In this two-year comparison, the Post Office, whose objective is to be self-
supporting, has moved from a surplus position of $5,800,000 in 1956-57 to a
deficit of $300,000 in 1958-59. This is due in large part to the deficit in handing
second class mail which, as already stated, is estimated to have increased by
some $4 million during the two-year period.
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The basis on which the costs were estimated by the Post Office engaged the

_attention of this committee in 1958 and again at its meeting on March 23 last.

I have discussed the procedures employed in making these estimates with
senior officials of the Post Office Department and find that it is the generally
accepted method of spot time study and costing usually employed to reach
estimated or rough costings of this type. This method, which is explained in a
general, way, is set out in a separate memorandum for the information of the
committee. It is employed in all large operations where an exact costing would
in fact necessitate interrupting the service while it is carried out. Laarge oper-
ations like public utilities and transportation services have the same problem—
they must make spot time and volume studies unless they are prepared to
interrupt their service and install an expensive cost accounting method to
obtain an exact costing of the one particular segment of their business.

In this instance, I think the Post Office’s estimated figures on second class
mail are sufficient to show clearly that not only is second class mail not paying
its way, but that it is being subsidized to a considerable extent by users of
other mail services.

The second point, on second class mail, related to anomalies in clasmﬁca’uon

With reference to the five anomalies listed under items 17 and 18 on
page 3, we have been advised by officials of the Post Office as follows:

1. That there are relatively few publications of a statistical or refer-
ence character which have been accorded the special reduced rates.
These are borderline cases which could fall within the orbit of an
opinion received from the Department of Justice years ago to the
effect that the words “or other news” should not receive any re-
stricted meaning. The rates in effect on publications of this type,
therefore, have not been disturbed.

2. That, because most daily and weekly newspapers were consistently
carrying advertising in excess of 60 per cent, the restrictions were
relaxed so that publications with advertising not in excess of 70 per
cent of the total space could be accepted as second class matter.

3. That the department interprets the phrase *‘bona fide subscriber”

to mean a person who has paid or undertaken in writing to pay
the regular subscription price of the publication and who is not
more than one year in arrears. Where publications are published by
fraternal organizations or other associations and the publication is
sent to each member of the group by virtue of his having paid a
membership fee, it is the practice to require that the publishers have
in their possession evidence that the members are aware that the
fee paid covers the subscription price.
In the case of a publication published by a religious organization, a
certified statement from the pastor or responsible member of the
church to the effect that he is authorized to pay the subscription
price on behalf of the member is accepted by the Department as
proof of a bona fide subscription.

4. That the words “provided the postal revenue was not adversely
affected” were presumably placed in the legislation for the purpose
of ensuring that the publishers would not be permitted to select a
mailing point with the object of obtaining a forty mile free area or
of evading a higher rate of postage which they would normally have
to pay. The department is satisfied that the few publishers enjoying
alternative points of mailing did not select these places primarily
with the above objects in view, and no action has been taken to
discontinue existing arrangements in this respect.

et Vi N
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5. That the concession to week-end supplements will be reviewed and,
if it is found that the four cent rate is a paying one, a regulation
will be enacted, under the authority vested in the Postmaster General
under the Post Office Act, to provide for the acceptance of week-
end supplements at the rate of four cents per pound; otherwise the
present concession will be withdrawn.

These were explanations furnished by the Post Office Department, Mr.
Chairman, with respect to the comment that there had been no change in the
existence of these anomalies since your 1958 report.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand, Mr. Henderson, you have prepared a ‘second
memo with regard to cost ascertainment procedures.

Mr. HENDERSON: That has been distributed to the members, and I would
be happy to read it, if you wish me to.

In effect, it shows the size and nature of this problem, and is intended to
supplement the comments I have made.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Could we have it printed as an appendix?
The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreeable to the committee?
—(See appendix “A-1")

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I have not had a chance, Mr. Chairman, to read that
particular memorandum, but does it set forth the extent to which this alleged
deficit in the carrying of second class mail applies to second class mail
originating in Canada, as opposed to second class mail originating abroad, and
which we in Canada must carry free, under the postal union arrangements?

Mr. HENDERSON: It is my understanding, Mr. Bell, that the study, as
indicated—because it was a time-volume study—was based on the movement
of mail through 236 post offices over a given two-week period. There is a refex:-
ence to that at the top of page 2, that that is the actual basis. On that ba_51s
the costing would include all the mail from foreign sources and otherwise
which would be passing through the post office at that time.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): But there is no breakdown given as between the
Canadian originating and foreign sources?

Mr. HENDERSON: No. You will notice, at the bottom of page 2, the costs
are set out as part of the $28 million. That is the nature of the costs, but not
the nature of the mail.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): The point I am endeavouring to.ma'lke is that we
should not attribute this deficit to Canadian publications enjoying the second
class rate. A very substantial part of it, as I think all of us know, arises
through the carrying free in Canada of American periodicals. They come to this
country in tremendous numbers. We are bound to carry t}lem, of course, but
we should not let any odium, if such it be, of this deficit apply entirely to
Canadian publications.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, if I could reply to Mr. Bell: I find the
costing employed in this case is based on originating mail in Canada as it
must be.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, is Mr. Boyle of the Post Office in the room?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAIRMAN: As he is, he might be the best witness.

Mr. Boyle, would you care to come up here and give us the opportunity
of asking you a few questions?

Mr. G. A. Bovre (Deputy Postmaster General): I hope they are not too
Ccomplicated.
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The CHAIRMAN: No, we are just trying to get information; that is all.
Mr. Boyle is Deputy Postmaster General—is that not right?
Mr. BoyLE: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps he is the best qualified person, at the moment, to
reply to any questions the Committee may have.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Mr. Chairman, could I ask a very simple question?
I do not think I grasp yet the reason for this very substantial change for the
worse. That leads me to ask whether it would be possible—because I confess
I cannot grasp them at first sight—for these memoranda to be in our hands
the day before the meeting, so that we could have a chance to study them.

Can Mr. Boyle explain to us—and it may be in here, but I have not
grasped it yet—what actually is the difference? Are we giving more service,
or what causes the several million dollars’ worsening in the last two years?

Mr. BoyLE: This cost ascertainment, sir, takes care of all classes of mail.
We get a costing of all classes of mail. We get a separate amount for newspapers
and periodicals. The increase in cost of second class mail, or any class of mail,
is in great part, due to increased expenses of the Post Office Department
generally.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, could I ask Mr. Boyle a question?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Winch?

Mr. WincH: I am interested in this first memorandum, in the reply to the
anomaly which we call No. 5, that is relative to the week-end supplements.

I gather from the memorandum we have just received that the Post Office
Department agrees with the contention of the Auditor General that the granting
of a 4-cent rate was not according to statutory authority and, therefore, the Post
Office Department is going to review the entire situation; and if they find the
4-cent rate is a paying one, then they are going to bring it within the statute
by an amending regulation.

The question I would like to ask is this: if it is found the 4-cent rate
is not a paying one but that, let us say, a 5 or 6-cent rate was a paying one,
then is there an inference here that a regulation might be brought in only at
the increased rate? Is that a fair assumption?

Mr. BoyLE: Yes, that is right, with regard to the increased rate.

Mr. WincH: But the basic principle on supplements is that it is going to
be a paying proposition or it will not be raised?

Mr. BoyrLe: That is right.

Mr. PickerSGILL: There is a point arising out of Mr. Bell’s question I
would like to ask Mr. Boyle about, and I might preface it by saying that in
asking it my face is a little red because I was once Acting Postmaster General
for nearly a year. However, I had never before understood that we have reci-
procity under the postal union arrangements in carrying second class mail.
Does that mean that the Canadian post office derives no revenue from carrying

" Time magazine or any of these other American periodicals which are posted

in the United States, and we in Canada have to carry all these United States
publications free in exchange for getting all the vast volume of magazines in
the United States carried free? If so, this is the most one-sided bargaining
arrangement we have ever entered into. It involves a huge subsidy to American

periodicals as opposed to Cahadian periodicals in Canada. I never appreciated
this before.

Mr. BoyLE: I might say we operate between Canada and the United States
b}’ way of a special treaty, or convention as we call it. That convention was
signed in 1922. It provides that you mail in Canada to the United States at your
domestic rates and the United States patrons mail to Canada at their domestic
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rates, with a proviso that in the case of second class mail it is at a little higher
rate from the United States to Canada than from Canada to the United States.
That is an exception in the convention.

Mr. PickRERSGILL: Perhaps I might interrupt. And the postage goes to the
country of origin?

Mr. BoyLE: Yes.
Mr. PIcKERSGILL: The total amount?
Mr. BoyLE: Yes.

Mr. PickERSGILL: There is no division of the spoils?
Mr. BoyLE: No.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): A higher rate goes to the United States.
Mr. PickersciLL: It is fantastic.

Mr. BoyLE: Under this it is more economical for a United States publisher
to mail in Canada than it is to mail in the United States because of the point
I mentioned a moment ago. The result is most of the larger publications in
the United States send their publication by freight or express to designated
places in Canada. The Canadian post offices designates where they will take
them and they are put in the mail in Canada and Canada receives postage
from those mailings. That includes, as I say, the larger United States pub-
lications. I do not have before me a list. I was a spectator here and did not
bring up any statistics. The revenue received by Canada because of these
mailings, in round figures, is $800,000.

Mr. MacpoNaLD (Kings): My question is based on an item in the memo-
randum re cost which reads: “if a proper cost accounting system were set-up”.
I presume that the Post Office department has a cost accounting system,.and
I judge from Mr. Henderson’s remarks that the system is inadequate or does
not go far enough.

Mr. HENDERSON: The post office has a cost accounting system as such in
respect of its entire operations. It would have to have it; but when it comes
to ascertaining the cost of some particular segment, in this case second class
mail with all the ramifications described in the memorandum, the accepted
way of going about it—and this is not peculiar to the post office, but pertains
as well to public utilities, transportation companies and so on—is to have
a time study over a certain period. In this case they look the second class
mail over 236 points in a week, and they actually have to hold up the mail
in order to do it. Possibly that is a fair basis for determining the size of
the problem. It does not presume to be accurate, but it gives enough of .the
figure to show there is a danger point here which needs to be remed1efi.
In this case they have arrived at these round figures for second class mail,
and I showed how the whole of the $28 million was made up.

Mr. MACDONNELL: I am not sure I understood that. I understood you to
say that the great change in the result of second class mail was ;ust due to a
general rise in cost. I want to be sure that is what you really intended.

Mr. BoyLe: That is what I really intended. What I mean i's this. If you
take one expenditure, for instance, movement of mails by trains and so on,
all transportation costs have gone up tremendously as have the costs of
transportation for everybody in the last three years. There are, for example,
the extra payments to the railways determined by the board of transport
commissioners and so on. Now, we take that transportatlon' cost total and
take second class matter and we apportion the cost of handling the_ number
of pounds of second class matter, and it increases because .of the increased
transportation and other costs all across the board.
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Mr. NugeNT: I was not quite sure in respect of Mr. Henderson’s last
remark to Mr. Bell on the question of the cost of second class mail. I believe
Mr. Henderson said it was for mail originating in Canada only. I am wonder-
ing whether or not it is for all second class mail?

Mr. HENDERSON: The cost of this particular study—the $28 million—was
based on mail at the originating point, and that is within Canada. Is that
correct, Mr. Boyle?

Mr. BoyrLe: Partly. I think we might say, however, that it includes all
second class matter handled in the Canadian mails during the period of the
tests. That is projected for the year—all second class matter transmitted in
Canada during the period of the test.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): So it includes mail originating abroad for which
the foreign country alone receives the revenue?

Mr. BoyLE: Yes.

Mr. NuGeNT: Is there any way of knowing what percentage of that second
class mail originated in Canada and what part originated abroad?

Mr. BoyLE: We could do that. Perhaps I should say this. I mentioned a
treaty with the United States; that treaty governs the rate on newspapers
mailed in the United States to Canada and in Canada to the United States.
We are presently renegotiating that. You can perhaps understand that I cannot
say what we hope to get in that treaty, but there will be in that revision of
the treaty, obviously, a revision of the rates.

To answer the second question, chartered accountants can do almost
anything you ask them. We could segregate—

Mr. PIickERSGILL: That is a very dubious testimonial.

Mr. BovLE: We could segregate, for instance, the United States publica-
tions, pinpoint them and get the cost of them. We could do that in respect of
the United States as against our other foreign publications. That can be done.

However, we do not change our rates often, as most of you know. If there were -

an indication from parliament that they wanted to get this information,
or if it were indicated they were going to change the rates on second class
matter, we could get it. The present system which has been described by
Mr. Henderson in his memorandum on cost ascertainment costs us $200,000
every three years. That is why we do it every three years. We did do it
every year, but felt, why spend $200,000 every year if you do not need the
information immediately. If we did a cost ascertainment every year, to get
the figure would probably cost us $225,000 a year because we try to do it
by getting our employees to make the checks and counts and do everything
within their time so far as we can. It requires a terrific number of man-
hours. If we had to do it every year I think it is obvious it would cost more.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Boyle, I am trying to be absolutely fair in this regard,
especially to the post office. I understand part, if not all, of your trouble is
due to the fact that you are contained within the Post Office Act, and the
rates and regulations established I believe in 1911, or a long time ago; and
that within those powers you do the best you can.

Mr. BovLE: Yes.

The CHarMAN: If the rates are too low or your authority is not big enough,
then the fault is not with you, but lies where?

Mr. Boyre: With parliament.
The CHAIRMAN: I am sorry that you had to say so.

Mr_. PickERrsGILL: There are a couple of questions I would like to put about
the ma1} from the United States. I take it that we get no revenue on a certain
proportion of that mail we get, because it is posted in the United States?

i S
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Mr. BoyLE: Yes.

Mr. P1cKERSGILL: And in another proportion we get about $800,000 because
they shipped it up here by freight or some other way and posted it in Canada.
Have you any rough notion what the volume is on the one as compared with
the other? That is, those posted in the United States on which we get nothing
and those posted in Canada on which we get $800,0007?

Mr. BoyLE: I do not have statistics because we have not taken statistics.
It is a very dangerous thing to make a guess. It is a small proportion of the
total. The volume of United States newspapers mailed in the United States to
Canada is a small proportion of the total poundage we are discussing in respect
of the total poundage of second class mail carried in Canada.

Mr. PickersGILL: Could you give me a name of some very well known
periodical posted in the United States, and another well known one posted
in Canada, for example.

Mr. BoyLE: Perhaps the most generally known one is Life. It is mailed in
Canada. The Saturday Evening Post is mailed in Canada as also Good House-
keeping.

Mr. MAcDONNELL: In the past year has there been any substantial change
in the relative amount posted in the United States and in Canada?

Mr. BoyLE: In the rate?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: In the volume.

Mr. BoyLE: The volume from the United States to Canada is increasing
yearly.

Mr. PrckersGILL: Actually, it is better for us to have it posted in Canada
because we only lose a certain amount, whereas we lose it all if posted in
the United States.

Mr. BoYLe: Yes.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: What relation does this $800,000 which you estimate
you get from the United States periodicals posted in Canada bear to the total
revenue from second class mail?

Mr. BoyLE: Well, as I said the $800,000 is from mailing in Canada of
United States publications and our total postage for all second class matter
mailed in Canada is $6 million.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: It is between one-seventh and one-eighth, about 12 per
cent—something like that?

Mr. BoyLe: That is right.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: So that about 12 per cent of the loss—if that is the right
word to apply to it—is on carrying American periodicals posted in Canada.
Then we lose the total amount of whatever it costs to carry those that are
posted in the United States. That would be a correct statement?

Mr. BoyLE: That is an assumption, but a natural one. However, this is
complicated. It is not beyond you people, but it is complicated inasmuch as in
the case of handling the United States publications we can—by virtue of the
place where we get them, by virtue of our transportation costs and by virtue
of the volume of that mail—conceivably handle those possibly at a little less
than a Canadian publication.

Mr. WiNcH: If Canada should decide to increase the secondtclass rate,
would there not be a danger those publications would prefer to mail from the
United States, instead of mailing from Canada?

Mr. BovLE: Yes, you always have that problem.

Mr. WincH: Also, if the rate were increased, would not the Canadian
public be subsidising the foreign publications that much more?

J
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Mr. BoyLE: That is a reasonable assumption.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Boyle, is not the whole crux of this matter to be
found in paragraph 4 of the memorandum headed ‘“Notes requested by the
committee on matters related to the Post Office Department”?

May I just read it to refresh your mind? It says:

In this two-year comparison, the Post Office, whose objective is
to be self-supporting, has moved from a surplus position of $5,800,000
in 1956-57 to a deficit of $300,000 in 1958-59. This is due in large part
to the deficit in handling second-class mail which, as already stated, is
estimated to have increased by some $4 million during the two-year
period.

Is that not the problem?

Mr. BoyLE: That is right.
The CHAIRMAN: Have you any suggestions to make?

Mr. BoyLE: No. You cannot clear the situation as regards revenue unless
you change the rates.

Mr. MorToN: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if Mr. Boyle would have any idea
of the increase in rates which would be necessary to put it on a paying basis?

Mr. BoyLE: You are asking me a difficult question because the rates struc-
ture is such that there are different rates for different classes of periodicals.
Frankly, I could not say, offhand, what we would have to suggest.

Mr. MorToN: What I was wondering was this: it is true the premise
seems to put the Post Office on a paying basis, but is there not some point
at which you may limit the service which the Post Office should also give to
the country if you increase your rates; and, perhaps, at which point it would
be dangerous to increase the rates for the sake of the efficiency of the service?

Have you any comment on that?

Mr. BoyLE: In commenting on that, I would like to go back to a remark
of the chairman a few minutes ago. Parliament decided what was to be done
about newspapers and periodicals. The section of the act under which we deter-
mine today whether a newspaper or periodical is entitled to the statutory
privilege is a clause which was in the act shortly after confederation. I just
do not know the year, but it has been the same clause in there all these years.

I wanted to get in this little remark. We appreciate what the Auditor
General has said in his remarks. The relationships between our officers are
100 per cent. But the interpretation of that clause in the act is a most difficult
one. I would say you could have ten people in this room, who are lawyers,
who would give you a different interpretation on a particular clause.

Mr. WincH: That would not be anything new at all.

Mr. BoyLE: To come to your point, the point I am making is that parliament
decided long ago—and up to now they have maintained that view—that the
dissemination of news and current events should be encouraged for the building
.of national character. So they provided what we grant privileged rates for
this class of mail; and that is why we have the deficit.

Mr. WincH: In other words, then, Mr. Boyle, you are saying it was a
policy decision of a past parliament that decided first-class mail should
subsidize second-class mail, and it is not the responsibility of the Post Office
Department?

Mr. BovyLE: The answer is “all parliaments,” because this legislation has
been before a number of parliaments, and each parliament has apparently taken
the same view.

Mr. WincH: It has only been one in the last seven years?

Mr. BoyLE: Yes.
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Mr. BELL (Carleton): Right Aback to confederation?
Mr. BoyLE: Yes.

Mr. P1ckERSGILL: I do not think parliament ever decided first-class mail
would subsidize second-class mail.

Mr. WiNcH: By establishing the rates it did that?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: I happen to know a good deal about it. We found a
4-cent rate was losing money on first-class mail, and we raised the rate to
5 cents. Up to now at 5 cents it has not lost money, but you could hardly have
made it 4% cents; and it was not done for the purpose of subsidizing some
other class of mail, but was done to make first-class mail self-supporting.

It is getting nearer and nearer to the danger point all the time, from what
Mr. Boyle tells us about the increase in transportation costs.

Mr. WincH: That is what we are saying.

The CHAIRMAN: I wonder if we have not discussed this sufficiently this
morning. We will be coming back to the same subject later on, when we
consider the Auditor General’s report.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Is this “one horse, one rabbit” arrangement sacred?
Has the astonishing figure we have got this morning ever been discussed before
parliament, or is that something that may have arisen?

The CHAIRMAN: We have referred to it in two of our reports—in 1958
and 1959. Of course, the policy decision is not up to us.

~ Mr. HENDERSON: I should like to make an observation, Mr. Chairman, if
I may.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. HENDERSON: As I understand it, the Post Office has been turning in
a surplus for some years, and had a notable one of $5,800,000 two years ago.
In 1957-58 it ran into the red, $300,000, and that obtained through 1958-59.

With figures of this size, a deficit of $300,000 is getting rather close to the
break-even point, and it would be within the competence, I would hope, of
the Post Office Department—with, perhaps some assistance from this com-
mittee—to get it back on a break-even level before large deficits begin to
accumulate.

Mr. PIckeERsGILL: I would like to take advantage of the presence here this
morning of the Deputy Postmaster General, to ask a question that is not really
related to this matter, but which is related to third-class mail.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Pickersgill?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Could the Deputy Postmaster General say whether he
thinks the rates being paid for third-class mail are paying for the carriage
of third-class mail?

Mr. BoyLE: They are today, just about.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: It does Mot seem to me there can be public interest in
subsidizing third-class mail. This is nothing else but advertising, and surely
it should pay its way and not a nickel should be paid by the taxpayel"?

I can see a real public interest in the dissemination of news and informa-
tion, but in the dissemination of pure advertising for one person or another,
if it is not being paid for it ought to be.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): So say we all.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: This is a new experience for me, Mr. Chairman, to have
e€verybody agree with me. X

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Might we have an indication from Mr. Boyle as to

what the cost may be of carrying certain second-lass mail which, as a matter
of national policy, we have always carried completely free of charge? One

\
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class of mail that comes to my mind is the weekly newspapers, rural news-
papers, distributed within a radius of twenty miles of the place of publication.
Ever since confederation, I think, we have carried them completely free of
charge, as a matter of national policy and encouragement. Is there any sig-
nificant factor involved?

Mr. BoyLE: No, it is insignificant. Naturally, these are light in weight.
They are mailed in the smaller places. The law stipulates they must be mailed
in places having a population of less than 10,000 and distributed within 40
miles. Our costs for local distribution in those areas are not great, and the
volume is not great. So the carrying cost of this compared to the total costs
here is insignificant.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Are there any other publications which we carry
completely without charge?

Mr. BoyLE: No.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): The rural weeklies are the only ones?
Mr. BoyLE: That is right.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: And the Canada Gazette.

Mr. DANFORTH: I would like to comment on second-class mail distributed
to form national character. I wonder how the distribution of American
magazines could be interpreted as taking part in the forming of national
character.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that a question of fact or of opinion?

Mr. MAcpoNALD (Kings): Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask Mr. Boyle
how large his cost accounting department or division is; and whether he is
satisfied it is sufficiently large to look into all these possible problems in
reducing expenditure. ;

Mr. BoyLE: It is sufficiently large to make a very accurate costing during
the periods we have them now, every three years. It is not sufficiently large
to undertake the studies to determine, for example, what proportion of the
total newspaper volume is represented by United States publications. If you go
into refinements, our staff would have to be increased.

Perhaps the best illustration of this is, to get these costs involves one ton
of forms printed on both sides. If you do that four times a year you have four
tons of forms. If you do it every month, you have more forms.

It is obvious that if we go into refinements or have more frequent checks,
we have to have more staff and greater cost. For the moment, we are satisfied
our staff is sufficient to do it accurately.

Mr. BeecH: Someone said that first class mail was not subsidizing the
second class mail. If that is the case, it must have some effect on the service of
the first class mail. I see postmen coming around, with their bags on their backs,
and it must tie up deliveries to such an extent that where we are getting only
one delivery a day now we could get two, if it was not for those packages
~ they have to carry around.

The CrAIRMAN: Did you want a reply Mr. Beech?

Mr. Beecu: I am wondering what effect the delivery of this second class
mail has on the first class service.

Mr. BoyLEe: It does not delay first class mail because we have to gear our
letter carrier distribution so that the postman gets there promptly with the
letters. If he has more volume than he can handle, his route would have to be
shortened so that he could get his letters delivered on time. We would have tc
re-arrange his walk. However, it does not delay first class mail.

Mr. BE.ECH: Well, I know that my delivery is two or three hours late on
some mornings, all because of the load they have to carry.

'
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Mr. MorToN: Along that line, I notice in the city of Toronto the pick up
from the local boxes on the street are such and such, and I presume that is an
effort to cut down the cost and, indirectly, it would be because of the increased
subsidy.

Mr. BoyLE: No, that is not the reason. The curtailment in Toronto—and
this applies in other cities as well—is due to the fact that our transportation
costs are going up very rapidly. Therefore, we examined the situation, and the
curtailment is made in regard to the collection of boxes at a given time which,
when the truck arrives from the post office, will not result in the mail being
expedited. In other words, it is late in the evening after the dispatches or a
certain time during the day when it will not get a dispatch. But this relates
to the high cost of transportation and has no relation to the subject which
we are discussing.

The CrAIRMAN: The second question related to the Department of Public
Works and, in particular, to expenditures on construction projects in excess of
anticipated amounts.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, I put some notes together, as requested by
the committee, on this point and, again, because of the number of figures and
so forth we have had it mimeographed and will distribute copies before I

proceed.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it the desire of the committee that this should be read
word for word? To my way of thinking, it is quite a good answer. It is a
complete answer to the questions raised.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): It is a very important matter.
Mr. PickERSGILL: I think it would be very desirable to have it read, sir.

Mr. HENDERSON: Mr. Chairman, the first point is an explanation of the
excesses. You, will recall that two cases were cited in the March 22 memorandum.
The first is as follows:

(1) At the time the estimate of 1958-59 expenditure was made (in
September 1957) it was the expectation that the expenditure on the
testing laboratory for the Department of Public Works would
amount to $970,000 in 1957-58, leaving only $300,000 to complete
the project in 1958-59. However, the contractor succeeded in carrying
the work only to the point where, by the end of 1957-58, expendi-
tures of $755,000 had been incurred in that year. The expenditures
left to be incurred in 1958-59 to complete the project, therefore,
were $215,000 more than had been estimated for that purpose. The
result was that the 1958-59 expenditures—which otherwise would
have exceeded the $300,000 anticipated amount by only $8,000—did,
in fact, exceed that amount by $223,000 and totalled $523,000.

Then, by way of a footnote:

The estimated cost of this project when initiated in August 1956
was $1,353,000. The total cost when completed, was $1,422,000.‘The
excess of $69,000 was largely caused by extras necessitated by functional
changes required by Treasury board.

(2) The estimate of the 1958-59 expenditure on the public building in
Kingston had also been made up in September 1957. Althoug,h the
contract termination date was September 1958, it was not considered
possible that the job could be completed on schedule, and the fqrecast
for 1958-59 expenditures was accordingly only $750,000, lea\(lng an
anticipated $300 000 balance for payment in 1959-60. In tl_u§ case
the contractor had proceeded more quickly than had been antl'Clpated
when the estimate was prepared, and the building was virtually

22831-2—2
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completed in 1958-59, with expenditures in that year reaching a
total of $1,006,000. The estimated cost of this project when initiated
was $1,310,000. The total cost to the end of 1958-59 was $1,635,000.
The excess of $325,000 was due primarily to lack of competition.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Perhaps the Auditor General could explain a little
more fully in regard to what lack of competition means.

Mr. HENDERSON: I suspect that lack of competition—and I had it confirmed
with -the officials of Public Works—is a case where, when the tenders are
called, it develops that there are only two available for the job and, perhaps,
one retreats, leaving only one. It is a matter of supply and demand.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: In such a case is it not a custom to call for new tenders,
when the difference is so high?

Mr. HENDERSON: That, I believe, has been the practice of the Department
of Public Works, as I understand it. But again there are times when they have
to use their best business judgment. Possibly the building hds to be proceeded
with notwithstanding, and these factors come into play.

In this particular case I think perhaps the estimating could have been
a little more accurate. Again, in the estimating of these large jobs, there is
naturally an area for error, but the principal reason of this was lack of
competition.

2 Mr. PICKERSGILL: Was the contract price very substantially above the
estimate? I take it this was a contract?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. It was about $300,000 over.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: What I am trying to get at is what was the successful
bid?

Mr. HENDERSON: I do not think we have that information. No, we do not
have that here.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: That would seem to be very relevant. What the depart-
ment estimated is one thing and what the contractor did is another thing, and
if this cost $325,000 more than the contractor’s bid, I would think we would
want to take another look at it. But if the bid was substantially about
what it is going to amount to, it is hardly a matter for the public accounts
committee.

The other thing that strikes me as being odd is the time at which these
tenders appear to have been called. It was a time late in 1957 or the beginning
of 1958, when one would have thought there would have been a super abund-
ance of tenders. I really think that as far as the Auditor General is concerned
there is a very satisfactory explanation, but I do not think there is as far
as we are concerned. We would like to know what the tender was, how many
tenderers there were, and why there were so few at that particular date
because that was a time at the end of 1957 or the beginning of 1958. It says
the estimates were made in September, 1957. At that time people were supposed
- to be looking for work.

Mr. WincH: Is there anyone from the Department of Public Works present
who would be able to give us that information?

Mr. HENDERSON: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman.

The CuHAIRMAN: Is there anyone here from the Department of Public
Works who could answer this question?

We have with us Mr. L. V. McGurran, chief of financial services.

Mr. L. V. McGURRAN (Financial Adviser, Financial services, Department

of P;Ablic Works): Mr. Chairman, we compile the estimates for the depart-
ment, '
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Mr. P1cKERSGILL: I have two or three questions. Were tenders called?

Mr. McGURRAN: Yes.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: How many tenderers were there?

Mr. McGURRAN: I did not bring any details with me. This estimate of
the cost of the job was made two years before the tenders were called. It was
the estimate used when treasury board gave approval for the consultant. The
estimate of cost was made two years before the contract was tendered. That
would make it in 1955.

Mr. HALES: Was the contract let on the basis of two year old estimates.

Mr. McGugrraN: I would say yes. It was an estimate made at the early
stages of the planning. The figure given here was at the time we had a bare
outline of the space and when the consultant was appointed, and during the
intervening period cost of construction increased. But the job was tendered
and the contract awarded on the basis of the original estimate.

Mr. HaLes: Do you not think that estimates should be more recent than
that?

Mr. McGuURRAN: It would have been looked at again. As I say, this figure
was made in 1955 and, before tenders would be called, the department would
normally look again at a revised cost estimate of the project. I do not have
that information here. For example, in this case they had an estimate two
years ago, and when they were ready to call tenders they would normally see
what it was going to cost.

Mr. WincH: Why was it not done in this case?

Mr. McGuURRAN: I do not say it was not done. I do not have information
here of the revised cost after all the work was received.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you could obtam that information for the next
meeting.

- Mr. PICKERSGILL: It might be useful if we recorded a half a dozen questions
which we would like to have answered. In this way the witness would be able
to obtain all the information.

If I could proceed with questions, I would like to ask what the date was
of the latest departmental estimate, and what was it; what was the date on
which tenders were called, if they were called; how many tenders were
received; what was the amount of the successful tender; and what was the
date on which construction started.

Mr. BeELL (Carleton): Would not the hon. gentleman wish to have the
amount of all tenders?

Mr. PickERSGILL: Well, those are the questions in which I am. interested.

Mr. WincH: And what was the amount of extras granted over and above
the original tender?

Mr. PicrersGIiLL: If any.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: And why was there a lack of competition at this time
of the year? Can you give any reason for that.

Mr. McGuURRrAN: If I had the number of tenders I could answer that, but
it will show up when I bring the list of tenders.

Mr. MacponALD (Kings): It seems fairly obvious that if, as the w1tness has
said, the estimates were made in 1955, any contractor, with any experience at
all, would certainly not want to bid on a cost estimate based on costs two

or three years earlier.
Mr. McGURRAN: This figure was taken during the earliest planning stages.
The CHAIRMAN: But you will bring the necessary information.
22831-2—92%
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Mr. MacponNNELL: I would like to suggest, Mr. Chairman, that when civil
servants come before a committee they should be asked to bring all the neces-
sary information. As it is now, we are wasting time.

The CHAIRMAN: This gentleman did not expect to be called, nor did Mr.
Boyle. They were just sitting in because their departments were under discus-
sion. It is simply through courtesy that they are replying.

Mr. NugenT: I think it would be helpful if we had all the tenders on
that and, perhaps, some information on how the invitations to tender were
given out.

Mr. VILLENEUVE: We should have all the details about that.

Mr. HENDERSON: I would now continue with my notes.

2. Excesses of expenditure over anticipated amounts in any fiscal year
are usually due to circumstances similar to those noted above. And we are
referring not to the specific cases but to the machinery of the annual votes
and so on.

It is understood that the department feels that there would be dis-
advantages in placing a limitation on the amount by which expend-
itures on an individual project could, with the approval of the
treasury board, be increased through the use of transfers from
amounts already authorized for other projects within the same
appropriation. To limit the present flexibility could result in placing
the department in the position of having to discontinue work on a
construction project until a supplementary appropriation had been
provided by parliament.

3. Following discussions with the department, we understand that it is
prepared to provide explanations for publication in the public
accounts, in those cases where expenditures on construction projects
had exceeded anticipated amounts as detailed in the estimates. It
follows that the report of the Auditor General would direct attention
to cases which he considers should be brought to the notice of
parliament. ¥

I would like to mention at this point that this proposal by the department
would furnish details of the increases, with an appropriate description of them,
in the public accounts; but this is, so to speak, after the event as distinct from
the parliamentary control that would exist if they had to go before the event.
However, to disclose it after the event is better than nothing.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Just before we go on. If, in fact, in these two
instances, there had been the type of percentage such as you suggested at
our last meeting, work would have had to stop on the two projects.

‘Mr. HENDERSON: Yes, they both would have exceeded the rate I mentioned.

Mr. BeELL (Carleton): And the net effect would have been to stop the work.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: And increase the total cost.

Mr. HENDERSON: But, as you see from the two examples, it was the falling
of the figures between the annual figures that caused it.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Is not the degree of control presently exercised over
expenditures by the Department of Public Works greater than that exercised
over other departments of government?

Mr. HENDERSON: I do not know.
Mr. PrckeRsSGILL: I know it is. In the Department of Transport they have
a vote, or two or three votes, that cover the whole country. They can transfer

from one pro;‘ect to another, fror. the Yukon to Labrador; but in the Depart-
ment of Public Works they can only transfer within the province. As a matter
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of fact, we had an extremely embarrassing experience with respect to a public
building in Regina, I think, where we had to scrounge around and use the
unforeseen vote to keep work going. It looked as though it would have to be
stopped in the middle of winter when work was badly needed, and when it
would have beeen impossible to go in to parliament and interrupt other
important proceedings to get a supplementary estimate.

There is no doubt that we would be unjust if we introduced this kind of
rigidity. As I said the other day, the opposition likes to suggest that there be
more parliamentary control. If we did not introduce this rigidity I am sure it
would lose the taxpayers millions of dollars.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): And we would be widening the gap between the
control exercised over the Department of Public Works as opposed to other
departments of government. I think the suggestion made that there be listing in
the public accounts of full information, and such transfers of funds, is a good
thing. Actually I think the information could be obtained from a study of the
public accounts because, as I remember, in the public accounts the original
allotments are shown as opposed to the actual expenditures, and it can be
dug up. But I think it would be most helpful in a parliamentary review of the
matter if it could be actually set out so we could all see it very readily without
getting into a mathematical calculation.

Mr. P1cKERSGILL: And that would have, I would expect, a most salutary
effect on the department because no department would like to have to have
this item paid, and they would be watching it.

Mr. HENDERSON: There would be a parenthetical note against the item.
There would not be too many of them, if you look at the items.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think that is a satisfactory arrangement.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Is it fair that this much too severe restriction should be
placed on the Department of Public Works as against other departments? I
have not got an opinion. I have only understood that.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I do not think the Department of Public Works has
complained at all.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Well—

Mr. MorTON: I would not think, Mr. Chairman, the idea was to reduce the
control, but rather to increase the control of other departments.

The CHATRMAN: No. 4.

Mr. HENDERSON: This was another thing the committee raised, and your
Questions seemed to break down into three main branches,—when t_h.ese agree-
ments were entered into, the basis of fees paid and the responsibility resting
on architects.

4. When entered into. The department does the planning and carries
out the supervision for buildings expected to cost nqt more 'than
about $250,000 and engages outside architects for buildings likely
to involve expenditure beyond this amount. Occasmn_ally, ho_wever,
outside architects will be engaged for smaller buildings w.hlle the
departmental staff will sometimes be used for the planning and
supervision of buildings costing in excess of $250,000. The depart-
ment lacks the staff to cope with very large buildings or W}th an
abnormal number of building starts in any one year. In view qf
the substantial variation in the work load from year to year, it
feels that there would not be justification for maintair}ing staff at
the level that would be necessary to deal with maximum "f’ork
loads. The department has informed us that of the building projects
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initiated in 1958-59 approximately 75% were to be planned and
supervised by the department, representing about 339% of the
estimated amount of money to be involved.

Mr. DESCHATELETS: The heading “Agreement with architects”. Was there
any consultation with the provincial associations before coming to this under-
standing that only for buildings in excess of $250,000 we would use an outside
architect?

Mr. HENDERSON: I think, sir, we would have to refer that question to
officials of the Public Works department as to whether they consulted the
architects associations. This, as I understand it, is their own yardstick, where
they draw the line.

5. - Basis of fees paid. Our understanding is that the scale of minimum
professional architects’ fees recommended to members of the Ontario
association ranges from 5% to 6% on large plain buildings, 7% on
hospitals and scientific and research laboratories, to as high as 8%
and 109 on single and multiple residential units. These rates are
based on the cost of the job excluding architects’ and engineering
consultants’ fees and the salary of the clerk of works. The architect’s
services include, among other things, the execution and furnishing
of the drawings and specifications to the contractor, general super-
vision of the work, and the certification of accounts for payment.

This, gentlemen, is the basis on which it is carried out in a commercial
or private business that we were requested to ascertain.

The department feels that the rates allowed on government con-
struction projects should be lower than those paid on commercial projects
because, when decision has been reached to construct a building, a
preliminary plan study of space requirements is made by the depart-
ment, with the architect being supplied with a report on the results of
the study. Moreover, it is .the general practice of the department to
require architects to pay engineering consultants’ fees and the salaries
of clerk of works.

That is to say, to pay it out of the fee that they get.

6. The final point, responsibility resting on architects.

In the department’s view there is no difference bewteen the legal
responsibility, to render satisfactory service, resting on an architect

engaged on a government project and one engaged on a commercial
project.

That completed our notes, Mr. Chairman, on the point.

Mr. McGRATH: A question for the next hearing. On what basis are architects
chosen? Is there any competition somewhat similar to a tender system by
which architects are chosen by the department?

Mr. Henderson: Mr. McGrath, that would be for the department to speak
to, I _think, but I did form the general impression that they seek to be just
as fair as possible in spreading the business around.

.Mr. McGraTH: Can we go into this question at the next hearing, Mr.
Chairman?

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, this is the kind of question one would

have anticipated coming from a member of the opposition rather than a
member supporting the government.
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The CHAIRMAN: Well, gentlemen, I am very anxious to get on to the
next item if we possibly can. We will be coming back to this later on in our
hearings after the Easter recess. Could we go now to paragraphs 21 to 30,
“Treatment of Receipts for Services Rendered”?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: I am sorry, I did not hear it.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraphs 21 to 30, and the memorandum prepared on
receipts for services rendered.

Mr. HENDERSON: This was referred to on page 4 of the March 23 progress
report which was submitted to this committee at the last meeting. We quoted
the comments of this committee in its 1958 report wherein it recommended that
the Minister of Finance cause a review to be made of vote structures to provide
for the needs of servicing departments. There are some distinguishing charac-
teristics in the services provided, and there was to be a fact finding study of
administrative and parliamentary needs and that it would be desirable if an
officer of the Auditor General were to participate.

Our comment commences with the fact that I found that the Auditor
General had not been informed of any fact finding study planned or made
by the Department of Finance regarding this matter although we had noted
some changes in the recording of receipts in the 1960-61 estimates.

The point at issue here, if I can just conclude very briefly, Mr. Chairman,
is the fact that, again, it is the question of parliamentary control; and as I
would sum it up after going through the massive notes that I have inflicted
on you in this report, if the appropriation is in a net amount it is a question
of disclosing what the gross amount is and what the receipts are likely to be.
So that if the receipts do exceed the estimates they are not going to be turned
into increased expenditure which, of course, could be the case if you were
dealing with the net figure.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, I do not want to embarrass you, but when
you first came in this morning you told me of a case that would illustrate your
point very clearly to the committee. It concerned the Canadian Broadcasting
Corporation, of which we have heard from time to time. I believe the case
was stated on the radio at 9 o’clock, and I am sure it would help us understand
what we are trying to get at here.

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, Mr. Chairman, it was announced this morning.
The Canadian Broadcasting Corporation operation and capital budgets were
tabled, I understand, in the house last night. The format in which they were
tabled is one developed by the Department of Finance and treasury board and
is, I think, particularly informative and helpful. It serves to illu.strate this
point. As I understand it, for some years when the C.B.C. which is a crown
corporation,—not a government department,—would obtain its money, as you
know it earned a certain amount of revenue and therefore it asked parharpent
for the net. The net that it would require is the figure that would be subnptted
to parliament and voted on without details as to what the gross expenditures
would be or the revenue would be in arriving at that net. It would, of course,
take that to treasury board in justifying its case; but the vote would be simply
S0 many dollars on a net basis. : ;

This, over the past couple of years, has been the subject o_f attention by
the Minister of Finance to the point where he asked the corporation to prepare
their budgets for tabling on the basis of showing the gross expenditure,
deducting therefrom the anticipated revenue that they would pick up, aqd
accounting for the net and, in setting it out, to follow the new format. This
is the format that I personally worked up for the budget which was tabled
last night. ;

The format shows by appropriate brief captions the nature of the planngd
gross expenditures, in this case artists’ fees, salaries and wages, etc. From this
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is deducted estimated anticipated revenues, which is not an easy task because
the estimate is being made some eighteen months or two years ahead of its
realization. The difference between the anticipated gross expenditures and the
estimated revenue thus represents the net estimated requirements for the
fiscal year in question and is the amount of money Parliament will be asked
to approve. There is a 10 per cent variation granted with respect to the
individual gross expenditure categories so long as their total amount is not
increased. In the case of the figure for estimated anticipated revenues, its
declaration in this manner has the advantage of furnishing an incentive or
target for achievement. If the actual revenues ultimately realized exceed this
estimate, then the excess is available for return to the consolidated revenue
fund instead of being available to increase expenditures beyond the amount
contemplated or approved by Parliament.

I think you will find it is quite an informative method of tabling estimates;
and in a sense this is the type of thing that Mr. Sellar himself had been
envisaging, I think, in raising this problem, because, if the revenue figure is
declared,—the target they hope to obtain,—then it will ensure that anything
in excess of that will be returned to the government and not spent by the
department.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, putting it simply: if parliament authorizes,
let us say, $60 million for the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation as their
budget for the coming year and, due to good management, they obtain from
advertising and other sources another $40 million, this is new money. They did
not have $60 million; they had $100 million. Whereas the purpose is that the
$40 million which they got in revenue or earnings should be returned to parlia-
ment and then re-issued if they need it. Is that your point.

Mr. HENDERSON: That is, I think, the point that the Department of Finance
always have had in mind. It is in the way of knowing what is taking place.
I do not know about the use of the word “control” in this, but any excess
over their anticipated receipts is not theirs to spend, without approval from
parliament. .

Mr. WincH: Of course, Mr. Chairman, last year we emphasized the fact
that we thought it was only right that parliament and the people should know
exactly what to expect. As it is in the past we have not known exactly what
it cost and we have only got the net amounts shown.

Mr. PickERrsGILL: Actually, of course, what we have got in the past is
quite the reverse.

Take the Post Office Department as an example. All the revenues from the
sale of stamps, and everything else, are put into the consolidated revenue as
though they were taxes. This is a huge sum of money. It is not taxes. It
distorts the economic picture or distorts the whole appearance of the budget
of Canada, as it does not in the United Kingdom-—and it is a very big distortion
indeed. I think what the attorney general has said about the form of this thing.
is excellent, but it is the substance that I am primarily interested in; and I am
primarily interested in it for this reason, that I think the people of this country
are entitled, when the budget is brought down, to know what the past revenues
are and ‘what the expenditures on general public service are. Now, in the Post
Office, it seems to me all the revenue should go into a special account and all
the expenditures should be paid out. If there is an excess it should go into the
treasury. If there is the reverse, it would be made up out of the appropriations
act. That is all that should show, because that is all that truly comes out of
the usual revenues. I had an experience when I was first a minister—

Mr. McGraTH: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, are members of the
committee allowed to make statements?
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Mr. PickeRsGILL: Well, if the hon. gentleman has any objection, I will
stop at once.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, this statement is being made by a man who had a
great deal of practical experience, and he is engaged in giving the committee
information.

Mr. McGraTH: If the hon. member is going to be a witness, it is all very
well; otherwise we are going to be here all day.

Mr. WincH: This procedure has worked out very well in the past and I
can never remember its being abused.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: The last thing I want to do is inflict myself on the com-
mittee. If there is any feeling I was abusing my rights as a member of the
committee, I apologize.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I propose we let the hon. member go ahead, because
on this subject some of us are going to have to make statements. I have come
with a great deal of information.

The CHAIRMAN: That was the general idea.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I have come with some information that would be
impossible to be put before the committee on any other basis.

The CHAIRMAN: We were being informed as a committee on certain exper-
iences of a person. By the way, may I interject that the auditor general has
prepared a memo on this which should be distributed now, because this subject
obviously—

Mr. HENDERSON: Very quickly, Mr. Chairman, we have prepared a memo-
randum containing suggestions for recording receipts for services rendered in
those cases where receipts are significant in relation to the expenditures giving
rise to them. Basically the suggestions are:

(a) that appropriations be voted on a net basis—but with the wording
of each vote including mention of the amount deducted for the
estimated receipts;

(b) that receipts be credited to the vote up to the amount that had been

deducted in arriving at the net amount voted, with any excess of
receipts being credited to revenue; and

(c¢) that a dollar vote be used in each case where estimated recelpts are
expected to exceed the expenditures incurred.

If the committee feel that this memorandum, which is quite short, would
be of assistance, we have some here if you would care to have them distributed
before we adjourn.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): We should get it on the record of this sitting, if we
can, and have a chance to study it.

Mr. HENDERSON: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, perhaps this would be a good point at which
to stop. The next meeting we had scheduled is for April 6 and the Report qf ?he
Canada Council. Witnesses have been summoned, and with your permission
I would like to start on April 6 with the Canada Council.

Mr. PickersGILL: I wonder, Mr. Chairman, on that point, whether we
should interrupt this matter we have embarked upon. I think that we really
ought to clear this up, and I am sure we can do it at the meeting of April 6.
I am sure the witnesses from the Canada Council would not mind waiting
another week.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, there is the question of the Senate. The Senate are
after the Canada Council too and they have delayed the Senate meeting to
accommodate us.



64 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. PicKERSGILL: Well, I very strongly feel that we should go on in an
orderly fashion and finish this up first.

Mr. MorToN: How much more have we got of this?

The CHAIRMAN: It might take an hour.

Mr. MorTon: I would hate to keep putting off the Canada Council in order
to finish this subject. I suggest that we come back to this subject later when
we have more time.

Mr. HeNDERSON: This point ‘will come up when the committee considers
our 1959 report. It is covered in one of the observations or comments in that
report, so that we can return to it at that time.

Mr. MorToN: In short, I feel if we are going to limit this discussion in the
sense of trying to sandwich it in between discussion on the Canada Council,
we might have more latitude if we waited and dealt with it under the other
discussion.

The CHAIRMAN: Unless there is a really urgent reason why we should
not hear the Canada Council, I would prefer to proceed with it. We have
delayed them one week already.

Mr. PickerscILL: Might I suggest there is one very good reason. I do not
think we will want to meet on April 13 and that means we will have a meeting
for the Canada Council on April 6 and then another after the Easter recess.
I think we could clear up this matter by postponing the Canada Council hearing
until after the Easter recess.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): If we are not going to meet on April 13, I would
share Mr. Pickersgill’s view.

The CuamrMaAN: Well, will someone move it?

Mr. PickeErRsSGILL: I move it.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): I second it.

The CHAIRMAN: Those in favour? Contrary?

Motion agreed to. ;

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Is it understood that this memorandum entitled
“audit office suggestions for recording receipts for services rendered becomes
part of our proceedings”?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, appendix B-1.
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APPENDIX “A-1” |

Memorandum re Cost Ascertainment Procedures in the
Post Office Department

In its 1958 Report, the Public Accounts Committee expressed the hope
that improved procedures would be followed in future in allocating the various
costs of the Post Office Department against the several classes of mail and the
various services performed by that Department.

Behind this concern there appears to be a feeling that exact costs could
be determined if a proper cost accounting system were set up. Because we
are concerned with the cost of handling newspapers and periodicals (second
class mail), it might be useful to review the route which a magazine would
follow in its journey from a publisher in, say, Montreal or Toronto, to a
subscriber.

The publisher will do the magazines up in bundles according to the post
offices through which they will finally be distributed and which are located
from coast to coast in Canada and, in some cases, in the United States. The
bundles are taken by the publisher’s truck to the main Post Office in the city
of publication where they are weighed and the postage thereon is calculated.
These magazines then enter the mail stream and will leave the city of publica-
tion by train or truck and, in some cases, by air or water. In most cases the
mail must be trucked from the post office to the point of departure. In all
cases the conveyance used will also be carrying first class mail—ordinary or
registered—three classes of third class mail and domestic and foreign insured
and uninsured fourth class mail or parcels, together with special delivery items
and C.O.D. items.

Some of the mail will go direct to the office of distribution, but a portion
of it must pass through one or more transfer points and continue its journey by
the same or some other mode of transportation. In most cases a “side service”
will be required to transport the mail from the railway, airport or dock to
the post office.

When they reach the office of distribution, some of the magazines will be
sorted, along with all other classes of mail, into lock boxes from which they
will be picked up by the subscribers. Other magazines, along with all other
classes of mail, will go to the city delivery section where they will be sorted
by the letter carriers, placed in bundles and then transported to the letter
carriers’ pick-up boxes from which they will then deliver them to the
individual homes. :

Still another group of magazines, addressed to newsdealers, will be routed
to parcel delivery trucks for delivery to the newsdealers.

These magazines addressed to subscribers living on rural routes are rout'ed
to the rural mail carriers who must sort them and deliver them, along with
all other classes of mail, to the individual mail boxes on the rural rqutes.

In addition to the above, there are other services associated with second
class mail which involve handling and transportation costs, as, for example,
the forwarding of magazines to patrons who have changed their addresges,
advice to the publisher when no forwarding address is available, the measuring
of advertising, consideration of enclosures, etc. :

From the above it may be seen that there are a great many operatlon:s
involved in mail handling and each of these has its own peculiar costs. If it
were practical to determine the exact cost of handling'egqh type of majl—
which is doubtful—the cost of doing so would be prohibitive. The.re is also
the very serious matter of the delay in transmission of the mail which would
inevitably occur should more complex and detailed procedures be adopted.
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The cost ascertainment procedures employed by the Canadian Post Office
Department are very similar to those used in the United States. In brief, these
are based on studies made at 236 post offices (out of a total of 11,634 such
offices) for periods of one week in the spring and one week in the fall of every
third year. During these test periods an accurate record is kept of all time
spent in handling each type of mail or service where salary costs are involved,
and where other costs are involved accurate counts are made of the volume of
each type of mail handled. The results of these tests then form the basis for
a division of all post office costs. They also form the basis for the distribution
of post office revenues for various classes of mail in those cases where there
is no accounting segregation of the revenue—for example, postage stamps or
a postage meter machine may be used on any class of mail. However, the
postage of practically all second class mail is paid in cash and therefore the
revenue shown as applying to publishers’ second class mail is an accurate
accounting figure.

The cost ascertainment figures produced by the Post Office Department
can only be regarded as informed estimates and it is realized that there may
be other possible approaches to the problem which might produce somewhat
different figures. The following is an analysis of the estimated $28 million of
costs attributed to the handling of second class mail in 1958-59, based on the
time and volume study basis outlined:

Salaries

EetET  CATTIORE ot hators s o b s o s widiv, 4 $6,912,700

Staff post. offiCes —..i. s v gh-sonibanio. 5,734,900

Revenue post offiCes. v« «iuss vwgawsis 2,081,200

Railway nail elerks sizuwn s ta sas oo 814,600 $15,543,400
Transportation

RaIWaY. SerViCEs i . s iisen < wiiass s 5,130,000

Side and stage services, ete. ........ 2,589,300

Highway :servieesi w58 Luads Uil es 1,353,100

Adr-stage Toutes: . J Ak sl me it o 326,100

VTR AL e o s BN GRS . 57,200 9,455,700
Rutal - maail el vICeSn. vist sisiesimd o Seehles 2,118,400

! Dadls Hags it 280 . Bt Favvia 5 177,600

Revenue post office costs ................ 165,000
g g e 2 RS E g o i R e S A Rt 43,400
R ramsTEmail CRATEES e Gk o o sts s Sonsitn 5,800
e o o D St e ibe s 369,800

27,879,100

It should be kept in mind that the above costs do not include costs incurred
by the Department of Public Works in providing and maintaining the post
office buildings at points where the annual revenue exceeds $3,000.

g
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APPENDIX “B-1”

MEMORANDUM

Audit Office suggestions for recording receipts for services rendered

1. Paragraphs 23 to 29 of the Memorandum submitted on March 22, 1960,
for the information of the Committee, included notes regarding existing
practices in recording receipts for services rendered—with paragraph 28 making
mention of a problem that arises when provision is made for receipts to be
credited to an appropriation, and the amount actually received is in excess
of the amount estimated. No suggestions were, however, put forward for
possible improvement of the existing system.

2. In paragraph 30 of the Memorandum a brief reference was made to the
practice followed in the United Kingdom of granting appropriations-in-aid.
The purpose of this Memorandum is to suggest a system of recording receipts
for services rendered which, in the Audit Office view, would have the advantages
of the appropriations-in-aid system. It is accordingly suggested that, where
estimated receipts for services rendered are significant in relation to the
expenditures giving rise to them: .

(a) Appropriations should be voted on a net basis, the wording of each
such appropriation to include, however, the gross amount authorized,
less the amount of the estimated receipts—with the Details of the
Estimates showing the latter amount as a deduction from the total of
the listing of estimated expenditures. Receipts would then be recorded
as credits to the Vote, through a “credit allotment”, up to the amount
of the deduction provided for in the wording of the appropriation,
with any excess beyond such amount being recorded as a credit to
Revenue.

(b) A dollar Vote should be used in each case where estimated receipts
are expected to exceed the expenditures incurred, with estimated
expenditures detailed in the Estimates Details in the usual way, and
with a deduction of an equivalent amount (less one dollar)—collections
beyond the amount of the deduction item being credited to Revenue.

3. The introduction of such a system would seem to have the following

advantages over existing practices:

(a) Parliament would be called upon to vote only the net amounts
required; .

(b) there would be a desirable incentive for departments to exert.them—
selves to collect as large a proportion of their estimated rece1pt-s as
possible because, to the extent that there was a short-fall of c_ollectlons,
there would have to be a corresponding reduction in expenditure from
that which had been planned (lacking a supplementary appropriation);
and

(¢) any tendency for departments to underestimate receipts where crgdit
allotments. are used, would disappear since any excess of rec_elpts
beyond the amount estimated would be recorded as a credit to
Revenue, and not be available to supplement amounts previously voted.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, April 6, 1960.
)
The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9.30 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Benidickson, Danforth,
Fraser, Keays, Macdonald (Kings), Macdonnell (Greenwood), Macnaughton,
McGee, McGrath, McGregor, Morissette, Morten, Pickersgill, Robichaud, Smith
(Simcoe North), Smith (Winnipeg North), Stefanson, Stewart, Villeneuve,
Winch, and Wratten.—23

In attendance: From the office of the Auditor General: Mr. A. Maxwell
Henderson, Auditor General; Mr. Ian Stevenson, Assistant Auditor General;
and Mr. E. Cook. From the Department of Public Works: Mr. L. V. McGurran,
Financial Adviser.

The committee resumed consideration of the memorandum submitted by
the Auditor General on March 23, 1960.

Mr. McGurran was called and he supplied information tha? had been
requested at the last meeting respecting expenditures on construction projects
in excess of anticipated amounts. He was permitted fo retire.

On Paragraphs 21-30:

Mr. Henderson made a statement re: Treatment of receipts for services
rendered. He was further questioned on this matter.

Moved by Mr. Pickersgill, seconded by Mr. Benidickson,

That the Public Accounts Committee ask the Auditor General to pursue
this subject in the most active possible way with the Treasury and with the
Treasury Board, and if possible to bring a scheme before the Committee.

Following discussion, by leave of the Committee, Mr. Pickersgill was
permitted to withdraw his motion.

The Committee continued and completed consideration of t1:1e Aqditor
General’s memorandum of March 23, the Auditor General and his assistant
supplying information thereon.

On Paragraph 51:

Mr. Pickersgill requested that information bp supplied indicating the
geographic locations of Post Office Savings Banks in Canada.

(For this information see Appendix “A-2” to this day’s Proceedings).
At 10.30 a.m. the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m. April 27, 1960.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, April 6, 1960.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum.

At the last meeting certain questions were asked of Mr. McGurran, Financial
adviser, Department of Public Works. Mr. McGurran is here and I understand
he has brought answers to those questions. Mr. McGurran, would you read
the questions and your replies please.

Mr. L. V. McGURRAN (Financial Adviser, Department of Public Works):
Kingston Public Building

Question No. 1—What was the date of the latest departmental estimate
and when was it?

Answer: In May 1956, the cost was estimated to be $1,699,483. The estimate
discussed at the last meeting was a preliminary one made at a stage when
the size of the proposed building had not been determined definitely.

Question No. 2—When were tenders called?

Answer: Tenders were called on January 2, 1957 and closed February
13, 1957.

Question No. 3—How were tenders called?
Answer: Public advertisement in 8 newspapers and the Canada Gazette:

Ottawa: Citizen, Journal, Le Droit

Montreal: Montreal Herald, La Patrie, La Presse

Toronto: Daily Commercial News and the Toronto Star

Tender documents were also sent to the Post Office, Kingston and to
the Builders’ Exchange, Kingston.

Question No. 4—How many tenders were received?

Answer: Three.

James Kemp Construction Ltd., Hamilton ........ $1,617,000
M. Sullivan and Sons Ltd., Arnprior .......... $1,644,217
T. A. Andre and Sons Ltd., Kingston ............ $1,846,000

Question No. 5—What was the amount of the successful tender?

Answer: James Kemp Construction Ltd., Hamilton—$1,617,000.

Question No. 6—When did construction commence?
Answer: April 3, 1957.

Question No. 7—What was the amount of extras granted over and above
original tender? ,

Answer: The net amount of extras was $18,372 which was 1.1 per cent of
the original tender of $1,617,000.
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Question No. —Why was there a lack of competition at this time of year?

Answer: It is difficult at this time to give the reasons. The provincial
average for contractors competing was five; in this case only three competed.

Question No. 9—Was there any consultation with the provincial associa-
tions before coming to this understanding that only for buildings in excess
of $250,000 we would use an outside architect?

Answer: No. This amount is only set as a guide for departmental use. Thus
if a project is over $250,000 the primary consideration is an outside consultant;
if under that amount, the departmental staff. There are however numerous
examples where projects under that amount have been designed by consultants
and projects over that amount by the department. When discussion takes place
concerning the Architectural profession, it is done with the Royal Architectural
Institute of Canada executive.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions?

Mr. PicKERSGILL: In the memorandum we had the other day there seems
to be something that is rather inconsistent with what we have here. If we
had had this estimate of $1,699,483, no one would have had any questions to
raise at all. What seems to have thrown everybody off was this estimate of
cost of $1,310,000 when the project was initiated. I wonder where that came
from?

Mr. McGuUrraN: That was made at the time the department requested
from the treasury board the authority to engage an outside consultant.

Mr. PICcKRERSGILL: Several years before?
Mr. McGURRAN: It was made in May, 1955.

Mr. PickersGILL: I wonder how it ever got into the memorandum. That
is the only thing.

Mr. McGurraN: I would say the estimate should have been made when
we knew the size of the building. The figure which I have given today of
$1,699,483 was the figure when we had the size of the building.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: It seems the information given today is more than satis-
factory. You could not have come nearer to hitting the nail on the head.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions?

At the last meeting we had started to consider paragraphs 21 to 30,
treatment of receipts for services rendered, in the Auditor General’s
memorandum of March 23. I suggest we proceed now to try to finish that
section.

Treatment of Receipts for Services Rendered.

21. The Committee’s Third Report, 1958, included the following
comment on this subject:

Practice in some countries and provinces takes one form and
in others the opposite. Your Committee therefore maintains an
open mind but is of opinion that the subject should be thoroughly
explored because ever-expanding public activities correspondingly
add to the responsibilities resting on Parliament when voting Supply.
It is recommended that the Minister of Finance cause a review to
be made of vote structures to provide for the needs of two servicing
departments with some distinguishing characteristics in services
provided in return for fees or charges—for example, the depart-
ments of Veterans Affairs and Secretary of State. It being a fact-
finding study of administrative and parliamentary needs, it would
be desirable were an officer of the Auditor General to participate.
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22. Current comment by the Auditor General. The Audit Office
has not been informed of any fact-finding study planned or made by
the Department of Finance regarding this matter, although some changes
in the treatment of receipts have been observed in the 1960-61 Main
Estimates. For example, the “deduction allotment” previously provided
with respect to the annual Vote for “Indian and Northern Health
Services—Operation and Maintenance” for the Department of National
Health and Welfare has been dropped, with all receipts now to be
credited as Revenue. The “deduction allotment” had previously been
used to record, as credits to the Vote, amounts recovered for services
provided under agreements with Northwest Territories and Yukon
Territory.

23. The problem of when to credit a Vote and when Revenue is a
complex one, and it is suggested that further consideration be given
to it. Receipts arising out of expenditures made under appropriations
might be regarded as falling into two classes:

(a) where all the expenditures charged to an Appropriation are
related to its basic purpose, and where the receipts are
incidental;

enditures are incurred, and charged to the

oy X;;::pxiglgc?n ei}fmpthe first instance, which are additional to the

expenditures incurred in relation to the basic purpose of the

Appropriation, and the additional expenses are recoverable
wholly or in part through receipts.

24. The practice is for receipts in the ﬁr‘st of these classes to be
credited as Revenue, as is done, for example, in the case of the annual
Appropriation for “Administration of the Food 'and Drugs and th.e
Proprietary or Patent Medicine Acts” (Vote 2f11_1n 1958-59). In th}s
case, all expenditures charged to the approprlatlolj. are for t-he ba.sw
purposes of the appropriation and are incurred without consideration

as to the nature or amount of receipts that might result. .
25. Receipts in the second of the above-noted classes are credited

to the appropriation concerned, assuming, .of course, the}t such account-
ing action was contemplated when the estimate was being made of the

net amount required.

26. Recoveries of extraneous expenditures are recorded as credits
to appropriations in two different ways: (i) through the allotment
account concerned, where the amounts recqvered are equal to and
identifiable with the individual expenditures incurred (e.g., a recovery
of an outlay in travelling expenses), and' (ii) through a “deduction
item” provided for in the Estimates Details, where the amounts re-
covered are not identifiable with individual expendltqres incurred (e.g.,
recoveries in respect of treatment services, etc., prov1c.1ed to persons for
whom the Veterans Affairs Department is not financially responsible).

S blem from the
27. The first of these two methods presents no pro :
point of view of Parliamentary control. After the amount received has

been credited to the appropriation it cancels out the charge that had
previously been made, leaving the appropriation to record charges as-
sociated with the basic purpose of the vote.

28. But when the second procedure is followed it becomes a ma'tter
of importance, from the viewpoint of Parliamentary control, to cpns1der
the extent to which the actual receipts exceeded what had been estimated.
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It would seem that any excess of receipts should be credited as Revenue,
otherwise funds become available for expenditure beyond what was con-
templated by Parliament. This point arises in connection with the
Veterans Affairs vote for “Treatment Services—Operation of Hospitals
and Administration”, and is involved in the comment made in paragraph
39 of the Auditor General’s Report for 1958-59. It should be mentioned
however, that although the excess amount became available in this case,
it was not actually spent by the Department.

29. In the case of appropriations under the Secretary of State, to
which reference was made in the Committee’s Third Report, 1958, the
revenues would seem to fall under the first of the two classes referred
to above, i.e., all the expenditures charged are related to the basic
purposes of the appropriations and the receipts are incidental (even
though, in the cases of two Votes, the revenues exceed the expenditures)
—and they are credited as revenue.

30. The Committee’s comment on the question of the treatment of
receipts included reference to the practice varying in different countries
and provinces. In the United Kingdom the practice is followed of grant-
ing appropriations-in-aid which, on the face of it, would seem to cor-
respond to permitting the crediting of receipts to appropriations in
Canada. However, in the United Kingdom funds are provided to and ex-
pended by the individual departments, and when an appropriation-in-
aid is granted the departmental accounting officer is permitted to retain
receipts and use them for the payment of expenditures, only up to the
amount of the appropriation-in-aid, paying over to the Consolidated
Fund (corresponding to our Consolidated Revenue Fund) any excess
of receipts beyond the amount of the appropriation-in-aid. Parliamentary
control is therefore maintained in a way that would not be possible under
our system of centralized expenditure payment, were receipts per-
mitted to be credited to appropriations to an extent greater than had
been estimated for purposes of calculating the net appropriations re-
quired. In British Columbia the practice has been followed of crediting
receipts to appropriations to a greater extent than in the case of the
Federal Government, but many classes of sundry receipts, e.g., licences,
fees and fines and penalties, are still credited as Revenue.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Henderson, I believe you have a statement to make.

Mr. A. Maxwell HENDERSON, (Auditor General of Canada): Mr. Chairman,
the committee was discussing this matter when it adjourned at the last meeting.

In its third report, 1958, this committee discussed the treatment of receipts
for services rendered and stated it was of the opinion that the subject should
be thoroughly explored because ever expanding public activities correspondingly
add to the responsibilities resting on parliament when voting supply. The com-
mittee recommended that the Minister of Finance cause a review to be made
of certain vote structures as a fact-finding study of administrative and parlia-
mentary needs, and suggested that it would be desirable were an officer of
the Auditor General to participate.

In reporting to the committee on March 23, I stated that the audit office
had not been informed of any fact-finding study planned or made regarding this
matter. At the committee’s last meeting on March 30th when the treatment
of receipts for services rendered came up for discussion, I stated that the audit
office had prepared a memorandum putting forward certain suggestions on the

subje;t and, at the committee’s request, the memorandum was tabled for the
record.
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It was suggested in the memorandum that appropriations be voted on a
net basis. This would mean that parliament’s attention, when voting supply,
would be directed to the net cost of operating a service, and to the extent
to which proposed outlays were expected to be recovered through charges for
services rendered. It would also provide an incentive for departments to
exercise diligence in effecting collections. The suggestion is one that my pre-
decessor, Mr. Watson Sellar, has advanced before this committee on previous
occasions, notably in 1950 and 1958. In 1958, he cited the case of the
R.C.M.Police where expenditures of $26 million had been charged for operation
and maintenance of divisions in the fiscal year 1956-57, while $6 million of
recoveries by the R.C.M.Police for services rendered to provinces and munici-
palities had been credited to revenue.

Since the last meeting of the committee, I have had helpful discussions
about this matter with the comptroller of the treasury and the secretary of
the treasury board. The comptroller stated, and I agree, that under a system
of net appropriations he would encounter difficulty, in cases where estimated
receipts were large in relation to the gross expenditures approved by parlia-
ment, in furnishing the certification required under section 30 of the Financial
Administration Act.

For this reason and because of the legal and procedural implications
generally, the problem clearly requires further study and.discussion over the
next several months. If it carries the judgment of the committee, Mr. Chairman,
I propose to keep in touch with the officers of the Department of Finance on
the matter until a satisfactory solution can be found.

That statement is made as a result of my meetings with the comptroller
of the treasury and the secretary of the treasury board. I had two sessions
with them during this past week.

Mr. WincH: What is being recommended does seem reasonable. I hope,
however, at some future date—most like it will have to t?e at the
next session’s committee—to have some information as to why this problem
arises on a federal basis when a number of the provinces already I_lave this
system in practice in their public accounts. I know in Britlsh Columbia, where
I was for twenty years, it has always been the practice.

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes. It does depend, however, on whether or not they
operate the commitment system which the federal service uses. I do not know
whether or not all the provinces have that.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, this is my King Charles’ head. When I
was a member of the government I tried hard to persuade some of my
colleagues that we ought to institute this system. We have the' ma?ter of the
receipts of the post office and this matter of the R.C.M.P., which is perfecly
ridiculous. The R.C.M.P. are acting as a police force in' all but two of jche
provinces in this country, and are being paid by the provinces for the service,
and yet we treat that, when we get to the provinces, as if it were part qf the
income tax or tax revenue, and make it appear that the federal expenditures
include the whole amount. This is misleading. In view _of the large part federal
receipts from taxes and expenditures play in influencing th(? whole -economy,
it is important, apart from merely the accounting aspect. It is very 1{nportant
from the economic standpoint that we should have a really true picture of
what is taken from the people of this country in the form of taxes and what
is spent on services really paid for by the taxpayers. For example, take the
patent office. I cannot see why the taxpayer should pay one cent of the cost
of the patent office. The only people who benefit from the patent qﬁice are
those who have patents; they should pay the whole qost of that service. If in
the public accounts we had the receipts and the estimated return, or if the
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Auditor General suggested in cases where the receipts might exceed the esti-
mates that a dollar item appear, this would give the members of parliament
an opportunity to discuss this thing.

It seems to me that it would be important. I know there are some quite
serious legal administrative and accounting problems, and I imagine there
would probably have to be an amendment made to the Financial Administra-
tion Act.

But just so that we may have something in focus before us—I am not
sure of the language, and I would be happy to have it improved—I would
make a motion that we, as a public accounts committee, ask the Auditor
General to pursue this subject in the most active possible way with the
treasury and with the treasury board, and if possible to bring a scheme before
the committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there a seconder to that motion?

Mr. BENIDICKSON: I second the motion.

The CHAIRMAN: Would you please write out your motion and give it to
us, Mr. Pickersgill?

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think Mr. Pickersgill is making the suggestion
that this be actively pursued to the wrong official. I do not really think it
is part-of the duty and function of the Auditor General. It is part of the
duty and function, rather, of the comptroller of the treasury or of the secre-
tary of the treasury board, who are responsible to the Minister of Finance.

The duty of the Auditor General is only to audit after the accounts have
been set up in the estimates, on the basis that parliament decides.

Mr. PickERSGILL: That is right.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Certainly in any discussions which take place, the
officers of the Department of Finance would seek the views of the Auditor
General, but I do not think we should place him in the position of playing a
role which really is not his.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: I am willing to withdraw my motion, if Mr. Bell would
make the right kind of motion. Perhaps he would be happier if he just re-
vised my motion. That I would be very happy to accept, as long as we are
agreed that we want to achieve this objective.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think what the Auditor General has suggested as
a result of the conversations which have taken place is satisfactory, without
our proceeding with a formal motion.

The position on this matter is not very difficult, as Mr. Pickersgill well
knows. It has been considered on several occasions by the public accounts
committee. The last time it had an exhaustive study was in 1950. At that
time it was realized that it would result in a less satisfactory picture being
given to parliament of the net appropriations needed by the department. That
was the view of the public accounts committee. There is some point to that
attitude.

Mr. PickERSGILL: When did you say that was done?

Mr. BELL (Carleton): That is from the report of the public accounts com-
mittee in 1950.

One of the problems may be illustrated by Mr. Pickersgill’s example of
the patent office. The expenditures there are uniform month by month, but
in the receipts there are hills and valleys. Consequently if the patent office
were to be made completely self sustaining, parliament would have to vote
a type of revolving fund to enable the patent office to pay its bills during
the valley periods, when the revenues did not equal the expenditures, and a

system would have to be devised whereby you could even out those hills and
valleys with receipts.
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This whole matter is under active study, and also the whole question of
the structure of the estimates generally. About every 15 years there is a
complete review of the whole system of estimates and proceedings.

I think we had a complete revision of them in 1950, and another com-
plete revision again in 1957. It seems to me this part of the whole question
of estimates procedure, and control by parliament.

In succeeding months it will be under very active and detailed consider-
ation, always on the basis that what the members of the committee want
to do is to make absolutely certain that the control by parliament is im-
proved if possible, and that the greatest degree of information may be made
available to parliament both in the provisions of the estimates and con-
sequently in the public accocunts themselves.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: There was a review made in 1950 which stemmed
from the recommendations of this committee.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Yes.

Mr. PIickRERSGILL: I am very pleased indeeed to be assured that this
active study is taking place. I think it has been long overdue. But I am
not very impressed by the example of the patent office. I do not think the
difficulty there is one which should present the slightest problem to over-
come.

After all, the British exchequer followed this system at least ever since
I was a student at Oxford, and it did not seem to have any great difficulty
over it.

There is one point on which I would dissent from Mr. Bell. I‘ might say
that in respect to our narrower terms of reference he‘ 1s quite right—
that parliament’s control over the expenditures is the primary concern of
this. committee. But it does seem to me that in the mere de§ire to be
able to scrutinize every dollar of expenditure we should npt lose sight of the
fact that from the public standpoint it is much more important that we
make sure there is a true picture given to the public of what the taxpaygrs
are having to pay. I mean taxpayers, as opposed to people who are paying
the government for specific services they are getting. .

We do not get that in the public accounts at the present tlm_e. They
are all jumbled up. There are fees and other things paid ‘for spec1ﬁf: serv-
ices, and postage paid, and so on; these are all mixed right in with the
revenues. The expenditures upon these things are mixed up with the ex-
penditures on services rendered to the public. :

So it does seem to me that it would improve qulic understanding (?f
public business, as well as our understanding in parliament of that public
business to have a real distinction made between them. :

And I thnk it would have another effect. It would direct the mind of the
public and of the treasury constantly to the point that the services per-
formed for groups and individuals should be made self sustaining.

When I became Secretary of State, the Secretary of State Department
performed many of these special services, through the patent office, the
copyright office, and so on. e

For quite a number of years all these services.had been subsidized to
a very considerable degree by the taxpayers. And in the year I was there
I am proud to say I got the fees raised, with the.result tpat many of thgse
services were not only paying their way but, if anything, were making
a little money for the treasury, rather than the reverse. ;

If you should charge them rent, they would add a little money to the
treasury. At any rate, I think that is a very important objective as well.
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Mr. McGEE: I have a question in connection with this. In raising these
fees, did you conceive that it might be possible in the process that certain
persons who might seek patents or copyrights which would ultimately be of
great value to the Canadian economy, might have been prevented from doing
so because of the rise in fees?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: The fees are still very small, so I do not think anybody
who had any serious expectation of profit would worry in the least about it.
Moreover, by raising the fees it would be possible to provide some additional
staff. This would prevent heavy arrears accumulating.

This is another very important point. The staffs of these service organiza-
tions are often controlled in exactly the same way as the staffs of organiza-
tions for the public generally, and the result is that they are kept down by
treasury control, when in fact, apart from that, they should be expanded so
that the user gets prompt service.

There is no reason why the patent office should not double its staff if
the business is there. There is no reason why the work should not be done just
as efficiently as if it were done by Eatons or Simpsons. Once you put the
accounts in proper perspective, there is not the same argument.

I must admit that in this matter I have shown something of the zeal of
a reformer, but I do not think there is any politics in it. However, I think
perhaps I have already taken up enough time of the committee for the present.

Mr. FRASER: Would you include in the patent office fees what is now paid
for it by the Department of Public Works, such as the char service, the upkeep
of the building, and also what the finance department pays for the telephones
and so on? Do you mean that the fees should include all that too?

Mr. PickerscirL: I think they should. I do not mean that you should
necessarily go to the extent of making a special charge, but I think you
should put the fees up high enough so that there would be a little go into the
treasury every year which would, roughly, offset those expenditures.

I am not in the least in favour of a lot of mere niggling red tape, where
you would spend 25 cents in order to save five cents, and of which we have
far too much in the public accounts.

The CHAIRMAN: Might I suggest that rather than having any formal
motion—

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, you anticipate me. I think Mr. Bell’s
point was well taken, and if Mr. Benidickson will agree, I shall withdraw my
motion.

The CHAIRMAN: You mean that the substance of your motion, rather,
should be brought to the attention of the Department of Finance and the
treasury?

Mr. BeELL (Carleton): We can take steps when drafting our report to deal
with this matter.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreed?

Agreed.

Are there any other questions on this particular item? Have you anything
more, Mr. Pickersgill?

Mr. PickersGILL: No, I think I have rather abused the committee already.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraphs 31 to 36, the form of the public accounts.

I think we discussed this before.
The Form of the Public Accounts

31. The committee recommended in the Second Report, 1959, that
the Minister of Finance give further consideration to the form of the
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Public Accounts. The committee suggested that the task of printing the
publication might be distributed over a longer period by printing in
a separate volume, the financial review by the deputy minister and
the certified financial statements. The committee noted that were the
listings of salaries to commence at $8,000 instead of $5,000 in Part 5
“the Comptroller of the Treasury estimates that the book would be
substantially reduced and his work of preparation expedited and money
saved”.

32. Current comment by the Auditor General. The 1958-59 Public
Accounts continues to include Parts I and II in the same volume, but
listings of salaries were shortened by the inclusion of salaries of
only $8,000 and over.

33. Should the Committee wish to make further suggestions to
the Minister of Finance regarding the shortening of the Public Accounts,
it might wish to consider suggesting the omission of travelling expenses
incurred by employees in the under $8,000 salary range, whose names
would then not require to be listed (almost 10 pages, each with three
columns of names and amounts, are used for the agriculture depart-
ment alone, in the 1958-59 volume).

34. The committee might also wish to consider further whether the
desirability of including, in each departmental section of the public
accounts, the payments made to each supplier and contractor to a total
of $10,000 or over, justifies the considerable cost that might be involved
in the preparation of these listings by the office of the Comptroller of

the Treasury.

35. We have requested from the Comptroller 9f the Treasury an
estimate of the cost of publishing the 1958-59 Public Accounts.

36. It is understood that this printing cost may be to the order of
$50,000, with the cost of preparing the material approximating $200,000,

or a total of about $250,000.

Mr. Henperson: I think not, Mr. Chairman, except that I advised the
committee, when you discussed this on March 23, I think, that the printing
cost was believed to be in the order of $50,000, but that I was getting the

actual figures from the comptroller of the treasury. :
He has since advised me that the cost of printing the 1958-59 public

accounts was $60,255.71, in respect of which 2,193 copies were printed. This
compares with a cost the previous year, 1957-58, of $59,372.54, in respect of

which 1,892 copies were printed. . ; :
This is the straight cost of printing, to which, in any calculations—as

I stated before—you would want to add the cost of preparing t_he mgtenal
and putting it together, which the comptroller of the treasury, in his testimony
before this committee last year, I think estimated to be somewhere between
four and five times the printing cost. )

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions, gentlemen? We will go on to

paragraphs 37 to 39.

National Defence Expenditures on Education.
37. The following observations are included under this heading,
in the Committee’s second report, 1959:. : s
« ..only where capital expenditures were Incurred in con-
structing schools—the total in the year approximately $5,t.;00,000_
is any disclosure made in the public accounts of expenditures by
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the Department of National Defence in providing educational
facilities for children of members of the service forces. On inquiry,
your Committee was informed that, including the $5,400,000 noted
above, approximately $11,500,000 was spent by the department
in the year, and that these expenditures are distributed in the
National Defence section of the public accounts to 7 standard
objects of expenditure: headings for each of the service forces,
such as professional and special services—travel and removal
expenses, municipal or public utility services.

“Your Committee is of the opinion that it would be more in-
formative were these Department of National Defence costs con-
solidated and suitably disclosed. Whether this may be more
efficiently done by use of a special vote or otherwise is regarded
as a matter for the Treasury Board to consider.”

38. Current comment by the Auditor General. It is understood that
the Department proposes to consolidate its education costs and to give
a summary of such costs, under suitable headings, in the annual
defence white paper, commencing with that for 1959-60, in order to
meet the suggestion made by the Public Accounts Committee.

39. An unofficial summary of the 1958-59 expenses is:
Operating costs:

Salaries ‘of teachersliciiie e ol WREsis $5,412,000
Travel “and ' fransportation ‘.’ - o o9 . 210,000
Schiool stpplies Tt e c MR E T T R 515,000
Maintenance .. . etk 723,000
Rental of school bulldmgs (overseas) \ 243,000
Non-resident school:fees .. .. <u & vy o 989,000
SHNATIEE o e i ot L s i w T L sm o b 5 32,000
8,124,000
Less: Provincial grants .. .. .. .. .. .. 1,570,000
e aperatngiaosti s 0T iRy 6,554,000
Capital costs:
oo i T e e s R T S P 2,705,000
Capifal assistanee D3 Ut L T o Sl 206,000
Woral caplal EostsiL Ll T8 Bl L an 2,911,000
Potal edueations €ostS Lo e 8 Tl ST U i 9,465,000

Mr. HeEnDERSON: In this section in the report you will have noted the
comments of your committee, that it would be more informative were the
Department of National Defence education costs consolidated and suitably
disclosed.

We now understand that the Department of National Defence does, in
fact, propose to consolidate its education costs and to give a summary of such
costs under suitable headings in the annual defence white paper, beginning
with 1959-60, in order to meet the suggestions made by this committee.

The CHATRMAN: That is a slight advance.

Mr. HenpErsoN: I suggest that the committee’s suggestion has therefore
been adopted.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions, gentlemen? If not, we will go
on to paragraphs 40 to 41, Non-productive payments.
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Non-Productive Payments.

40. The following observation was included under this heading in
the Committee’s second report, 1959:

The attention of your Committee was drawn to a number of
charges where payments were legally made but without any public
benefits resulting. Among the cases were rents paid for space un-
occupied over extended periods. Your Committee appreciates that
payments of this type can never be wholly avoided but is of the
opinion that some publicity would be a useful safeguard. It is
therefore, recommended that the Minister of Finance consider di-
recting that, when the accounts of a year include charges of the
type now referred to, they be suitably detailed in the Public
Accounts.

41. Current comment by the Auditor General. No listing of non-
productive payments was included in the public accounts for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1959.

Mr. HENDERSON: In 1959 the committee had a paragraph with reference to
what was described as non-productive payments and made the recommenda-
tion to the Minister of Finance that when the accounts of any year included
charges of this type, they might be suitably detailed in the public accounts.
Thus far there has not been any listing of such non-productive payments in
the public accounts.

Mr. WincH: May I ask, Mr. Chairman, if the Auditor General could tell
us what problems might be expected to be associated with the inclusion of a
listing of non-productive payments in the public accounts?

Mr. HENDERSON: I think that one problem is probably that of defining the
term “non-productive payments” in such a way that the amounts would be
reported by departments on a uniform basis.

Another problem might be that of ensuring that fair explanations would
be given in cases where administrative decisions, giving rise to non-productive
payments had been essentially sound; for example, in the case .Wl'gere a fee had
been paid to an architect, but the plans for a proposed bu.11d.1ng were not
proceeded with because the department decided that the building would be
too costly and therefore would have to be redesigned on a more modest scale,
or perhaps the whole project abandoned. A

To give examples of the type of thing that creeps into the operations of
government departments and crown companies—and ordinary business, for
that matter—there are payments for rented premises which are _left vacant;
payments for architects’ fees, where projects are not procgedgd w1§h;. removal
expenses of officers who had to return without accomplishing missions; ex-
penses on contracts for defence projects abandoned before completlo_n.

I think that to call for a separate listing of these across suf:h a varied scene
as government departments would probably entail not a little expense, in
terms of time and cost. There are other ways of reaching it. I have not dis-
cussed this problem with any of the officers of the Department of Finance—
because we must bear in mind that they produce the public accounts—but to
give a very simple illustration, it might be possible, for example, if the mass
of detail now prevalent continues, to asterisk or to make a footnote about
some of the payments and perhaps give a word or two about the circumstances.

I am saying this purely to illustrate the sort of short-cut method wh-lch
might be adopted. I have a few reservations as to the advantages of pursuing
this subject, quite frankly.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Has anyone in the comptroller’s office or treasury board
bent his mind to defining what non-productive payments are? It seems to me
that this would be an almost impossible task.
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Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think I can say, yes—and that is the whole prob-
lem. What is involved here is a subjective judgment; and what is non-pro-
ductive? Is it totally non-productive; is it something that is partially non-
productive which is to be listed?

You would have to get certain, specific figures, I think, because we would
certainly not wish to bring into that category those expenditures made in the
scientific and research departments of government, where probably the most
so-called non-productive experiments take place. There may be many experi-
ments which are totally non-productive, but which ultimately lead to a
break-through in that research field.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: What about family allowances for children that die
before they reach the age of 20 and therefore do not do any work: are they
not non-productive? What about the indemnities of Members of Parliament
who never make any speeches?

Mr. SmiTH (Simcoe North): Or the indemnities of members who make
too many speeches!

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Perhaps the reverse should be the case.

Mr. McGRrEGOR: Perhaps there should be a charge for those “windjammers”
who make too many speeches.

Mr. FRASER: So much a minute!

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, is there any other comment on this; if not,
let us go to paragraph 42 and 43.

Mr. McGREGOR: Before you go on from that, how much money is involved
in this rental proposition, Mr. Henderson?

Mr. HENDERSON: The case that I mentioned?

Mr. McGRrEGOR: You spoke about rental, paying rents on unoccupied
property. How much money is involved in that?

Mr. HENDERSON: I do not think we have any figures on that, sir; we were
just citing it as a case.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): There was one building in Toronto last year that
we had—

Mr. HENDERSON: There were some examples given.

Mr. McGRrEGOR: You make a report and suggest that this should be done.
I think you should have something fo say about the way it should be done,
and how much money is involved.

Mr. HENDERSON: No, it is a suggestion of this committee in 1959, not the
Auditor General’s.

Mr. P1cRERSGILL: It is a suggestion we made last year, and I think the less
we talk about it, the better: it is too involved. When I was Minister of Citi-
zenship and Immigration—if anyone is interested—because we were getting a
lot of immigrants and needed larger premises in Toronto, we rented space
in a building called the George H. Hees building. This was done, I might say,
by the Liberal government. Then, because this government reduced the amount
of immigration, there was not the same need for that building as there other-
wise would have been, and it turned out to be a non-productive expenditure.
I do not think there are any politics in the thing whatsoever, and I think we
might as well concede this.

The CHAIRMAN: That is quite a free interpretation of the facts.

An Hon. MeMBER: It is pretty accurate, too.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraphs 42 and 43, Suggestion award board expendi-
tures. Do you wish to say anything in connection with this, Mr. Henderson?
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Suggestion award board expenditures:

42. The Committee’s second report, 1959, included the comment under
this heading that:

The Auditor General noted that in recent years it has been
annual practice to charge this vote [Miscellaneous minor or un-
foreseen expenses] with expenditures incurred by an interdepart-
mental service known as the suggestion award board. The amount
involved is not large, being $21,859 in the year under review as
compared with $16,992 in the previous year. However, your Com-
mittee is convinced that, in principle, it impairs parliament’s control
of consolidated revenue fund when recurring administrative costs
are financed by this vote and recommends that, in future, costs of
the board be charged to some other vote.

43. Current comment by the Auditor General. In the main esti-
mates, 1960-61, the wording of the vote for salaries and contingencies of
the Civil Service Commission (vote 65) is enlarged to provide for the
payment of ‘“‘compensation in accordance with the suggestion award
plan of the public service of Canada”. In the details of the estimates
(page 2), an amount of $32,000 is listed opposite a special object of
expenditure heading, the effect being that a ceiling is placed on the
payments, subject to increase only with the approval of treasury board.

Mr. HENDERSON: This recommendation of your committee in 1959 has been
carried out, as is indicated in paragraph 43. That is to say, in the main
estimates for 1960-61, the wording of the vote for salaries and contingencies
of the Civil Service Commission is enlarged to provide for the payment of
“compensation in accordance with the suggestion award plan of the public
service of Canada”. In the details of the estimates—page 2—an amount of
$32,000 is listed opposite a special object of expenditure heading, the effect
being that a ceiling is placed on the payments, subject to increase only with
the approval of treasury board. This I interpret to have the effect of carrying
out your recommendation.

Mr. WincH: May I ask what were the charges in 1958-59?

Mr. HENDERSON: $38,160.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any questions, gentlemen; if not, paragraphs
44 and 45, International relief payments.

International relief payments

44. The following is included under this heading in the Committee’s
second report, 1959:

To establish the present state of affairs, your Committee recom-
mends that the Department of Finance decide whether the govern-
ment has any financial responsibility with respect to the undistributed
balance held by the Red Cross Society. <

45, Current comment by the Auditor General. We ungierstand
that this matter is under active consideration at the present time.

Mr, HENDERSON: There was considerable discussion in this committee last
vear, I understand, regarding the international relief payments and the‘ money
handed by the government to the Red Cross Society, which led to this com-
mittee including the reference that you see under paragraph 44, in which
the Department of Finance was asked to determine whetl}er the government
has any financial responsibility with respect to the undistributed balance held

by the Red Cross Society.
22903-9—2
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We understand that this matter has been the subject of consideration by
the top officials of the Department of Finance, and at the present time they
have not reached a decision as to the extent to which the government has
any financial responsibility in this undistributed balance.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraph 46—
Mr. PIcRERSGILL: Could Mr. Bell just say a word about that?

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think the situation really is that there has been a
very considerable volume of correspondence between the deputy minister of
finance and the deputy minister of justice, trying to get a specific legal opinion
in connection with it. The most recent opinion, I believe, was some time about
mid-February, which is still under consideration; but I believe a joint opinion
will soon be sent forward by the departments of Justice and Finance to the
Department of External Affairs, outlining what is believed to be the role of
government in relation to the control of Red Cross expenditures.

As I understand it, the deputy minister of Justice has said there is a
responsibility on the government of Canada until the portion of the fund which
represents that original portion contributed is fully exhausted.

Mr. PicKERSGILL: Were those the funds for the Dutch flood? I am sorry,
but I have forgotten.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. I think they had been granted originally for that
purpose, and then they were used for one or two other purposes.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): I think it should be indicated at this point that
everyone is satisfied that the Red Cross has conducted this in a perfectly
satisfactory manner.

The CHAIRMAN: Paragraphs 46 and 47 follow.

Agricultural Institute of Canada Publications.

46. The observations made under this heading in the committee’s,
report include:

“Since 1934, the Department of Agriculture has been absorbing
the printing costs of certain publications of the agricultural institute
of Canada. The arrangement was then entered into because of the
financial problems of the society. In 1957-58, costs absorbed by the
department exceeded $18,600, with the amount distributed over six
votes of the department.

: “It is long established practice to disclose in the estimates
any grant to a non-governmental body, but that has never been
done in this case. Moreover, it is generally regarded as being
contrary to the public interest indirectly to subsidize what is
represented to the public as a non-public publication. Your com-
mittee is therefore of the opinion that the existing situations should
be reviewed and corrected.”

47. Current comment by the Auditor General. In hte 1960-61 main
estimates the wording of the annual appropriation for the information
division of the Department of Agriculture was enlarged as follows:

Vote 2 Information division including a grant
in the amount of $26,000 to the agri-
cultural institute of Canada ........ $638,410

This .enlax.‘gement in the wording of the vote would appear to remedy
the situation commented upon by the committee, by bringing the grant
under parliamentary control.
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Mr.: HENDERSON: As stated under paragraph 46, it has been the practice
of the Department of Agriculture to absorb the printing costs of certain
publications of the agricultural institute of Canada. In 1957-58, costs ab-
sorbed in this way exceeded $18,600.

Your committee felt, for the reason stated here, that the existing situation
should be reviewed and corrected.

Now, in the 1960-61 main estimates, the wording of the annual appropria-
tion for the information division of the Department of Agriculture seemed
to meet this by the wording that is shown under vote 2; that is to say—infor-
mation division including a grant in the amount of $26,000 to the agricultural
institute of Canada. It appeared to us that this remedied the situation upon
which you commented last year.

Mr. WincH: In this regard, how much was spent in 1958-59?

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, the 1958-59 costs which were absorbed by various
Department of Agriculture appropriations totalled about $19,000, with addi-
tional commitments of $6,000 carried forward to 1959-60.

Mr. McGeE: Would you repeat the second part of your answer.

Mr. HENDERSON: In 1958-59 costs which were absorbed by the various
Department of Agriculture appropriations totalled about $19,000, with addi-
tional commitments of $6,000 carried forward to 1959-60. Now, that is in
answer to Mr. Winch’s question. You see the $26,000 under paragraph 47.

Mr. WincH: Would that include what has been carried forward?

Mr. HENDERSON: No, that was to 1959-60. The $26,000 that was provided
for by this enlarged wording, to which I referred, which you see under para-
graph 47, consists of $25,000 to cover the cost of printing the Canadian Journal
of Animal Science, the Canadian Journal of Soil Science and the Canadian
Journal of Plant Science, plus $1,000 to cover the travelling expenses of an
editorial board. :

Mr. WincH: But from now on it is going to be a straight grant, and the
institute will have to accept the responsibility of the cost of the publications.
Is that what it means?

Mr. HENDERSON: Yes.

Mr. McGee: Does it mean that in tidying this up we have spent $8,000
more?

Mr. HENDERSON: We understand that the $6,000 worth of commitments,
which are referred to and carried forward to 1959-60, are, i.n fact, included
in the $26,000. So, you bring it back to the same figure which you had the
previous year—or, more or less.

Mr. McGeg: Is it fair to ask what the grant will be next year? Would
it be in the order of $20,000 or in the order of $26,000?

Mr. HENDERSON: That is for the department to answer. I do not believe
we have that. :

The CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions, gentlemen, we will

proceed to paragraphs 48 to 50.

Service Forces Expenditures. .
48. It was noted in the committee’s report that cqnsideratlon had
been given to “some cases of extremely high t}"ansportatlon ‘and removal
expenses incurred by the service forces which were decidedly unre-
alistic”, and the following comment was recordegli 1
It is recognized that those subject to m.lhtar.y.d1sc1phn§-: neces-
sarily enjoy limited discretionary powers in raising queries w.1th
respect to decisions of superiors but, financial consequences falling
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on taxpayers generally, it is recommended that, simultaneously
with the review of regulations and practices, consideration be given
to extending the financial role of the civilians in the department
to prevent the recurrence of similar extravagances in the future.

49. Current comment by the Auditor General. One case which had
given rise to the comment by the committee was that mentioned in
the Auditor General’s report for 1957-58, where there had been reim-
bursement of the $313 cost incurred in a short local removal. In a
departmental review of practices associated with removals, it was
decided that effective financial control would best be attained in the
case of local moves, were a cash allowance of a set sum established,
to apply regardless of the distances travelled, the rank of the claimant
or other circumstances. The Minister of National Defence informed
the House of Commons on March 9, 1960 (Hansard, p. 1883) that “under
the new regulations servicemen are limited now to an allowance of
$75 to cover these costs, but in exceptional circumstances authority

may be granted for the reimbursement of expenses in excess of this
amount”.

50. Action has also been taken by the department along the lines
recommended by the committee, by arranging with the chief treas-
ury officer in the department that transportation and removal expense
claims submitted to his office for payment, and thought to be excessive
or unreasonable, would be held back for review by civilian adminis-
trative officers of the department.

Mr. HENDERSON: Your reference under this heading had to do with the
question of transportation and moving, where you recommended that considera-
tion be given to extending the financial role of the civilians in the department
to prevent the occurrence of similar extravagances in the future.

I believe considerable publicity attached to this case and action, as we
know, has been taken by the department, along the lines you recommended,
by arranging with the chief treasury officer that transportation and removal
expense claims submitted to his office for payment, and thought to be excessive
or unreasonable, would be held back for review by civilian administrative
officers of the department; in addition to which, on March 9, 1960, as is noted
under paragraph 49, the Minister of National Defence informed the House of
Commons that under the new regulations servicemen are limited now to an
allowance of $75 to cover these costs, but in exceptional circumstances
authority may be granted for the reimbursement of expenses in excess of this
amount.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: You said there was a civilian review. What has been the
result of the review, or has it been completed?

Mr. HENDERSON: It is my understanding that it has been completed,
because of the action taken by the department to cause these things to be
reviewed by the civilians in the department.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: It was a general review?
Mr. HENDERSON: It is a continuous review which goes on.

The CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions, gentlemen, let us proceed
to paragraphs 51 to 52.

Post Office Savings Bank

51. Comments were included in the committee’s second report, 1959,
regarding the changes that had taken place over the past half-century
in the relationship between post office savings bank deposits and
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deposits in the chartered banks, which might be expected to affect post
office savings bank policy. The committee suggested that consideration
be given to the present-day role of the post office savings bank—although
it indicated that it would be unfortunate were service discontinued at
the approximately 450 communities that were wholly dependent on the
post office for banking service.,

52. Current comment by the Auditor General. We understand that
the Post Office Department has continued throughout 1959 to give con-
sideration to this matter.

Mr. HENDERSON: Well, in your 1959 report—in fact, you concluded your
1959 report by commenting on the post office savings bank; and you dealt with
the changes that had taken place over the past half century in regard to the
relationship between the post office savings bank deposits and the chartered
banks, which might be expected to affect post office savings bank policy.

You suggested that consideration be given to the present-day role of the
post office savings bank—although you added that it would be unfortunate if
services were discontinued at approximately 450 communities which were
apparently wholly dependent on them for banking service.

I discussed this mattear with the officials of the Post Office Department,
and I understand that they are continuing to give consideration to this problem.
I asked them some questions in regard to the operation of these post office
savings banks, and I learned that the cost of operation—that is to say, salaries
and other expenses—was about $319,000 in 1958-59.

Now, the interest credited to the accounts they carry is at the level of 2}
per cent which amounted to about $821,000 during the year. Therefore, the
total outlay for the use of the depositors’ funds can be set approximately at
$1,140,000; and when you relate this to the level of deposits tpey carry, wpich
average about $34,500,000, you see that the use of the money is being obtained
for a cost of around 3% per cent.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: Instead of 6.16, which was paid at one point last year on
90-day money.

Mr. HENDERSON: But I am referring to the Post Office.

Mr. WiINcH: That is used by the government, which is natural. If that is
credited by the government as being a revenue, then all these post office

savings branches— ; : 4
Mr. HENDERSON: No, there would be no revenue credited, Mr._ Winch. It is
a service they provide, in respect to which it costs them a certain amount of

money; and on which they have to pay interest.
Mr. WincH: Did you say that there was around $34 million on deposit?

Mr. HENDERSON: There was $34 million loaned or on deposit.

Mr. Winch: Is there any kind of a record?

Mr. Hexperson: I would like to ask Mr. Stevenson if he would answer
that question.

Mr. I. STEVENSON (Assistant Auditor General): To what type of record
are you referring? ? : niRat

: it now, the cost of giving this service—that is, the

salarli\:[els.. :ZtliN tclﬁa iﬁtsexzth;:ii ctnndeposits—is about $1,100,000'. Tbe government
makes use of that $34 million. Is anything shown on the credit side for the use

A i diture of
of that money, or does that appear to us as just .bemg an expen
$1,100,000; and on the other side of the picture there is the use the government

is getting.
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Mr. STEVENSON: It would be just the expenditure which would show. The
cost incurred by the Post Office Department would be included in the Post
Office Department charges, and the interest paid on the deposits would be
included as a charge to finance department expenditure as part of the interest
on public debt.

Mr. WincH: I am having a bit of difficulty in regard to this. Perhaps I may
be confused; does the government use that money just as though it is their
money, and they pay no interest on it? Or do they pay interest to someone?

Mr. STEVENSON: Yes, the government uses it as if it were its money. For
example, there is no separate fund maintained. It is part of the consolidated
revenue fund.

Mr. HENDERSON: But there is no interest paid by the department of gov-
ernment using the $34 million to the Post Office to offset their costs.

Mr. WincH: In other words, what we should do is build up this service,
because the government gets the money interest free, outside of the 3% per
cent, which is the cost they pay out.

Mr. PickersGILL: I understand there is a 2% per cent interest rate paid,
and that is paid by the Post Office Department. Is it shown as part of the
expenditure of the Post Office Department?

Mr. STEVENSON: No; it is included as a charge to interest on the public debt.

Mr. PickeERsGILL: Well, it is like any other loan.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: When was the last revision made of the rate paid to
the depositors?

Mr. HENDERSON: I would have to ask the Post Office Department for that
information. I presume they have followed more or less the practice of the
“ chartered banks.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: I was wondering if they do.

Mr. HENDERSON: I imagine they have to because they are, in a sense, com-
petitive with them.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): I am not clear on our situation in this. Does the 3}
per cent which was mentioned include only the administrative cost or the
interest charge as well? In other words, is the gross cost 31 per cent or
5% per cent?

Mr. HeENDERSON: No; that is my calculation. $319,000 is what the Post Office
figures it costs for the salaries and expenses incurred in looking after these
accounts. There were 302,000 accounts across the country, an increase of
1,700 over last year; so, you have that many people using the services. In
addition to that they pay 2% per cent interest on the balance, so that the whole
operation costs about $1,140,000 to be able to borrow $34} million.

Mr. MacpoNALD (Kings): Does the post office have a savings branch in all
of their offices? They do not do any advertizing and I do not think it is
generally known they provide this service.

Mr. HENDERSON: It is my understanding they do not have them in all the
post offices, but that they maintain them in the country on rural districts.
They actually open them in areas where there are no chartered banks. I was
not aware of this until I looked into it, but there are 450 spots where there is
a post office but no chartered bank; so they are rendering a service.

Mr. McGEE: During the war that service also existed at service stations.

Mr. PickersGILL: I wonder if there is anyone here from the Post Office
Department who could tell us what the geographical distribution is.

. Mr. HENDERSON: That information could be obtained. I do not have it
ere.
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Mr. P1cKERSGILL: I notice there is a note here which indicates there are 450
places where there are these offices, and where presumably there are no
chartered banks or similar institutions at which persons can deposit their
money. I remember a discussion about this when it was pointed out this
was geographically pretty largely concentrated in certain parts of eastern
Canada. At that time interest rates were much lower than they are now
and we were considering whether or not this service was costing too much.
It was decided not to scrap it, for precisely this reason, I think it would be
rather interesting for the committee to have from time to time a review to
see where these places are which depend on this service exclusively.

The CHAIRMAN: We will get that for the record. (See Appendix “A-2")

Gentlemen, that concludes our discussion of the memorandum and in point
of fact we have no further business before us today, except to decide as to
when we will hold our next meeting. We have one scheduled for April 13.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: I think there is some suggestion we meet in the morning
of the 13th. I think that would be inadvisable.

Mr. PIckKERSGILL: I also think it would be very inadvisable. There will be
attempts, I think, to hold caucus or some kind of meetings on that morning and
it is also suggested that the house might meet.

Mr. WincH: I was going to suggest that, as many members may be leaving
early, perhaps we should advance the date.

The CHAIRMAN: If that is the wish, the next meeting wil be on April 27, the
first Wednesday after the Easter adjournment.



90 STANDING COMMITTEE

APPENDIX “A-2”

Information requested by Mr. Pickersgili re: Post Office Savings Banks.
April 6, 1960.

Geographical distribution of communities wholly dependent on the Post

Office for banking services:
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On Page 76. The fourth last paragraph should read:

“The position on this matter is not easy, as Mr. Pickersgill well knows.
It has been considered on several occasions by the public accounts committee.
The last time it had an exhaustive study was in 1950. At that time it was
realized that it would result in a less satisfactory picture being given to par-
~ liament of the net appropriations needed by the department. That was the
view of the public accounts committee. There is some point to that attitude.”

On Page 77. Lines 4 to 6 should read:

“I think we had a complete revision of them in 1937, and another com-
plete revision again in 1950. It seems to me this part of the whole question
of estimates procedure, and control by parliament.”
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, April 27, 1960.
(5)
The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9.35 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Brassard (Chicoutimi)
Danforth, Denis, Fisher, Keays, Macdonald (Kings), Macdonnell (Greenwood),
Macnaughton, McGee, McGregor, Morissette, Morton, Pickersgill, Pigeon, Pratt:
Smith (Simcoe North), Smith (Winnipeg North), Spencer, Villeneuve, Winch,
and Wratten.—(23)

In attendance: From the Office of the Auditor General: Mr. A. Maxwell
Henderson, Auditor General; Mr. Ian Stevenson, Assistant Auditor General;
and Mr. E. Cook.

Representing the Canada Council: Dr. A. W. Trueman, Director; Mr.
Eugéne Bussiére, Associate Director; Dr. J. F. Leddy, Member and Vice-
President of National Commission for UNESCO; Mr. D. H.'Fullerton, Treasurer;
Mr. Peter Dwyer, Supervisor of Arts program; and Miss L. Breen, Secretary
of Council.

The Auditor General supplied information requested previously by Mr.
McGee, respecting the costs of certain agricultural publications.

Mr. Bell (Carleton) requested that certain corrections be made in the
Committee’s printed proceedings No. 3.

The Chairman introduced the representatives of the Canada Council, and
he referred to the absence of the Honourable Brooke Claxton due to illness.

Mr. Henderson made a brief statement respecting the Auditors’ Report
on the operations of the Canada Council.

Dr. Trueman outlined the responsibilities, aims and operations of the
Council.

Dr. Leddy explained the establishment, purposes and work of the Cana-
dian National Commission for UNESCO. He was questioned by Members of
the Committee, thanked and permitted to retire.

The following documents were distributed to members of the Committee:

(1) The Canadian National Commission for UNESCO

(2) Dialogue 1959—Canada and the Orient

(3) Canada and Asia

(4) Newsletter—Vol. 11, No. 2.

Dr. Trueman, with the use of charts, outlined the ﬁn-ancial position of
the University Capital Grants Fund and he answered questions thereon.

Certain statistical information respecting the work gnd finances of the
Canada Council was tabled for the information of Committee members (See
Appendix “A-3” to this day’s Proceedings).

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m., May 4, 1960.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, April 27, 1960.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I call the meeting to order

First of all. I would like to introduce a new memb ;

) : er, Mr. L.-J. Pigeon
the member for Joliette-I’Assomption-Montcalm i :

, Wh i
deliberations. Bl (8 e
When we met last there was a question raised b i
‘ y Mr. Frank McG

regard to the agricultural institute of Canada publications. The ZZZ:;E?
General now has an answer to the question that he raised at that time, and
I would ask him if he would give the answer. :

Mr. A. MaxwEeLL HENDERSON (Auditor General of Canada): Mr. Chair-
man, the members will recall that Mr. McGee asked questions directed towards
ascertaining if there had been increases since 1957-58 in expenditures by the
Depa{'tment of Agriculture on the agricultural institute of Canada publications
The information given in reply to his question was confused, we found b};
refe.rences to commitments carried forward; and I would therefore lik:e to
clarify the situation by giving the information regarding the actual costs of
the publications printed during the past three years.

Mr. McGEgE: Mr. Chairman, you Very kindly indicated the extent and
!el?gth of the reply, and it would satisfy me completely. I am wondering
if it might be more desirable, to have it placed on the record rather than hold
up the proceedings concerning the other matter of business that is before

us today.
The CHAIRMAN: Would you like it inserted at this point?

Mr. HENDERSON: There are only three figures, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McGee: I thought you indicated there were more than that.

Mr. HenpersoN: In 1957-58 the cost was $18,600, which was noted in this
committee’s second report, 1959. This amount was the cost of printing 20,400
copies of various journals in that year. In 1958-59 the cost of printing 19,500
copies of the journals was $25,300. In 1959-60 the cost of printing about the
same number, 19,500, was approximately $28,500, which included an estimate
of $1,100 to cover the final cost. In other words, the costs had been increasing,
which is the point I think you wished to establish.

The CHAIRMAN: Anything else, Mr. McGee?

Mr. McGeg: No, thank you.
Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Mr. Chairman, might I make two corrections in the
record of the last proceedings, which have some significance?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Bell?
Mr. BeLL (Carleton): On the eighteenth line from th

I am quoted as having said:
The position on this matter is no

well knows.

e bottom of page 76

t very difficult as Mr. Pickersgill
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I actually intended to say the reverse of that, which is:
The position on this matter is not easy, as Mr. Pickersgill well knows.

On page 77, in the fourth and fifth lines, the dates are incorrectly given.
The date in the fourth line is given as “1950,” and it should be “1937.” In
the next line the date given is “1957,” and should be “1950,” so that the
sentence correctly reads:

I think we had a complete revision of them in 1937, and another
complete revision again in 1950.

The CHAIRMAN: Any other corrections, gentlemen?

Our main purpose this morning is to consider the second annual report,
to March 31, 1959, of the Canada Council. Have all the members got copies
of the report? If not, we have extra copies here.

I should explain to the committee that Mr. Brooke Claxton phoned last
evening to say that he was very anxious to appear before the committee and
hoped to appear next week, if he is able, but that he did not feel well enough
to appear this morning. He requested that he be released, and I took it upon
myself, in your name, to say: “Why certainly, that is quite all right,” and that
if he could appear next week we would be happy to have him.

We have with us today several prominent witnesses who will appear on
behalf of the Canada Council, and if I may I would like to introduce them.

To my right is Dr. A. W. Trueman, who is director of the Canada Council,
and has been since its inception. Before that he was president of the university
of New Brunswick, and was subsequently chairman of the national film board.
Now, of course, he is director of the Canada Council.

Then we have Mr. Eugéne Bussiére, associate director of the Canada Coun-
cil, who was formerly with the Department of Citizenship and Immigration,
and director of the citizenship branch.

Also we have with us Dr. J. F: Leddy, who is dean of arts of the university
of Saskatchewan, and has been a member of the council since its inception
in 1957. He is vice-president of the national commission for UNESCO.

We also have Mr. D. H. Fullerton, who has appeared in front of this com-
mittee before, and he is treasurer of the council; Mr. Peter Dwyer, super-
visor of the arts program; and our good friend Miss L. Breen, secretary of the
Canada Council.

So, I feel that if we could really put our witnesses to work and get some
information this morning, that is phase one of our operations.

Before we do that, however, the Auditor General, as is his duty, has
prepared a report on the Canada Council, and with your permission I would
like to ask him to make his report to the committee immediately.

Mr. HeENDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Section 22 of the Canada Council Act requires the accounts and financial
transaction of the council to be audited annually by the Auditor General and
the report on the audit to be made to the council and to the Prime Minister
as the member of the Queen’s Privy Council for Canada designated by the
governor in council for the purpose.

The report of the Auditor General dated May 14, 1959, covering the
examination of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 1959, summarized
the transactions in the endowment fund and the university capital grants fund.
The audit for the council’s financial year ended March 31, 1960, has not yet
been completed.
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Endowment Fund

The report showed that interest and dividends earned on investments during
the financial year 1958-59 totalled $2,758,760 to which was added the unex-
pended balance of $771,871 brought forward from the preceding year, making
a total of $3,530,631 available for expenditure. Expenditures amounted to
$2,960,757 consisting of $2,666,299 for authorized grants and awards, $269,838
for administrative expenses and $24,620 in respect of direct outlays on behalf
of the Canadian national commission for UNESCO. Expenses relating to this
commission and also to the administration of the university capital grants fund
are included in the administrative expenses of the endowment fund. The sur-
plus remaining at March 31, 1959, available for expenditures under section 16
of the Canada Council Act thus totalled $569,874.

An outline of the manner in which the investment portfolio of the fund
was managed during the year is given in part seven of the annual report of
the council. Under section 19 of the act, the council has authority to invest and
reinvest. The investment committee of the council approved purchase of
securities during the year to a total figure of $55,821,601 representing a turn-
over ratio of 1.12 times during the year in terms of the $50,000,000 original
principal amount of the fund. The interest yield for the year in relation thereto

was 5.5%.

University Capital Grants Fund

The balance at credit of this fund at March 31, 1958, was $48,250,685. In-
terest on investments amounted to $1,812,384 and net profit on the disposal of
securities was $1,101,832. After providing $8,732,264 for authorized grants under
section 9 of the Act, a balance of $42,432,637 remained at the credit of the fund
at the end of the year.

In the 1957-58 audit report, information was given regarding those grants
made to universities for student residences. The nature of these came up for
discussion before the public accounts committee and was referred to by the
committee in its third report, 1959, although no suggestion or recommendation
regarding the matter was made by the committee.

In April 1958, the council obtained legal opinion regarding the question:
“Could a grant be made for a building to be used as a students’ residence?”
In answer to this question, the opinion stated:

Yes, provided the proposed residence is to be established and
operated as more than a mere rooming or boarding house so that its
existence and operation may fairly be said to be in furtherance of the
council’s objects as defined in section 8(1) of the Act. Drawing a precise
line 'in this respect is not easy, and indeed is probably not necessary.
Clearly the inclusion in a residence of such facilities as a library, musiec
room, common room, discussion room and so on, with a warden and
possibly one or more members of the faculty living in, makes such

¢ residence much more in the developing life of a resident student than a
mere rooming or boarding house.

Our examination of the grants made to universities during the year ended
March 31, 1959, disclosed that those made for students’ residences during that
year were for residences having the facilities suggested by this legal opinion.

Enquiries have been made regarding grants made for student residences
during the financial year just ended, that is, to March 31, 1960. The following
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table shows the grants approved for students’ residences during the three years
ended March 31, 1960, in relation to the total grants approved for the construc-
tion of buildings, and shows a drop in this relationship during 1959-60:

Students’
residences All buildings
YO5T=58 o Lok iinalits $1,694,000 $ 4,084,300 419,
BIBBDD b o sad iy 44 5,060,791 8,732,264 589
TAB0B0- s St 2% 697,000 9,175,979 7%
Cumulative to :
March 31, 1960 ..... 7,451,791 21,992,543 349,

In other words the percentage for students’ residences in 1958-59 moved
up to 58 per cent from 41 per cent and in 1959-60 dropped to 7 per cent.

In its third report, 1959, the committee considered the question of the
allocations of grants to provinces and noted that the grants were conditional
on (a) no grant exceeding one-half of the total expenditures made in respect
of the assisted project, and (b) the $50 million being allocated to each province
in the same proportion as the population of the province, according to the
latest census, is to the aggregate population. The amounts annually added to
the fund for interest earned on investments and for net profit on disposal of
securities are allocated to the provinces on the same statutory basis regardless
of the extent to which original allocations had previously been used in the
making of grants.

Records are maintained by the council showing the allocations to the
several provinces, and the grants approved in relation to such allocations. The
following is a summary of the position at March 31, 1959:

(in $1,000)

Original Interest Total
Province Alloca- and Alloca- Grants Balances
tions Profits tions Approved Available
Adberta (5. L. L. $ 3,499 8678 53,866 $ 305 $ 3,561
British Columbia. 4,357 457 4,814 2333 2,482
Manitoba ....... 2,649 278 2,927 1,130 1,797
New Brunswick . 1,727 181 1,908 1,132 776
Newfoundland ... 1,293 136 1,429 — 1,429
Nova Scotia ..... 2,165 227 2,392 979 1,413

Prince Edward

Felantlt o . ok 309 33 342 142 199
Quebec ......... 14,419 1,514 15,933 — 15,933
Saskatchewan ... 2,744 288 3,032 437 2,596
@ntatiors io. . 16,838 1,768 18,606 6,359 12,247
50,000 5,249 55,249 12,817 42,433

Scope of Audit

The books of account of the Canada council are maintained at its offices
in Ottawa under the direct supervision of its treasurer. In addition to his
responsibility for the collection of revenues accruing to and expenditures made
from both funds pursuant to the Canada Council Act, the treasurer handles all
purchases and sales of securities in the investment portfolios under the general
direction of the investment committee of the council.

i-:; O
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_Our examinatiqn for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1959, included a
review of the council’s cash and banking transactions and reconciliation of its
bank balapces with certificates received direct from its bankers at the close of
the financial year. All awards made out of the university capital grants fund
and awards in excess of $1,000 from the endowment fund were checked with
the authorizations issued by the council. All transactions involving purchases
an.d sales of securities in the investment portfolios were verified and checked
with the minutes of the investment committee of the council. The bond and
debenture holdings at March 31, 1959, were verified by direct certificate from
the bank of Canada and the stocks were similarly verified by the Montreal
Trust Company, Montreal where they are held. Confirmations were received
direct from chartered banks covering the principal amounts of National Hous-
ing Act insured mortgages, held as part of the endownment fund portfolio.

That completes my report.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, are there any questions at this time?

Mr. FisHEr: You quoted a legal opinion. Where did it come from?

Mr. HeENDERSON: That was obtained by the Canada Council from their
attorney.

Mr. FisHER: Who was their attorney?

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): G. E. Beament, Q.C.
Mr. FisHER: Could you tell me what is his educational background, such
as university, college and that sort of thing.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): R.M.C., university of Toronto and Osgoode Hall.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Eminently respectable, I am sure.
Mr. FiSHER: Would you again repeat how this came into your report.

Mr. HEnDERSON: This committee looked into this matter.

Mr. FisHer: I remember.

Mr. HenpERSON: The Canada Council obtained legal opinion in April, 1958.

Mr. Fisger: But you have made the point that the percentage going to
students’ residences has dropped off. Is this an indication tbat the council has
had some second thoughts about the amount of money which is going into
University residences.

Mr. HenDERSON: I think this is a point on which Dr. Trueman might care

to speak.
Mr. Fisger: Then why did you put it into your report? Why did you think

it was relevant?

Mr. HENDERSON:
point, was interested in it and it seeme
figures over a three year period.

Mr. Frsger: Thank you.

Mr. MacponNELL: At this particular point would it be relevant to deal
with the question of time. It is now a year after the completion of the report
and I am wondering if this is to be a normal delay.

Mr. HEnpERSON: I myself raised the same question and discussed it with
the officials. In some respects actually it would help us if the financial year
were December 31. As it turns out the government fiscal year of March 31
fits in very much better in the cycle of their disbursements and operations, as
they have the benefit of a full and complete year, so to speak, in their opera-
tions. Therefore, the figures reflect more accurately what they are doing. It
is unfortunate, however, that we cannot produce the March 31, 1960, figures

at our meeting at this time.

Because it was evident the committee, having raised this
d the obvious thing to show the relative
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Mr. MACDONNELL: Apparently we will be here for some little time longer
and I am wondering if we might have the next report some time before
prorogation. I do not want to make heavy weather about this.

Mr. HEnDERSON: I think it was tabled in parliament last year on July 10.
I would imagine it would be about the same time this year.

The CHAIRMAN: Last year we raised this point because we felt we were
always a year behind. The Auditor General has given us more up to date
figures this year; whether or not it is legal I do not know. We do not like
to be always a year behind and we raised that with the Canada Council and
suggested they consider it.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I have no further comments at this moment.

The CHAIRMAN: If there are no further questions, we have with us Dr.
Trueman who would like to make an opening statement.

Dr. A. W. TRUEMAN (Director of Canada Council): Mr. Chairman and
hon. members of the standing committee on public accounts: Mr. Claxton,
chairman of the Canada Council, asked me to begin whatever remarks I
should make by first of all expressing to you his regret at being unable to
be here this morning. However, if he should be needed subsequently, he tells
me that he will make every possible effort to be present.

I am also to report the inability of the vice-chairman, the Rev. Father
Lévesque, to be present.

We were unable to give Father Lévesque sufficient warning to enable
him to cancel some important public engagements of some standing which
had been advertised in the press, and he found himself in a dilemma.

The committee has had referred to it the annual report of the Canada
Council for the fiscal year ending on March 31, 1959. The fiscal year of the
council coincides with that of the government. The report under review, then,
covers the second year of the council’s operations.

The third year has just been completed, on March 31, 1960. The report
covering the third year has not yet been completed, approved, or printed.
Nevertheless, the council wishes to make every effort to provide the hon. mem-
bers of the committee with as much information as possible. We have there-
fore prepared certain figures which cover the greater part of the third year’s
operations, that is, up to February 22, 1960, which may be used for comparison.
In the use of these figures, therefore, it should be understood that they are
for only part of the year 1959-60, that some of them are estimates, and
that they have not yet been subjected to complete audit.

Turning to the report for 1958-59, we see that it begins with a general
introduction followed by part one which deals with organization. I may
add to this part that whereas the staff at the end of this fiscal year under
review stood at 25, it now numbers 29. A large part of the work of the
staff is the handling of applications for assistance from individuals. The
scholarship and ‘fellowship scheme is reported in part 3, the endowment
fund.

I shall point out one or two facts in connection with that section of the
program when I come to part 3.

I draw the attention of the committee to two displays of publications;
the one on the left of the chairman is issued by the council, and the one
on my right is issued by the national commission for UNESCO. The council
maintains the the secretariat for the commission, and a member of the
Canada Council, Dr McKenzie, president of the university of British Columbia,
is president of the national commission.

Dr. Leddy, who has been introduced to you this morning, is vice-president
of the national commission for UNESCO.
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Part two of the report deals with the university capital grants fund.
This is set out at page nine, where grants given during the year are listed.

Further details of the financial statement concerning the university capital
grants fund are given on page 46.

The hon. members will recall that payments to universities and similar
institutions of higher learning, for assistance in meeting the costs of buildings,
are to be made out of the capital, profits and interest of the university capital
grants fund.

The total amount of the fund, which began at $50 million, is to be di-
vided among the institutions in the various provinces in the proportion which
the population of each province bears to the total population of Canada.

As a matter of policy, the council decided to recognize as eligible for
grants the universities and similar institutions of higher learning which
are recognized as such by the national conference of Canadian universities
and colleges, and used by that organization as a basis for the allocation of the
annual per capita federal grants, which at the present time is at the rate
of $150 per person in Canada.

The council has consistently sought the advice and cooperation of the
universities in connection with this part of the council’s program, and what
has been done has had the complete approval of the universities acting
through their national organization.

So far, grants have been made only from the original capital sum of $50
million. At the present time the council is considering how the profits and
the interests for the university capital grants fund are to be allocated, first
as among all the eligible institutions, and second as among the eligible insti-
tutions within each province. That is a problem which needs some study,
and the council is looking into it at the moment.

The point I want to make is that so far the profits and the interest
have been kept as separate entities, and the grants have been made out of
the $50 million only.

Part three deals with the endowment fund. The grants made from
this fund are listed in some detail on pages 12, 13, 15, and 16. With refer-
ence to the scholarship and fellowship program, the hon. members may be
interested to have the following figures.

The numbers of applicants and of scholarships awarded in each of the
years 1957-58, and 1958-59, together with an incomplete return for 1959-60
are as follows: :

Applicants in the first year numbered 1615; in the second year, they
numbered 1620; and in the third year up to February 22, 1960, they num-

bered 1764.
That last number of 1764 is likely to go up over the 1800 mark, I feel

quite certain, or substantially more than 1800..
Awards in the first year numbered 450; in the second year, 571; and in

the third year up to April 11, 1960, 435. .
There will be additions to that number before the scholarship scheme

for the year is closed out. : : '

I should point out that in considering the various cai}egqnes of awards
we are in constant touch with members of leading organizations represent-
ing the arts, humanities, and social sciences, and that we h.ave -als_o held a
number of conferences at which the program has been considered in detail,
conferences to which we invited representatives from the _lengtl} and breadth
of Canada, with respect to the arts, humanities, and social sciences, to use
the words naming the council’s responsibility. ' i

Part four of the report is an endeavour to make‘clear certain policies and
to discuss problems which arise in connection with the arts program of
the council. Between pages 28 and 29 is inserted an interesting chart to
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which the attention of the hon. members is directed. This chart shows
something of the work which the council has done in the dissemination of
the arts in Canada from Saint John’s to Vancouver.

Part five deals with one of the special functions of the council, which
is to exchange with other countries knowledge and information respecting
the arts, humanities, and social sciences and to arrange for the representation
and interpretation of the arts, humanities, and social sciences in other coun-
tries. This responsibility has been discharged in a number of different forms,
as will be seen on pages 36 to 41 of the report.

Another special function of the council under PC1957-831 has been to
set up the national commission for UNESCO, to maintain its secretariat, and to
act as liaison between the commission and the government. A review of
these activities is given in part six.

The opening meeting of the commission, I believe, took place in this room,
sir, and was addressed by the Prime Minister himself. Dr. N. A. M. Mac-
Kenzie, president of the commission, was prevented from attending because
at that time he was presiding over a convocation of the university of British
Columbia.

The vice president of the commission, Dr. J. F. Leddy, is here this morning
and, if it is the wish of the committee, might I suggest that, as Dr. Leddy
has journayed specially from Saskatoon to be here for this meeting, it might
be possible, after I have finished within a minute or two, for the committee
to take up any questions it has with regard to the UNESCO program with
Dr. Leddy. This would ensure the use of Dr. Leddy’s services while he is here.

In part 7, the finances of the council are dealt with. The financial state-
ments are here; the report of the Auditor General is here. You have heard
the Auditor General this morning. If any further questions are raised, the
treasurer of the council is here.

At this point, I should like to express, on behalf of Mr. Claxton and all
the members of the investment committee and, indeed, of all members and
officers of the council, deep regrets at the loss of the late Mr. James Muir.
Mr. Muir had been a highly valued member of the investment committee from
the start, and had given services of the highest quality to its work.

On a completely different note, Mr. Chairman, the committee also regrets
the loss of another valued member, in the person of General Georges Vanier,
who, on becoming the Governor General of Canada, of course, resigned his
place on the council and therefore on the investment committee as well.

Part 8 of the report is the conclusion, in which are recorded some reflec-
tions on two years of council activity.

I think I should report, Mr. Chairman, that on April 15, 1959, the terms
of six members of the council expired: Mrs. Reginald Arkell, Mr. M. Jules
Bazin, Mr. L. W. Brockington, Mr. Samuel Bronfman, Mr. Fred Emerson and
Mr. Eric Harvie. Two of these were reappointed for a second term—Mr.
Brockington and Mr. Bronfman.

I know the chairman would wish me to express appreciation for the
council generally of the loyal and effective work which the retiring members
performed so faithfully and fruitfully during their’ period of service in the
early, formative days of the council.

The remaining members most cordially welcome the new appointees:
- Mrs. Margaret Harvey, Mr. F. Lynch-Staunton, Mr. M. Emile Tellier, Mr.
Gerald Winter and Mr. Marcel Faribault, who was appointed to fill the place
vacated by General Georges Vanier, now our Governor General, to whose
resignation reference has already been made.

That is all I wish to say for the moment, Mr. Chairman. I have some charts
here for display which I shall be glad to show the members later on. They

e s i e A A R T
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may serve to bring before you in graphic form some of the information you
want and provide some figures for comparison between the figures of the
report we are examining and of two-thirds or three quarters of the year
which we have just finished. But that can come later.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Dr. Trueman. Gentlemen, Dr. Leddy, dean
of arts, university of Saskatchewan, is here specially this morning. May I
suggest that we postpone the questioning of Dr. Trueman on his report until
a little later, so that we may get on with questioning Dr. Leddy while he is
in Ottawa. Does that meet with the agreement of the committee?

Agreed.

N

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Leddy, have you an opening ‘statement, or anything
you wish to say?

Dr. J. F. Leopy (Member, Canada Council): Perhaps I might make a
few introductory remarks about UNESCO and our own national commission,
to provide perhaps a basis for questions, if you have some you would like to
address to me.

I might begin by pointing out that the affairs of UNESCO are somewhat
complicated and by no means easy to understand without a certain amount of
attention to the way in which it has developed as a special agency of the
United Nations. It was established in 1946, and under the terms of its con-
stitution it was agreed by the various participating countries—Canada among
them—that in due course there would be a national commission established
within each country, having the purpose of maintaining close liaison with the
international body.

For a variety of reasons, Canada’s establishment of a national commission
was considerably delayed, and various informal bodies in this country and,
of course, officials in a section of the Department of External Affairs, dealt
in the interim with many of the matters were intended under the constitution
of UNESCO to be performed by the national commission.

Ultimately, in 1957, under the Canada Council Act, provision was made
for the assumption by the Canada Council, after an appropriate order in
council, of various duties in connection with UNESCO. It was quite clear
that the council itself was not proposed as the national commission, a proposal
which had first been recommended by the Massey commission and which was
subsequently abandoned.

It was the action of the Canada Council in the latter part of 1957, which
resulted in setting up a national commission, which ig the appropria}te subject,
I take it, of our discussion this morning. That national commission, in the
first instance, is of course bound to follow, in general outline, the regulations
and the recommendations for all national comm.issi(.)n outlined in the basic
guide for such institutions under UNESCO’s constitution. . ‘

Its functions may be put under three ba§1c headings. It is the
business of a national commission to act as an adviser to the government of
the country with respect to any matters referrgd to the national comm%ss§on
by that government for advice on UNESCO affairs. Secondly, the commission
is expected to maintain liaison with all those national bodies in Canada
Wwhich will have an interest in subjects gl the profgiﬁm of UEESE% psxl'i)Ch ?S
e i le. Thirdly, it is the business of the commiss mote
adll::lrcl&(l)tvlvolg’:lézrae:c?rgﬁ understai;iing of UNESCO within this country. At this
Point our entire arrangements are directed to;vagds c’;hosehthree ObJECt“l/;eSc‘i

i advice to the government of Canada, when we are aske
for i‘t’,‘rlégc;esriz(i:ezgs reach us as a rule through the Department of External
Affairs. They come on a variety of subjects, and with gpec1al reference every
two years to the first and then the revised program circulated by UNESCO,
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for its two-year program. The budget is used as a basis of discussion for the
entire program and is presented for approval every second year, in November,
at the general conference of UNESCO. All participating governments are
given a chance, long in advance, to see the proposals of the secretariat in Paris,
and it is now the custom that each successive budget is sent to our national
commission, with a request for helpful comment for External Affairs.

This, as you can see, involves considerable work for our commission,
and it requires us to get in touch with many representative groups in Canada,
asking their opinion on a particular point. This has now been done twice:
it was done hastily in 1958, very shortly after the establishment of the com-
mission, for the 1958 conference in Paris. The process is now under way again
with respect to the November conference this year.

Taking the second point, namely the necessity of maintaing liaison with
Canadian organizations in the field of culture, science and education, I am
referring to an area which requires much effort and much patience in order
to advance the work of the commission. Here we are, if you like, at the
mercy of the possible indifference of many other organizations—a lack of
interest which, in many cases, has naturally become habitual after some ten
years in which we did not have in Canada this kind of liaison to communicate
with them.

However, I do feel that in the very short time of scarcely two years, we
have managed to secure the interest of a large number of organizations
throughout Canada, which have been appointing representatives to attend our
conferences. Through us, they have been securing a knowledge of what is being
done in the international field, and they are begining to develop considerable
interest.

There are various ways of judging this. I will offer you one objective item
of evidence, in addition to this personal assurance, and that is the number of
subscriptions to the Courier. This is a well written and brighly illustrated
publication, which comes monthly from Paris. Until the commission was
established it had a trifling subscription list in Canada—something of the
order of 20 to 30. Since our commission has begun to promote an interest in
UNESCO, that list has increased steadily until it is now well over 2,000—not
as yet an extensive subscription list, but most promising and, I think, an
objective indication that we have been developing throughout the country the
kind of interest which we are required to do as a general liaison and co-
ordinating body for UNESCO in Canada.

The third and last point which grows out of this, and is closely connected
with it, is the promotion of the general ideals involved in UNESCO. This again
is slow work, in which progress is to be observed only at rather long intervals,
and here we rely very heavily on what I think has been a very successful
initial series of publications. Those publications are set out on display for
you on the far board.

I might interject at this point the explanation that within Canada, as a
result of the long period in which no commission existed, there have been
until recently very few persons with a first-hand knowledge of UNESCO
matters. Our own associate director, Mr. Bussiére, served for some years on
the secretariat in Paris. The chief librarian of the city of Toronto, Mr. Harry
Campbell, also served some years there, and has been a great help to us.
Also, several members of the House of Commons and the Senate, as well as
other citizens, have been sent to the general conference of UNESCO, and
they also have been of much assistance. I recall that one member of this com-
mittee, Mr, Morissette, who is present today, was a delegate at the last general
conference. We have drawn heavily on the advice of such persons in preparing
the kind of publications you have seen.
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First, we have prepared our own type of newsletter which, of course, is
in both languages. This is the fifth member, and the sixth is expected shortly.
Out of the UNESCO story all over the world we pick up items which may
have special significance in Canada. Again, as in the case of the Courier, this
document is an indication, in its circulation and, particularly in the number
of reprints of special news items, of the Way we are securing a favourable
response.

UNESCO has initiated several major projects, and these have been
endorsed by the participating governments. There are three in particular, of
which we have selected one for emphasis. These three are, first the promotion
of knowledge, interest and good relations between the east and the west.
Another is an educational program in Latin America; and the third, a co-
ordinating scientific project, deals with the arid zones throughout the world.

It is the first of these to which, at this point, we have decided to give
special notice. We began by commissioning the pamphlet, which appears on
the board; it is the yellow ‘and white one, called, “Canada and Asia”, It has
on the cover a symbolic outline of the maple leaf and lotus blossom. It
describes programs, academic and otherwise, in Caqada, dealing with east-
west matters, and mentions persons who have a special knowledge of eastern
matters, and it makes recommendations for ft:lture developments in such
special studies. It is a basic and factual study which, we undgrstand, gave rise
to much immediate favourable comment from many other national commissions,
some of which have requested permission to excerpt and translate parts of it.

That basic study was followed, in due course, by the other pamphlet you
see, with the letter “D”—“Dialogue”, which is largely a report of our first
ger{eral conference in Montreal last year, on eastern and western mattgrs.
It was addressed by the Japanese ambassador, and many qther persons h?vmg
a similar first-hand competence in the field of eastc_arn affairs. These two items
have drawn attention in Canada to what is a major world concern, and one
which UNESCO is obligated to promote. : £ .

How successful is the commission? How v'vell.orgamzed is lt.? First of
all, in the matter of organization, we have tried in the constitution qf Fhe
commission to keep in view the three basic areas w1th_ “.'hmh the. commission
is required to be concerned. We have had a comm1ss1op.con51st1ng of %6
members, and a comparable number of alternates. These' include ex ofﬁgo
representatives of the Canada Council and the Depar‘tme.nt of Ex.ternal Affairs.
Also, we have designated approximately ten Qrgamzatlons, which are to be
represented at all times because their work is §o close _to' the purposg of
UNESCO—and these include the Canadian edugatlon association, th'e national
conference of Canadian universities, the Canadian teacher§ federatpn, and a
number of other bodies such as the national rese:_a.r'ch council, the national film
board and the Canadian labour congress. In addition, we have drawn from a
rather lengthy list of cooperating bodies an additional nine to be represgnted
Wwith us. These cooperating bodies cover similar areas to those I haxcrle? mentlorllsd
already, such as the Canadian historical association, "h? Ciz‘a SO ezi,
newspapers association, and there are organizations which daved elxprczssJc
an interest in the commission, and which have agreed to send a delegate to
its nference every second year. :

g;z:’ air?g(;nization might, at first glance, RN lltFle cumbersozl'z:e, but
we think it is working well. We believe that it is .helpmg" USI to ina_e <f°n-
nection with every part of Canada, with all the major nationa .°r°a?1‘zat‘°ns
and, in some instances, important provincial organizations };:asvgé)g it
aim as we have in respect to some part of the program of UN :

22959-1—2
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Finally, I would like to refer to the effectiveness or success of the com-
mission during the past two years. My own impression, after having dealt with
many bodies—especially those having coordinating or liaison tasks, which can
be tedious, slow and, for a while, unrewarding work—is that the commission
has got off to an excellent start, and its program has been pushed with con-
siderable skill and energy. It has met with a fine response.

So that you may not be left simply with my assurance on that point, I
would like to say that when we have visitors from other countries, or the
secretariat of UNESCO, some exceedingly complimentary remarks on this
have been volunteered. In Canada in the last two years we have had the
director general of UNESCO, his deputy, various high officials from the New
York and United Nations office of UNESCO. In addition, on a number of oc-
casions we have compared notes with officials of the United States UNESCO
commission. They have invariably complimented us on the speed with which
we have gotten under way and they have expressed great interest in what we
have done. \

Before I invite questions, Mr. Chairman, perhaps I could conclude this
point by reading to you a few lines from a letter received from Mr. Lawrence
Smith, a member of the executive of the American national commission, who
was with us at our annual meeting a few weeks ago in Vancouver. After
leaving Vancouver, Mr. Smith wrote Dr. MacKenzie thanking him for the
hospitality of the occasion, and he added these words—and I would like to
say before reading them that comments of this kind go well beyond the
demands of the diplomatic courtesy of the occasion, and agree exactly with
the remarks we have heard from the international officers of UNESCO—that
he was grateful for the opportunity

to see how an effective commission like yours works. I feel we have a
number of things to learn from you, and I am taking the liberty of
drawing them to the attention of some of our people.

Comment of this kind encourages us and assures us that in our various
conferences, in our contacts with people throughout Canada, we are fulfilling,
with all the capacity at our command and with notable success, the high ideals
of UNESCO and the expectations of the people of Canada to this effect when
we were established.

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Dr. Leddy.

Now, gentlemen, Dr. Leddy is “open target.” I am sure you can take care
of yourself quite well, Dr. Leddy.

Mr. WincH: I still have not got quite clear what the relationship is be-
tween the Canada Council and your set-up; and what assistance the Canada
Council gives to you directly, outside of it just being the secretariat.

Dr. Leppy: The relationship between the two is established by a clause
in the Canada Council Act which, as I said, enables the Canada Council to
assume functions with respect to UNESCO, as assigned by an order in council.

The terms of that order in council, sir, are set-up in the first annual report,
annex G, which I think was before you at your last meeting.

This is an order in council dated June 14, 1957. It sets forth the request
that the Canada Council proceed, in effect, to establish a national commission.
The order in council is relatively short. Would you like it read, Mr. Chairman?

The CHATRMAN: Yes.
Dr. Leppy: It is dated June 14, 1957.
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HIS EXCELLENCY THE GOVERNOR GENERAL IN COUNCIL:

His Excellency the Governor General in Council
: b , pursuant to
subsection (2) of section 8 of the Canada Council Act, i
to order as follows: » 15 pleased hereby

1. The Canada Council, in conformity with Arti

Constitution of the United Nations Educatig’nal, Scieniti;i%ear};HCSIftut‘I:
Organization (UNESCO), shall take steps to establish a National Com-
mission for UNESCO to assist and advise in the discharge of those
responsibilities set out in paragraphs 3. and 4. below. In organizing the
National Commission the Canada Council should take into consideration
the requirements of a National Commission as laid down in the UNESCO
Guide for National Commissions.

If T might interpolate there, this is the document to which I referred
earlier as establishing the broad lines upon which we were to work.

2. The Canada Council shall provide the secretariat for the national
commission and shall be the normal channel of communication between
the national commission and the Department of External Affairs.

3. The Canada Council, with the assistance of the national com-
mission for UNESCO as hereinabove provided, shall assume the re-
sponsibility for the following matters:

(a) Coordination of UNESCO program activities in Canada;:

(b) Canadian participation in UNESCO program activities abroad in=
cluding the provision of technical advice and assistance from expert
bodies, both governmental and non governmental, in Canada except
as provided in paragraph 4 below;

(¢) Proposals for future UNESCO programs, in consultation with the
Department of External Affairs.

4. The Canada Council, with the assistance of the national com-
mission for UNESCO as hereinabove provided, may tender advice to
the Department of External Affairs on UNESCO matters relating to:
(a) the constitution, administration and personnel;

(b) the budget and financial affairs;
(c) membership and other matters affecting Canada’s relation with
other states and with other international organizations;

(d) elections to UNESCO offices;
(e) nominations to Canadian delegations;
(f) matters likely to involve legislative action within Canada.

On receipt of this order in council the officers and members of the Canada
Council held discussions with many interested persons including, naturally,
Officers of the Department of External Affairs concerning a constitution for
he new national commission. >

It was at this point—and I take it that here is the nub of your question—
that it was agreed that the Canada Council itself would not be the national
Commission, since that would prevent the national commission being broadly
Tepresentative of many organizations which would not necessarily be
Covered by the membership of the Canada Council. Twenty-six was decided
as the number of members after looking at commissions which seemed to us
%o be too large as in the case of the United States with 100, or too small as in
Several countries where it is a subsection of a government department. Four
of the twenty-six are members of the Canada Council. The president and

22959-1—93
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the vice-president are provided from this number on nomination by the
Canada Council; but the other twenty-two persons are selected by the organiza-
tions which they represent. This is a desirable result which would not have
been possible had we had a commission of civil servants or one which coincided
entirely with the membership of the Canada Council.

Mr. WincH: How is your work financed? What is the budget?

Dr. Leppy: As directed by the order in council it is financed by the
Canada Council. The budget is $90,000 of which $35,000 is office expense
and salaries chargeable against the UNESCO budget by the Canada Council,
and the other $55,000 is for a variety of expenses including those publications
to which I have referred as well as a relatively small number of grants
to organizations or individuals which seemed to us to advance the overall
UNESCO program, for example in arranging that there should be a Canadian
delegate to an international conference at which Canada otherwise would not
be represented.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you brought copies of the publications?

Dr. LeEppy: There is a large supply on the table in the corner. This is
the material set out on the cardboard display form.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you prepared to distribute these now?
Dr. LeEppy: Yes.
The CuHAatRMAN: Will you do so please.

Mr. McGeE: I might make the suggestion that in future when a witness
like Dr. Leddy is to be before us if we could have the material a few days
in advance of the meeting it would be of help. I am seeing some of these
for the first time and that has a rather inhibiting effect on the questioning.

The CHAIRMAN: That is a very good suggestion and is carefully noted.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: I have observed, among other things in Dr. Leddy’s
account, the reference to technical advice and assistance. I have been very
interested in the work of Mr. Paul G. Hoffman, managing director, United
Nations special fund. Would it be within the competence or interest of this
organization to offer opinions on the broad question of technical assistance,
which I think is an important question facing the world today, or would that
be something outside your purview to be settled by other organizations.

Dr. Leopy: I might make a general reply. Then, with your permission, Mr.
Bussiere could enlarge on it.

Technical assistance mentioned here refers to those areas in which UNESCO
itself is committed. Education would come under this heading, and also
certain scientific matters if they can be related to the arid zones project. In
this area, particularly in dealing with the biennial budget of UNESCO, we
do indeed send forward specific and often very strong recommendations to
UNESCO. In certain technical areas we secure advice from the national
research council.

Mr. PiceoN: What is the salary of Mr. Peribam, UNESCO representative
on the Canada arts council?

Dr. Leopy: $8,500.
Mr. PigeoN: Is Mr. Peribam of Canadian or Hindu origin?

Dr. Leppy: Mr. Peribam, I think, was born in Malaya. He is of Indian
ancestry, educated mainly in Scotland, active in affairs of the world university
service, and for five or six years the Canadian secretary of that body. He
is of course a Canadian citizen. I might add, on the basis of my very close
personal relationship with him for many years, that he is a man of very
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great ability and has a special capacity for this kind of work, particularly
in developing good relations with many non Canadian groups both within and
outside Canada.

Mr. Pigeon: Is Mr. Dwyer, the comptroller or advisor, a Canadian citizen?

Dr. Leppy: That is not a UNESCO question. Perhaps Dr. Trueman might
answer it.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Mr. Dwyer was born in England, but he has been in
Canada, I think, since about 1942, and he is a Canadian citizen.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anything else, gentlemen?

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): On the question of membership in the Canadian
national commission for UNESCO, are the persons nominated considered as
what might be described as delegate members, or do they act in an individual
capacity?

Dr. Leppy: I doubt if the distinction is made very clearly in their minds.
They are especially chosen for their personal interest, and they become mem-
bers of the commission. They are representatives of their organizations, but,
in my experience, they do not hesitate to deal with a very wide territory, in
discussions at the annual meetings and at the executive meetings.

Mr. BeLL (Carleton): Part of your function is to maintain a continuous
liaison with their nominating body?

Dr. Leppy: Quite so.

Mr. WincH: You mentioned that at the present time there are three
major projects of UNESCO of which you are concentrating on one. On the
other two what does UNESCO do? Let us suppose you are in Paris; what do
you do in the way of work in Canada on the other two projects on which you
are not concentrating?

Dr. Leppy: The other two are, by geographical necessity, not concerned
with Canada itself, but we feel that “Canada and Asia”, for example—that is,
the title of that pamphlet—does indicate a direct relationship.

The problem of education in Latin America does not directly concern us;
and similarly the arid zones—if I may be permitted to exclude Saskatchewan—
are generally regarded as being in the middle east. But UNESCO, as a whole,
is greatly concerned with these two problems. And if I might anticipate what
I gather to be the trend of your inquiry, we will begin in due course to take
an interest in the plans of UNESCO to help in South America, especially in
educational matters. There are already many stirrings of interest in Canada in
Latin American matters. T

But our feeling is that we should have a pngrlty herer and we are con-
sequently pressing on with the one which is of direct and immediate concern
to us. On other matters we do not offer advice, through the biennial budget
program, and through our delegates who may be at the UNESCO general

conference.

Our delegates will provide
program, and your aducators, pa
representatives, have been helpfu
to literacy problems, as they are di
America.

Mr. Winch: You stated that

us with observations about the proposed
rticularly the Canadian education association
1 on a number of occasions in giving attention
scussed at Paris with respect to Latin

this national commission acts as an advisor
to the government through the medium of the Department o.f Exterr}al Aﬁair?,,
Can you initiate advice? In other words, on an important mt‘ernatxona_al' basis
you have the present problem of apartheid. Would you be in a position to
advise, or would you go ahead and advise the government through the Depart-
ment of External Affairs on an important issue of that nature?
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Dr. LEppy: We have not done so with respect to this specific issue. But
if you ask about initiation, we are free; the commission could proffer advice
unsolicited.

Mr. WincH: Is that a type of thing on which you would offer advice?

Dr. Leppy: I cannot speak on behalf of the entire commission. It is partly
governmental:

Mr. WincH: I am not asking if you might. But has it been government
policy to ask you for advice?

Dr. Leppy: We do offer advice on various issues, but on this particular one
we have not done so as yet. The commission would do it, if it were asked to do
it. However, I am not in a position to forecast.

In this context I would say that we in UNESCO do feel that it is our
special function throughout Canada to publicize and make known the universal
declaration of human rights which was adopted in December, 1948, by the
United Nations, and which has been widely promulgated. We would like to
put it forward persuasively and impressively. The implications, sir, with respect
to the last question are, I think, quite clear.

Mr. WincH: That is the reason I asked it, on account of the declaration of
human rights. But from what you said I take it that the government has not
asked for your advice on this matter.

Dr. LEDpDY: I am not completely up to date on it, but as far as I know we
have not had an inquiry on this point.

Mr. MACDONNELL (Greenwood): Does that question of human rights include
economic rights?

Dr. LEppy: In broad terms, yes; the declaration runs to some 30 articles
in all.

Mr. PickERrSGILL: Has the national commission ever given any considera-
tion' to suggesting to the government that this declaration should be endorsed
by the parliament of Canada?

Dr. Leppy: It was adopted by the United Nations on a vote in which
Canada participated. The adoption was in 1948.

Mr. BeLL (Carlton): Yes.

Mr. PickERSGILL: Perhaps I could refresh Dr. Leddy’s memory by recalling
to his mind that the present Prime Minister, at that time was very insistent
that it should be adopted by parliament at a very early date.

Mr. WincH: On this universal declaration of human rights—if it came to
the attention of your commission, or any body that is interested in your com-
mission, that there was not in some aspect the operation of that declaration in
Canada, would you then consider it your responsibility to go into the matter
and to draw it to the attention of the proper authorities?

Dr. Leppy: I am sorry; I did not catch the initial part of your question.

Mr. WincH: If there were some aspect in Canada that was a negation of
that declaration, would you feel it your responsibility to go into it and try to
correct it?

Dr. Leppy: As far as I am concerned personally, the answer would be yes.
Again, I hesitate to speak for 25 other people.

The CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions, gentlemen? Thank you
very much, Dr. Leddy, for coming to us this morning. I suggest that we revert
to Dr. Trueman. We only have about 10 minutes to spare, but our next meeting
is on Wednesday, May 4, and perhaps you could be here at that time, Dr. True-

Dr. TrueMmAN: Certainly.
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The CHAIRMAN: But in the meantime, would you like to take the stand?
Dr. TRuEMAN: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, I would like to suggest—and you very likely
have it in mind—that, as I remember last year we found it most interesting
to be able to follow the charts on explanations. Could we do that this year?

Dr. TRUEMAN: I have the charts here. We could start that. We may
not finish them.

Mr. WincH: No, we certainly cannot, in 10 minutes.

Dr. TrRuemAN: The first cl_lart I have here simply starts, in the order of
the way matters are taken up in the report, with the university capital grants
fund.

UNIVERSITY CAPITAL GRANTS FUND

Year Ending Year Ending
March 31, 1958 March 31, 1959

Capital at beginning of year ........ $50,000,000 $48,251,000
Grants “made in year ... . c.00n 4,084,000 8,732,000

Ot g o o (o N P P R T (1,340,000) (3,543,000)
BB0. 1 L R L Tl SR L 2,151,000 1,812,000
Realizell Profit . . L i i N AR 184,000 1,102,000
Balance available for grants at

WEARS Bl | LG W SRRV IS 48,251,000 42,433,000
Yield on cost'at year’s end ........ 4.3% 3.79

Dr. TRUuEMAN: This gives you the figures for the year ending March 31,
1959—in fact, the year under review. Then here are the figures for the. year
before. The capital, of course, beginning at thg fir_st year, was $50 million,
and by the end of the year 1959 it had been diminished to $48,251,000.

Grants made in the first year of our existence out of the university capital
grants fund were $4 million and a bit, and the next year there was an
increase to $8,732,000. The grants paid were $1,340,000;.and here, $3,543,000.

I do not know whether that point needs explanation or not, but it is
quite simple. Grants made to a university to help meet building .costs are,
of course, made in four stages; a quarter of the total amount when the founda-
tions are dug; a quarter when the walls are up and the roof on; a quarter
when the plastering and the interior work s done, and the ﬁr}al quarter
within 60 days, I think it is, after the building has been certified to be
complete and ready for occupancy by the contractors and architect. So we
authorized in this year $8,732,000, but the call on the grants made.by the
universities is something less than half that amount. That explains the
discrepancy between those two figures. ;

; Tﬁe iﬁcome of the first year was .$2_,15.1,000. The next year it was
$1,812,000, reflecting, of course, the dlmmlshmg .of.tpe 'assets of the fund
by the giving out of the grants. But, again, not_dlmm1shmg as m'uch'as you
might suppose, because the fur;id in the meanwhile had been earning interest

making some profit.
o %emzh:gaslized pré:)ﬁt for the first year was $184,000; for the second year,
$1,102,000. The balance available for grants at the end gf the year, March 31,
1958, ,was this figure of $48 million, which of course is carried over as the

e fund for the new year. :
balm'}‘clfeosfriglld on cost at the year’s end was 4.3 per cent. At the end of this
year, 3.7 per cent. I can give you the figures for the. current year. ’I_‘hese are
not audited figures, as I explained before; but I can, if you desire, bring them
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a little bit up to date and say that for the period April 1, 1959, to February 22
of this year—that is to say, for the third year of operation—the grants made
were $9,190.000. That is not an exact and audited figure.

That makes a total, for the three years up to February 22 of this year, of
about $22 million, and perhaps $200,000, authorized out of the fund. Something
more than half of that, I would imagine, will actually have been paid out at
this time. Are there any questions on that?

Mr. WincH: There is just one question. Can you give us any indication
as to what is the difficulty which you say you are encountering in trying to
decide what you are going to do with the revenue you receive from your
capital?

Dr. TRUEMAN: I do not know that it is perhaps fair to say that it is a
difficulty. I suppose it is. It is a problem. You will understand that in addition
to the original capital fund there are the profits which have been made by
reinvestment and the interest which has accumulated. I think that in all
probability it is clear from the act that the interest and the profits will probably
be divided, in the first instance, among the provinces, as is laid down in the act.
That is in accordance with the population ratio of the province to the total
population of the country.

Mr. WincH: That is a point I wanted to clarify with you. Is not the act
specific enough that the legal interpretation would be that the revenue should
be applied the same as the principal?

Dr. TRUEMAN: In this instance, I think that may be so. I am not sure of my
legal facts, but this is not the sole part of the problem. Having decided in each
of the ten provinces of Canada a certain proportion of the interest and profits
which must be made available, you have the further question of deciding how
you will divide up amongst the eligible institutions within the provinces that
interest and profit. We want to look into this, because we are dealing with a
matter of Canada Council policy and not a matter of legislation.

Questions like this arise: if an institution within the province—before the
interest and profits have been decided upon, and the term of distribution—has
drawn down all its share which we have allotted, should there be any connec-
tion between the fact it has drawn down all its share and the amount of
interest to which it is entitled. That has to be looked into.

Mr. WincH: I assume that you are holding approximately $6 million in a
trust account at the present time, until you decide what you are going to do
with it.

Dr. TRueMAN: It is kept separate from the main capital of the fund. I do
not know what it amounts to at the moment.

The CHAIRMAN: There was some discussion on that very point last year,
and I would like some further information on this at the next meeting: I
understand that a certain proportion of this earned interest was applicable to
the province of Quebec but, due to local circumstances, had not been paid out,
applied or set aside. I understood last year, if I am correct, that this interest
which, normally speaking, should have gone to the province of Quebec, was
thrown into the pool—

Dr. TRuEMAN: No.

The CHAIRMAN: —and, therefore, was lost.

DI:. TRUEMAN: No, this is not the case. On the allocations which we make
accord}ng to the act, out of the original $50 million fund something over
$14 million—$144 million, was the province of Quebec’s share. Now, all the

interest .and profits from that fund have been preserved separately, and not
thrown into a common pool and distributed. We have kept them separate, and
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any interest or profits realized from this fund are still available, according to
whatever policy of distribution is finally worked out amongst the institutions
within the provinces.

Mr. PigEoN: Mr. Chairman, I have a few questions. Did the Canada Art
Council invest in Canadian financial enterprise the money from the $50 million
foundation? ;

Dr. TRUEMAN: All this fund is by the act—by law, invested in bonds or
debentures of the dominion of Canada, or guaranteed by it.

Mr. PIiGEON: If so, firstly, what is the amount of the investment made in
financial concerns of the province of Quebec and, secondly, in the province of
Ontario? Could we please have this at the next meeting.

Mr. DoucrLas FuLLERTON (Treasurer, The Canada Council): It is all in

Canada bonds.
Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, and guaranteed by the dominion of Canada. I think

your question does not arise.
Mr. PICKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, I have a question. Have any institutions
in the province of Quebec made application for any part of this capital fund?
Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, one small institution. Do you wish the name of it?

Mr. PICKERSGILL: Yes.

Dr. TRUEMAN: It is the College Marie de France. 5
Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Has a grant been made?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, and paid. That is the one institution.

The CHAIRMAN: I was wondering if, at thi_s stage, Dr. Trueman could
tabulate all the information he has on placards in order that we could have
it inserted in our evidence today. This would enable us to study it before the

next meeting.
Dr. TRUEMAN: We have copies of the charts, which can be placed on

record. Does that answer your question?
Some Hon. MEMBERS: Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: We will insert.
statement, and all of the charts wi
evidence.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes.

Mr. PigeoN: Further to th

the first chart at the beginning of your
11 appear as appendix “A-3" to today’s

e last question I asked, I would like the name -
and address of each of these financial conce;ns—ﬁrst, in the province of
Quebec and, secondly, in the province of Ontario. Also, I would like to know
the amount of the investment made in each one of them.

Mr. HExDERSON: We could obtain that information for the next meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Leddy would like to make one correction in his tes-
timony and, perhaps, now is the time to do it. Dr. Trueman, you could con-
tinue at the next meeting, which will be on May 4. !

i i . Pigeon, with respect to

Dr. Leppy: I was incorrect in my answer to'Mr igeo;

Mr. Lewis Perinban. He is not yet a citizen, but his application has been made

for some time.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, may I suggest we adjourn.
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APPENDIX “A-3”

UNIVERSITY CAPITAL GRANTS FUND

Year Ending
March 31, 1958

Year Ending
March 31, 1959

Eapital at- Beghning OF WA . 3. v S elvTit e albn s ae viomias = wivy 410 6 arode s os
Grante Made il YOur. . 88, S50, Trmi s 0 a st e adon s s i baw ndi . 769

T T TN T NSRS e e e eon L SRS MR et ol O
Balance Available for Grants at Year's End.................ooooiuin
A IO ORI B R OAE MO, - is 55755 & o« s w'sh's o wom b o o ibalnm & ah abals

ENDOWMENT FUND

250,000,000
4,084,000
(1,340,000)
2,151,000
184,000
48,251,000
4.3%

Year Ending
March 31, 1958

$48,251,000
8,732,000
(3,543,000)
1,812,000
1,102,000
42,433,000
3.7%

Year Ending
March 31, 1959

INcoME AND GRANTS

T S AR F B Mt AR o7 QU NN DR s o) B o AR $ 2,369,000 $ 2,759,000
Granta Buthorized I FOal . . ivsascavio: a5 v aie sy se 35 s s sces s 1,417,000 2,666,000
Sy e o) RN TR TR AR N SR RN SV A oo A Ly T M (346,000) (1,718,000)
Administrative eXpenses. . . ... cisis donbessaeticesvosznadosaks chne 180,000 ' 204,000
Balance available for grants at yearend.................eoenoa.n. 772,000 571,000
InvesTMENT Posrrion
Bhott Terma-bonds ab Coglicsisase - 75 vt~ <51 - P tindh sdiBespas o dots 3,295,000 6,632,000
Provineial BonaBi ahBOBE 3 i vaisudin crh sy s ws s bo dius sy als soive 11,531,000 5,890,000
Municinal Bonde st coshc .y e < 2a i fae « ity AR 5595 wals = Wi o od 10,908, 000 13,217,000
Corpaxate DONAsah COML <5hsias St s » 4 Gt an s me a's o s iomary 70 8,821,000 8,796,000
NH A~ Mortzages: 8t CoRb s+« s turns aass vis woppaoas s erasams < s vias 10,835,000 10,455, 000
3 e G A e s ST R I IR S e 6,997,000 8,195,000
G R R T R T S S b S e SRR ) St $52,387,000 $53,186,000
Realized profit on transactions during year..............c.uuenns T 855,000 248, 000
Excess of market value over cost at yearend..................... 1,296,000 1,868,000
BT 7 T R (s PR (e s PR T e o 5.3% 5.2%
Average return for year on basis of original capital of $50,000,000... 4.7% 5.5%

INCOME AND ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Year ending
March 31, 1958

Year ending
March 31, 1959

INvesTMENT INCOME
PRVt BRI - 4 .o s A vbad 4l ek a5 o, viat s b Baia o a5 s
University Capital Grants Fund...........icoiiiiiiiiiininaiine,

Funcrronar, BREAKDOWN OF ADMINISTRATIVE CoOSTS (ESTIMATED)
G T T T pe ST R Ll 36 e R O o v W
University Capital Grants Fund........cocovuiihinieganeniiaion,
Unesco National Commission........eiseesssiibetncssisenssnnans

Total administrative cost as proportion of Endowment Fund

Endowment fund cost as proportion of Endowment Fund Income. .

$2,369,000 $2,759,000
2,151,000 1,812,000
$4,520,000 $4,571,000
110,000 180,000
50,000 40,000
20,000 74,000
$180,000 $204,000
7.6% 10.7%
4.6% 6.5%
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SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PROGRAMME
For use 1x 1959-60
Distributed Cost (Estimated) Total
No. of No. of Estimated
Category Applicants Awards Humanities Social Arts Cost
Sciences
$ $
1. Pre-Master’si..iveci..cisn 296 53,000 48,000 =
2. Pre-Doctor’s.......c...... 377 110 103,800 107,200 < ;(l)i'%
3A. Senior Research.......... 56 24 64,000 40,000 P s
3B. Senior ATtS.....c..icceree- 68 27 — Lot 120,000 ;
2 s 120,000
4. Arts Scholarships......... 227 47 — ok 84,000 34000
5. Seec. School Teachers and i
LADIATIaNS. &« o s 5 sk aisio s 92 31 24,000 24,000 L 48,000
6. Arsts ’It;ea.chers and Museum i 5 .
77 ERSARI g i3y o e G Y bl 3= 14’ 500 3
7. Short Term Grants....... 210 130 37,600 49,700 e
8A. Senior Non-Resident...... 10 9 15,000 15,000 st 30,000
8B. Junior Non-Resident...... 208 79 72,500 72,800 24,700 170,000
9. Jounéallislts, MBll:oadcasters i g 3. fis
and Film-Makers....... s - 14,000 24,000
10. General.... iuoonreazerins 15 5 10,000 15,000 10,000 35. 000
11. Special Senior Awards. ... e 4 16,000 16,000 — 32,000
TOTALS. :.cis-+-% 1,620 571 405,900 387,700 271,400 1,065,000
38% 3% 25% 100%
o b NS SR N PR e S PR e Ol ST T R g L S 150, 000
GRAND TOFAL: Sikis saiianass suneromaneracans sanamsr Sl an s sl Uiy MBS o e $1,215,000
SCHOLARSHIP AND FELLOWSHIP PROGRAMME
For uUse IN 1960-61
Distributed cost (Estimated) Total
No. of No. of o p Estimated
Category Applicants  Awards Humanities _Social Arts Cost
Sciences
$ $ $ $
1. Pre-M IRy Gl o 183 68 50,000 50,000 — 100,000
2. piinﬁi%i‘;% ............. : 448 95 92,500 92,500 = 185,000
3A. Senior Research.........- 68 22 45,000 45,000 St 90,000
8B. Senior Arts..... AR S 117 26 — A= 100,000 100, 000
é’ zsh'ts Sdchola.ésl}llipsl. gore 317 40 = % 75,000 75,000 |
. Secondary School Teach- fal
3 A:rs 'z}nd Libraria,n; ...... 87 20 20,000 20,000 40,000
! ts Teachers an u-
seum Staff............- 9 = gt 13,000 13,000
7. Short Term Grants....... 203 130 %g,% 2 500 = gg.ggg
8A. Senior Non-Resident...... 6 " 500 B 1000 99000 170’000
gB. g unior 1Non—Reside(rilt. 52 250 75 74, » ’ ,
. Journalists, Broadcasters 2
and Film-Makers....... 41 7 8’?)3(0) 10.000 lg'ggg gg,ooo
10: ‘General.. .. ixnsiasis ionss 35 7 12'000 18 000 v 321883
11. Special Senior Awards.... — 4 , ’ ,
TOTALS: e vas - 1,764 491 367,500 372,500 230,000 970,000
37.5% 38.5% 24% 100%
U DV R e s g S S S b a3 150,000
$1,120,000

GRAND TOTAL
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ARTS ORGANIZATIONS—1958-1959

Music Theatre, Ballet, Opera Visual Arts
Symphony orchestras..$181,400 Permanent CAllees. o ot $ 65;700
Summer concerts. ..... 20,400 Theatre Companies. ..$102,900 Purchase Awards for
Commissioning Touring PRintings. . .. .coaisrs 3,000
Orchestral works.... 5,000 Theatre Companies... 23,085 Societies and
Travelling groups...... 50,800 Amateur Theatre (DDF) 16,200 Associations.......... 17,835
T AR AR R RS 1,099 Commissioning Plays... 10,000 Commissioning
Other Organizations... 116,660 Ballet.................. 125, 600 Sculpture............. 12,000
OO 3520 v Sk o s 60,000 Architecture............ 23,400
ROBAL L. oo ek s foe 385,359 Other Organizations 8, Other Organizations. ... 32,000
45 P SR 345,785 Totale- - <sx oopssnne 153,935
FREIVALE. - i swdivds s $157, 500 Canapa Councir Train.$ 40,000 ArTts Councus. ........ $ 13,500
A T10 PuUBLICATION.... 52,300
(Arts)
GRAND TOTAL...$1,148,379
ARTS ORGANIZATIONS—1959-60
(Up to February 22, 1960)
Musie Theatre, Ballet, Opera Visual Arts
£ $ $
Symphony Orchestras. $206, 300 Permanent Theatre Com- Galleries.. ...t s v $60,000
Commissioning Works. 7,400 PARION s o 5,000 Purchase Awards for
Travelling Groups. . ... 27,200 Tourmg Theatre Com- painting LI G 4,
OROIES. i Shaness 9,032 PaBEst: =Lt s 36,000 Societies and Associa-
Other Organizations... 60,204 Amateur Theatre Slalstcs N el 1L ,850
19703 7% 0 AT e 10,500 Commissioning Sculp-
Ballet .................. 145,000 Rl e e e e 5,000
(5707 s SV B 72,000 Architecture............ 8,750
Student—Theatre Pro;ect 12,000  Graphic Art............ 5,000
Other Organizations. . 3,345 Other Organizations. ... 4,500
AL s $310,136 TROERAT . £ o $363,845 TOTAE i 55 $108,100
FRITIVARS. ... coiiinsnv- o $162,500 Canapa Counciu TRAIN..$40,000 A To PusBLicATION
RATEE) . 10 et S $ 35,900

GRAND TOTAL...$1,020,481

T =

£

s LR PSSR, Y

e
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HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES
(Excluding Scholarship Programme)

Humanities Social Sciences
el 1957-58 1958-59 1959-60* 1957-58 1958-59 1959-60*
(To Feb. (To Feb.
22/60) 22/60)
ORGANIZATIONS $ $ $ $ $ $
PHOBEEAL, | & doilint < dp e 67,100 54,800 76,600 23,800 110,000 48,400
Visiting Lecturers. ........... —_ 25,972 9,220 — 8,690 20,205
Aid in Publication........... — 38,000 31,289 9,000 18,750 15,500

2,000 3,200 —— 30,000 3,800
67,100 120,772 120,309 32,800 167,440 87,905

Aid in Periodicals. ..........

INDIVIDUALS

......... — 13, 550 500 3,000 4,400 ih
e e A RV SRR S - e (R
Aid in Publication..........- — 18,500 2,500 — ety 1,500
3,000 36,925 4,150 3,400 10,480 13,217
GRAND TOTALS..... 70,100 157,697 124,459 36,200 177,920 101,122
352,256 315,242
* Unaudited figures.
TYPES OF GRANTS
ExpowMENT FUND
S
i i Scholarships ividu:
U?)}::irt?fy and for Travel and |
Grants Fellowships Special Grants to
Period Fund (estimated) Projects Organizations
2y No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount
$ $ $ 3
Dot B 4B MR B HE 8 T
Apcil /08— March 21 Biaes... sh | 91,158 4ol TN A1, AN G R

66 22,007,718 1,529 3,280,000 103 142,849 380 3,404,486

* Most of these awards will be granted by April 1960.
** Unaudited figures.

DISTRIBUTION BY SUBJECTS—ENDOWMENT FUND

Humanities and

Period Arts Social Sciences
$ $
859,850 852,300
Up to March 31, 1958........ .- 1,491,304 1,241,717
April 1/58—March 31/59....... 1,304,083 1,078,081
April 1/59—February 22/60
3,655,237 3,172,008

DOTATIE: A e bt qngiee e S o GRS




kg

4 e
- *'-a.-".'-#w :










HOUSE OF COMMONS

Third Session—Twenty-fourth Parliament

1960

STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Chairman: Mr. ALAN MACNAUGHTON

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE
No. 5

Report of the Canada Council for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 1959

WEDNESDAY, MAY 4, 1960 °

WITNESSES:

Representing the Canada Council: Dr. A. W. Trueman, Director; Mr. D.
H. Fullerton, Treasurer; and Miss L. Breen, Secretary.

THE QUEEN'S PRINTER AND CONTROLLER OF STATIONERY
OTTAWA, 1960

22993-0—1



STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

Chairman: Mr. Alan Macnaughton,

Vice-Chairman: Mr. Murray Smith (Winnipeg North)

Beech,

Bell (Carleton),
Benidickson,
Bissonnette,
Bourget,
Brassard (Chicoutimi)
Broome,
Bruchési,
Campeau,
Chown,

Coates,
Danforth,

Denis,
Deschatelets,
Dorion,
Drysdale,

and Messrs.

Dupuis,
Fisher,
Fraser,
Grenier,
Hales,
Hanbidge,
Hellyer,
Keays,
Lahaye,
Macdonald (Kings),
Macdonnell,
McGee,
McGrath,
McGregor,
Morissette,
Morton,

(Quorum—10)

Nugent,
Pickersgill,
Pigeon,
Pratt,
Robichaud,
Rouleau,
Smith (Simcoe North),
Spencer,
Stefanson,
Stewart,
Tucker,
Valade,
Villeneuve,
Winch,
Woolliams,
Wratten—50.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.

- CORRECTIONS—(English Copy Only)

PROCEEDINGS No. 4—Wednesday, April 27, 1960

On Page 101—Line 17 should read:
“of $1.50 per person in Canada.”

On Page 116—Lower part of page: A note should appear on the table respect-
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, May 4, 1960.
(6)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9.40 a.m. this day.
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton, presided.

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton), Benidickson, Bisson-
nette, Broome, Danforth, Denis, Drysdale, Fisher, Hanbidge, Keays, Lahaye
Macdonald (Kings), Macdonnell (Greenwood), Macnaughton, McGee’
Morissette, Morton, Pickersgill, Pigeon, Robichaud, Smith (Simcoe North),
Smith (Winnipeg North), Spencer, Stefanson, Stewart, Tucker, Villeneuve’
and Winch.—(29)

In attendance: From the Canada Council: Dr. A. W. Trueman, Director;
Mr. Eugene Bussiere. Associate Director; Mr. D. H. Fullerton, Treasurer;

‘Mr. Peter Dyer, Supervisor of the Arts Programme; and Miss L. Breen,

Secretary. From the Office of the Auditor General: Mr. A. Maxwell Henderson,
Auditor General; and Mr. A. B. Stokes, Supervisor of Audit of Canada Council.
The Committee resumed consideration of the Report of Canada Council,
1959.
The Chairman presented, orally, a report of the Subcommittee on Agenda

and Procedure, recommending as follows:
(1) That the Committee complete its consideration of the Report of

the Canada Council.
(2) That the Committee attempt to review the activities of a number of
Crown corporations, such corporations to be selected by the Steering

Subcommittee.
(3) That the Committee then consider the Annual Report of the Auditor

General.

Agreed,—That the Report of the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure,
Presented this day, be now concurred in.

The Chairman and other Members of the Committee referred to the
absence of the Honourable Brooke Claxton due to illness.

Mr. Winch moved, seconded by Mr. Pickersgill,

“That this Committee record its appreciation of the services rendered
to Canada and more recently to the Canada Council by the Honourable Brooke
Claxton and that this Committee’s sympathy and good wishes be extended
to him at this time”. Adopted unam’moz/zsly.

Dr. Trueman requested that two corrections be made in No. 4 of the
Committee’s Proceedings; (See inside of cover page).

The witness supplied information requested by Mr. Pigeon at a previous
Meeting. He also outlined further the University Capital Grants Fund and the
Endowment Fund.
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Mr. Pigeon placed a number of questions on the record with the request
that they be answered at the next meeting.
Agreed,—That a subcommittee, to be appointed by the Chairman, study

the question of the scope of information that may be elicited by the Com-
mittee from the officials of Canada Council, Crown corporations or Govern-

ment officials.
At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m., Wednesday,
May 11, 1960.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.




EVIDENCE

WEDNESDAY, May 4, 1960,
9.30 a.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, I will call the meeting to order.

It is my pleasure at this time to ask Mr. A.B. Stokes of the Auditor
General’s Department—who is supervisor in charge of the audit of the Canada
Council—to stand up so that you may see him. He is here to assist us.

I would like to make a short verbal report of a steering committee meeting
which we held yesterday afternoon. We discussed various questions relating to
the Canada Council. Your steering committee thought that it would be salutary
to consider crown corporations in due course—not all of the crown corpora-
tions of course, but just one or two. To establish the principle that we have
looked at them.

You will recall that the committee, under its present set-up, has been in
operation for three years, this being the third year, and in the first two years
we just did not have the physical time to- make any reference to crown
corporations. So we thought that in due course, if you will leave it to the
steering committee, we would bring in a suggestion as to one or two we
might look into.

Following that, we still have 172 paragraphs of the Auditor General’s
report to consider, and that will take some time.

Mr. McGEE: Mr. Chairman, was it in your mind that we might meet earlier
in the year to look into some of these crown corporations?

The CHAIRMAN: We have not really thought of that, but it certainly would
be a good idea. It all depends when this committee is convened and starts, of
course, we cannot start before matters are referred to us by the house.

Mr. McGeg: Might we perhaps request that the house refer, say, several
crown corporations earlier in the session than the normal starting time of this
committee?

The CHAIRMAN: We can certainly make the suggestion, but what they will

do is beyond us. 3
We have had referred to us 22 of the 27 crown corporations; and amongst

the others not referred to us are special ones, such as the C.N.R., the C.B.C.,’

and bodies like that. ‘
We still have quite a list that we should take a look at at some time,

if not this year then next year or the year after—just in principle, so that we

carry out our mandate. . :
Mr. WincH: The recommendation of the steering committee is that we do go

over two of them this year? :
The CHAIRMAN: Yes. Would that meet with the approval of the committee?
Agreed to.
The CHAIRMAN: Last week I reported to the committee that we were

hopeful of having the Hon. Brooke Claxton, chairman of the Canada Council,
with us here today. Unfortunately, this is not possible and he has asked me

to express his regrets at not being present. |
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I hope the members of this committee will bear with me a few moments
and permit me to place on record a short appreciation of the contribution
made to the Canada Council by its present chairman.

Politically, of course, Mr. Claxton’s career over the years is well known.
As a former cabinet minister in the King and St. Laurent governments, when
he finally retired from the government in 1954, to become general manager
and Canadian vice president of the Metropolitan Life Insurance Company,
he had concluded a long and distinguished career in public life.

The creation of the Canada Council, it will be recalled, came following
a recommendation of the Massey Commission to the then Liberal government
in 1951. Mr. Massey and his colleagues strongly urged that steps be taken

- to form an organization for the encouragement of Canadian arts, letters,
humanities and social sciences, to stimulate and help voluntary organizations
in those fields, to foster Canada’s cultural relations abroad, represent UNESCO
interests in this country, and administer a system of scholarships.

Some three years ago the Canada Council was set up and Mr. Claxton
appointed its chairman.

The Canada Council was an experiment in the cultural life of Canada.

~Here was an attempt to give the arts a broadened future, by assisting worthy
artists—in literature, music, drama, ballet, painting and sculpture.

The success of such an experiment, in the words of the Montreal Gazette,
was dependent upon the judgment exercised by those by whom the grants are
awarded. As chairman of the council since its establishment, Mr. Claxton has
shown a thoroughness in examining the applications for assistance, and a broad
and wise understanding of where help would be most justified, and most likely
to bear fruit in the cultural achievements of later years.

This is a task that has required not only high executive ability, but a
background of knowledge and interest in the arts. Both these qualifications Mr.
Claxton has met extremely well. The work of the council has been carried out
under his chairmanship with a fine sense of impartial judgment and a thought-
ful resolution.

When on April 5, 1960, Governor General Vanier at Rideau Hall, awarded
the Diplome d’Honneur of the “Canadian Conference of the Arts” to Brooke
Claxton, it was indeed recognition of the leadership given by a distinguished
Canadian in assuring success of a vitally important Canadian experiment.
That experiment—no longer really in the testing stage—is called the Canada
Council. I am sure all members of the committee will join with me in wishing
continued success to the work of the Canada Council under its distinguished
chairman, the Hon. Brooke Claxton.

Mr. MacpoNNELL: Mr. Chairman, might I be allowed to add just a word,
that I do regret Mr. Brooke Claxton is so ill, and then a word of appreciation
as to his wide range of interests and qualities?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, Mr. Macdonnell.

Mr. MAcDONNELL: I came to know him first when I lived in Montreal for
several years after the first war, and I learned then that he was one of those
people who did not wait for the king’s commission in order to serve his
country. He went and became that most useful of all persons in our army, a
sergeant-major. We all know the sergeant-major is the man who makes the
wheels go round.

When I came to know Mr. Claxton I realized, first of all, that he was a
good counsel, because I had occasion to seek his legal advice in a business
matter; and, secondly, that he had, as you have indicated, Mr. Chairman, an
unusual range of interests for a businessman.
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I can remember that he gave a good deal of time to an organization which
most people rather despised, the League of Nations Society, and that is when
he became interested, for the first time, in politics. He had an unusual interest
in arts and letters.

Then he came to Ottawa. That is when we, here, came to know him, and
people liked him for his bonhomie and friendliness. They realized what I, had
known before, and that was the man’s amazing drive and energy. He seemed
to work about twice as many hours in a day as most of us thought was good
for our health; and that has brought him, I am afraid, to the very serious
condition which we all deplore at the moment.

I would like to say that I know we all sympathize with his difficulty at
the moment; and I am glad to have the opportunity of adding a word to what
you have said, Mr. Chairman. d

The CHAIRMAN: Thank you, Mr. Macdonnell.

Mr. WincH: Mr. Chairman, there is very little I can add to what you and
our friend, Mr. Macdonnel, have just said, but could I make the suggestion,
sir, that this committee place on the record and convey to Mr. Brooke Claxton
the expression of appreciation of this committee for his contribution in the
policies, the administration and the work of the Canada Council; to express
our sincere regret at his illness; and our deep hope that in the not too-distant
future he shall regain his complete health?

I would like to put that as a motion, if I have got a seconder.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate more than I can say what
has been said about my friend, Brooke Claxton.

I think all the members of the committee know that he and I have been
most intimately associated for 20 years; that he is one of my two or three
closest friends in the world.

I think that all of us who were associated with him in his days in public

life do appreciate the spirit in which the committee has brought this whole

question up today.
I recall, from what Mr. Macdonnell has said, what another mutual friend

of ours once said about Brooke Claxton. He said, “Most of the rest of us work
because we know that is the only way we can obtain our living. He works
because he likes work.”

The CHAIRMAN: Is the motion carried unanimously, gentlemen?

Motion carried.

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting we were discussing the Canada
Council. Dr. Trueman told me that he would like to make a correction this
morning.

Dr. A. W. TrRueMAN (Director, Canada Council): Mr. Chairman, in the
minutes of proceedings and evidence, No. 4, of the standing committee on
public accounts, for Wednesday, April 27, 1960, I would like to make these

corrections:
At page 101, paragraph 5, the last line:

$150 per person in Canada.

should properly read:
$1.50 per person in Canada.
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That is a considerable difference. The decimal point got left out somehow.

On page 116, the second table on the page, headed “Arts Organizations—
1959-60”, an asterisk has been omitted in the second line, after the parenthesis,
which is under the title of that table—“(Up to February 22, 1960)”. There
should be an asterisk after that parenthesis. At the bottom of the table, of
course, that asterisk should be repeated and after it should be included the
words, “Unaudited figures.” I do not know how this got left out. They were
in the figures.

That correction is important, because we are examining the records of
1958-59, and any figures we give for the year which has just currently been
concluded are unaudited figures, which we do not want to swear by.

The CHAIRMAN: Dr. Trueman, at the last meeting you were discussing the
university capital grants fund, and you had a series of charts which have now
been published, on pages 114, 115, 116, and 117 of the Committee’s Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence. Did you want to continue with that?

Dr. TRuemAN: I would like to continue, Mr. Chairman, and I would like
perhaps to begin with a short statement, because at the last meeting, on
Wednesday last, you asked that further information might be supplied con-
cerning the disposition of the earned interest on the university capital grants
fund. I regret to say it is not possible to give further information, but I would
lilke to review, in one paragraph, the situation, in order to make it completely
clear.

The profits and the interest on the university capital grants fund have not
been allocated as yet, either to provinces or to the eligible institutions within
the provinces. The profits and interest have, so to speak, been kept separate.
That is to say, so far grants to universities have been made out of the original
capital sum of the fund, namely $50 million.

Two questions have been raised in connection with the allocation of the
profits and the interest on that fund.

The first question is: Is it the meaning and intent of the act that profits
and interest be allocated according to the formula specified in the act for the
allocation among the provinces of the original capital sum? Obviously it is a
matter of some importance, and the council at present is giving consideration
to it. Legal advice may have to be taken. The question then has arisen:
Does the formula, as it is put there in the act, specifying how the original $50
million shall be allocated among the provinces—does that same formula apply
to the allocation of profits and interest?

I might say, as a layman I have no opinion; the question has been
raised, and will have to be answered.

The second question is: How should the profits and interest—once the
question of allocation amongst the provinces has been settled—be divided
among the eligible institutions within the province?

That is not covered by the act, and it is, therefore, a matter for the
council to decide, as a question of policy. At the present time the council
is giving consideration to this question and particularly to the first, upon
which the second naturally depends to some extent.

Does that clear the point you had in mind, sir?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. FisHER: Would you repeat the second part? I did not grasp it.

D_r. TRUEMAN: I said: “How should the profits and interest—once the
question of allocation among the provinces has been settled—be divided among
the eligible institutions within the province?”
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That is not covered by the act, and that is left, as I understand it,
within the discretion of the council, which has a policy-making function.

The CHAIRMAN: There is no decision on that yet?

Dr. TRUEMAN: No. That is a matter which the council is looking into
now.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: Perhaps as a reformed lawyer I have a superstitious
belief in the value of the opinion of lawyers. The phrase was used, “the
council may have to have legal opinion”. This seems to me to be a very
important and far-reaching question, and I hope it will not be in the position
that we do not take legal opinion now and that some years later we will
have to take it and wish we got it earlier. It seems to me—if I have made
a correct diagnosis—even if it is somewhat in the nature of a formality—
and this is where my background of law comes in—I have a great belief in
fortifying yourself with a legal opinion.

Dr. TRueMAN: I think this undoubtedly will be done, sir.

Mr. FisHER: Last year the point was made that this division up according
to the provinces of this university capital grants fund meant, in effect, the
unevenness in provincial resources never has any chance of being balanced.
Did the council have any discussion on this point, of any way in which this
could be ameliorated? In other words, the provinces that have got and
within the provinces those who have got—which leaves two weaknesses.
It does not do much for, say, a province like Nova Scotia, and it does not
do much for a smaller or new institution within one of the weaker provinces.
It keeps on building up layers of the status quo in an unequal ratio. What
discussion was had or what consideration was given this point, because
it is all tied up with it?

Dr. TRUEMAN: As has been pointed out, no discretion lies within the
power of the council whatsoever as far as the initial division among the
provinces is concerned.

As far as the division of the sums among the eligible institutions within
the provinces is concerned, I think the council has to make its own policy
there, and it has discretion to do that. As far as these profits and interests
are concerned, once the question of how they are to be divided amongst -
the provinces, in bulk, is settled, the situation leaves still open the use to
which the council then may wish to put these sums amongst the eligible
institutions within the provinces. This is rather complicated to say. It would
depend on what view the council takes of it, and on the reports which are
made to it, how it sizes the matter up.

Mr. FisHer: Does the council find this discretion embarrassing, or do you
think it would find it to be embarrassing.

Dr. TRUEMAN: No, I would not say so; it has not been easy, or a simple
matter, as you have hinted, to know how this should be divided up amongst
the eligible institutions in the provinces.

The formula which has been adopted is one which is related to the total
registration at these universities. That seemed best to the council; it had dis-
cussions with representatives of the National Conference of Canadian Uni-
versities and Colleges, and decided it would be the only practical formula

which could be followed.



126 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. FISHER: Suppose you have something new blossoming, such as you
have at Sudbury or at York. Is there any room for manceuvring at all in order
to give them extraordinary assistance?

Dr. TRUEMAN: There could be, if the council judged this to be necessary;
that could be only by looking over its present list of allocations, and since
you have only a fixed amount of money to work with, deciding to give more
here and less there.

Mr. FisHER: I just mentioned the Ontario ones, but I am sure there are
other examples in other provinces.

Dr. TRueMAN: Our establishment of the formula was based on a list of
the eligible institutions which is already determined by the council, and that
is the list maintained by the National Conference of Canadian Universities and
Colleges to which the other federal, annual, per-capita grants go. We have said
that this is the list which we will use.

We have not been giving grants to any institution which is not on that

list. Obviously an institution which is not yet established is not on that list.
It will have to be established first, and be recognized by the National Con-
ference of Canadian Universities and Colleges as an institution of higher
learning and so on, and thus become eligible for participation in the grants.

Mr. FisHER: The real decision in the art of diplomacy is fine in these
things, and it probably takes place in these other institutions.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Well, they have the list, and membership in that organ-
ization has been the deciding factor of eligibility.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: There is a question I wish to put to Dr. Trueman, but
before I do so I would like to say that in the allocation of these capital grants
as between provinces, the formula which is used is not the number of students
in the province, but the number of people in the province.

I happen to know, because I was a member of the government when this
legislation was decided on. It was felt that this was a very fair way indeed of
dividing these grants, because it would mean that in those less wealthy
provinces where the number of students in proportion to the number of the
population is sometimes rather lower than it is, let us say, in Ontario, they
should get a share of grants in proportion to their population, so that they
would be paid more in proportion to the registration in their institutions than
the more populated provinces.

Having said that, I would like to ask Dr.' Trueman if he thinks that it is
working out in that way.

Dr. TRUEMAN: It certainly works out in that way in some instances, and if
I may draw an illustration out of the air, in relation to the province of New-
foundland, let us say, it happenes to work out that way. But I am not so sure
about Nova Scotia.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): There is discrimination against Nova Scotia.

Mr., McGEE: Mr. Chairman, it seems incredible to me. I am untutored in
the law; but Mr. Pickersgill was in the government at the time, and he had
his fine hand in the writing of this act. It seems incredible to me that a fund
of $50 million or $100 million was set up and that no thought was given as to
how the interest should be dispensed.

Mr. PickERSGILL: I feel sure that no one had any doubt that the interest
would be divided on exactly the same basis as the principal. There is a problem
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here which I do not think anybody thought of, that is that in some provinces
the grants are given early, whereas, in Quebec there have not been any made
at all.

It seems to me the only real problem which arises here is this: do you
divide the grants amongst the provinces from the day they were established,
treating each as a water tight compartment, so that the whole amount for
Quebec is given to Quebec, but in Ontario one half of the amount has already
been spent, and they would not get a share of the interest on Quebec’s share
on the principal? It is hard to explain, but that is the problem and the only
problem. However, I am sure it is a very common legal problem.,

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anything else?
Dr. TRUEMAN: At our last meeting we just started to look at the charts.
Mr. Prceon: I asked a question at the last meeting. The answer is yet to

be received.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, the hon. member put a question to us requesting in-
formation about the division of the council’s securities between Quebec and
Ontario. Presumably this request refers to the endowment fund, since the
university capital grants fund is by statute invested in bonds of or guaranteed
by the Dominion of Canada. I do not think that the hon. member’s question
arises in relation to the capital grants fund. I presume it refers to the endow-
ment fund.

That information is contained in the table which we have given on this
sheet. The corporate bonds and debentures and common shares are divided
among Ontario, Quebec, and other provinces according to the location of the
head offices of the companies concerned.

It will be appreciated that this method of allocation is not too precise,
since many of the corporations are national in scope.

Endowment fund holdings of bonds, debentures and common stocks as of

March 31, 1959, the year under review, are as follows:
Ontario Quebec Other

Provincial and Provincial
guaranteed bonds and de-

DENLUTES .« o vvvevoossonnmnnns $ 867,000 $ 733,000 $ 6,095,000

Municipal bonds and debentures. . 4,112,000 4,341,000 5,111,000
Corporate bonds and debentures
p(excl. short term paper) ...- 2,363,000 2,349,000 4,182,000
C hares and other equity
Om;z:‘.?riiies ................ 4,042,000 1,976,000 2,176,000
$11,384,000 $9,399,600 $17,564,000

Mr. PiceoN: May I have the location of the head offices of the companies

concerned?
Dr. TrueMAN: I think
long table.
The CHAIRMAN: Would you 1i
Mr. Pigeon: Very well.
The CHAIRMAN: Agreed.

probably the treasurer could provide that. It is a

ke to have it filed and printed?



128 . STANDING COMMITTEE

Dr. TRUEMAN: The statement reads as follows:

THE CANADA COUNCIL

Head Office Location of Companies whose Shares we own
as at March 31, 1959

Book Value of Investment
Ontario Quebec Other

Bell Telephone | & . i s v saroive < $ o $ 300,000 $ B
5 o R 2 SRR D s e i Ll 201,000
Calgnp i Powert byl r vaie e b S Sk 249,000
International Utilities .......... PEAY K4 8 300,000
Shawinigan Water & Power .. 359,000

Alberta Gas Trunk Line ...... & Wi Fiarsis
LR R S e e U S S e 357,000

Calgary & Edmonton ............ P
Hudson’s Bay Company ........
Tl @ | EESERRE N G R S ) 441,000
Interprovincial Pipe Line ........ Py o
£ i s AR e T B e R o 360,000
Ao -Td. | SR T e s o
Hollinger Consolidated .......... 250,000
International Nickel ............ 348,000
Great Lakes Paper _......../ ... 149,000
International Paper ............ Ry YN
MacLaren Quebec Power & Paper 202,000
MacMillan & Bloedel .......... PSR
Powell “River - - rafay s asvsas HE o
R e B OS5 A e e T s 9hs 513 i 150,000
Algama Bteel b SisinveindsTans 223,000

Canada Iron Foundries ........ i
Dominion Bridge ~.......cceevss R
Dominion Foundries & Steel .... 249,000
Steel Company of Canada ...... 400,000
Canada Steamship Lines ........ Sy
BDOMIDIoN . GIassS <. ins oo suees o s
BIOMINION.,” STOTES " % . v.vialouss vepsidse 198,000
Industrial Acceptance Corporation 274,000
Moore Corporation .............. 399,000
Traders Finance L. iicasoatans 275,000
Eanadian! BHIlites ' ow v inion ddesiie A
Loblaw Groceterias ............ 179,000
Shawinigan Water & Power .... S
Pacific Petroleum: ............%.

26,000
174,000
174,000
150,000

274,000

299,000
251,000
149,000
101,000

99,000
275,000
175,000

199,000

41,000 et
4,000
$ 4,042,000 $ 1,976,000  $ 2,176,000

Mr. PICKERSGILL: I have one question: could Dr. Trueman say whether
the prime purpose of the council is to get the highest net return on its invest-
ments, regardless of where the head office of the company may be?

Dr. TrRueMAN: I would answer that question discreetly, and I would say
‘that the prime purpose would be to get the highest return on the income, as may
be consistent in the judgment of the investment committee with soundness of
investment. I would like to add that qualification.

Mr. Pigeon: I asked my question because I think a member of parliament
should place his questions before the committee.

Dr. TRuEMAN: We were going thrbugh this chart. I do not know how
much time the committee wishes to spend on it.
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We have here the figures for the end of the year under review, March 31,
1959, and the figures fo_r the end of the previous year, for the purpose of
comparison.

UNIVERSITY CAPITAL GRANTS FUND

Year Ending Year Ending
March 31, 1958 March 31, 1959

Capital at Beginning of Year .........c........ $50,000,000 $48,251,000
Ctants: Made: in-Year= ot s s a b it i 4,084,000 8,732,000

Grants - Paid il DIt BENE U i et (1,340,000) (3,543,000)
IRCOME ) e S e P T S Tt Nns e AR e LI 2,151,000 1,812,000
Realized Profiteis imleia s Sl g i Tl e gt 184,000 1,102,000
Balance Available for Grants at Year’s End. ... 48,251,000 42,433,000
Yield on: Cost St Yeal'si Bnel S oot ok s 4.3% 3.7%

This figure here has been available for grants at the end of 1958, and
it is of course transferred up here as the capital sum at the beginning of the
year under review, 1958-59. Grants made during the year were $8,732,000.

This year—and I can only give you at this time unaudited figures—the
grants given will be approximately $9,150,000; that is for the yvear 1959-60.

Income last year was $1,812,000; this year, 1959-60, it will be approxi-
mately $150,000 more than that. ' : ]

I think I pointed out last day that the mtel.'est pald_on the income had
gone up although the assets of the fupd are being steadily depleted by the
grants which are being made. This arises naturally from the higher rate of
yuﬂd’i‘hose are, I think, about the only comparisons I want to give. Are there
any more questions about the capital grants fund?

The CHAIRMAN: I would just like to knoxgv how you make more money on
less capital. It would be a very interesting picture. '

Dr. TRuEMAN: It is nice if you can do it. It depends on the increased rate
of yield for long term securities. I am nqt an expert on tl}ls,_ but I undeystand
that the rate of yield was considerably increased, and this is reflected in the
lower price of bonds. B : ;

Mr. Fisuer: In the set up which you have for receiving gifts, is there
any specific understanding that these gifts may be labeled? ]

Dr. TRuEMAN: We have said in our report that we will try to meet as

nearly as possible specific wishes of any donor. : - :
Mr. FisHeErR: Have you had any donors wishing to put money into this

particular fund?
Dr. TRuEmMAN: No. ; :
Mr. FisHER: Have you had any who showed any interest in the fund?
is i i ich in its initial
] MAN: I am not aware of that. This is a pc?lnt whic '
stag(? :‘mg}l:'? Ix‘:zery well be handled by private conversation between the chair-
man and persons he knows. I have nothing to report. ]
Mr. FisHER: You have not made a deliberate campaign in connection
with the matter? ; g S
; EMAN: No, we have not had any deliberate campaign. hin
the gl?zlr‘lex"l::\flmidea of the’coun»cil is that in its early days its principal task is to

izati j it can, and to try to -
ith the organization and do as good a job as i an,
Eﬁtilgnu;mfcie kind gof reputation which would encourage interest and sub-

/ sequent donations, keeping in mind that the donations will likely come in the

form of bequests in wills.
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Mr. SMiTH (Simcoe North): If you start looking for capital grants, you
will be competing with universities which are running their own campaigns
for capital grants.

Dr. TRUEMAN: I think that the question of the hon. member is more in
relation to the endowment fund than it is to the capital grants fund.

Mr. FisHER: Yes. I just wondered.

Dr. TRUEMAN: There is nothing to report.

Mr. Keays: Can you explain the difference between income and realized
profits?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Income is the ratt of yield on an investment, whereas
realized profit is what you get by re-investment and capital appreciation.

Mr. Douglas FULLERTON (Treasurer of the Canada Council): We dif-
ferentiate between coupons and accrued income on bonds, and the profits
which are realized on the switching of investments.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anything else?
Dr. TRUEMAN: I have nothing to offer.
The CHAIRMAN: Then, on the endowment fund?

Dr. TRUEMAN: We have the same kind of table or chart here in which
comparative figures for the year ending March 31, 1958 and the year ending
March 31, 1959 are given.

ENDOWMENT FUND

Year Ending Year Ending
March 31, 1958 March 31, 1959
INCOME AND GRANTS

5T (a1 1 BTSRRI D B BT SRS il S A £ $ 2,369,000 $ 2,759,000
Grants authorized in year :........ec..s 1,417,000 2,666,000
Gt b SOOI T liie st fomd o'y aih: o /s it R s 0 (346,000) (1,718,000)
Administrative expenses ............c0000. 180,000 294,000
Balance available for grants at year end .. 772,000 571,000

INVESTMENT POSITION

Short. Term: bonds at "eost “.n'vvicivvninad s 3,295,000 6,632,000
Pravincial:bonds at eost .0 v v iaiidng s 11,531,000 5,890,000
Munieipalt Bonds at T eost * I/l ne. SO0 T 10,908,000 13,217,000
Corporate: bonds @ty oSy 2¢ . it i oty o 8,821,000 8,796,000
N.H.A. Morigages at eost L. ... - . do vl 10,835,000 10,455,000
Teuities -at - eostir S, e SR s el 8l 6,997,000 8,195,000

Tofal. at-'@ost; 2Lyl it T iy $52,387,000 $53,186,000
Realized profit on transactions during year .. 855,000 248,000
Excess of market value over cost at year end 1,296,000 1,868,000
Yield on cost at year end ............... 5.3% 5.2%
Average return for year on basis of original

capital. of $50,000,000.... .. .o v s ‘ 4.7% 5.5%

Income for the year under review was $2,759,000. Again I am giving you
unaudited figures for the year ending March 31, 1960; we hope the income
will be $100,000 more, making it $2,855, or 6 or 7 thousand, or something
of that order.

Also grants authorized in the year were $2,666,000. I do not think I have
the figure for 1959-60 immediately before me. Yes, it is approximately
$2,540,000.
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And grants paid—I cannot give you the exact figure because some of the
grants made in one fiscal year are not actually called for by the organization
concerned until the next fiscal year.

Administrative expenses were $294,000. I have not got audited figures for
this year.

Balance available for grants at the year end was $571,000. That really,
if I am correct, is a carryover from unexpended amounts, which again go
back to our first year of operation.

We came into existence, as you will recall, on April 30 or May 1, 1957;
and we did not get into the grant-giving program until September or October.
We were in the happy position of carrying over from our resources into
the next year, $700,000 odd, and we dipped into that amount to the tune of
$200,000 or more in our second year. So this is being carried over at the
present time in that amount. i

The investment position is $6,632,000; provincial bonds at cost, $5,890,000;
municipal bonds at cost $13,217,000; corporate bonds at cost $8,796,000; na-
tional housing act mortgages at cost $10,455,000; equities at cost $8,195,000.

Yield on cost at year end was 5.2 per cent, and average return for the
year on the basis of original capital of $50 million was 5.5 per cent. Are those
two figures clear? If you reckon our yield on the basis of what the original
capital fund was the rate is 5.5. If you base it on cost it is 5.2.

Mr. McGeg: I am wondering about the figures in respect of N.H.A.
mortgages. They seem to be down from last year.

Dr. TRUEMAN: They are down three hundred and some odd thousand
dollars. Last year the figure was $10,835,000 and this year it is $10,455,000.
It is down.

Mr. D. H. FuLLERTON, (Treasurer, Canada Council): They are steadily
being paid off. We started off with a block and they are steadily being paid
gl 4
Mr. McGeg: Is there ;ny hope that this figure as a percentage of the
total might be increased at this time? Obviously, you are not replacing what
is being paid back.

Mr. FUuLLERTON: It has been under continual discussion by the investment
committee. We may expand it or we may not. This is a policy decision.

Dr. TrRuemaN: Largely a policy decision of the investment committee.

Mr. McGEE: Are you suggesting that this has to be compared with the
other investments?

Mr. FULLERTON: Yes. &

Mr. Pigeon: May we have the separate investment position for each

province of Canada?

Dr. TrRueMmAN: I believe this is given in a table. It is in the annual
report. We would direct the attention of the questioner to pages 106, 107, 108
and so on in the annual report.

The CuAIRMAN: It is the second annual report.

Mr. Pigeon: And also for the mortgages.

Mr. FuLLerTON: They were bought in a block from the banks. The
banks keep them and administer them for us. They are spread all across
Canada from the Maritimes to British Columbia. It would be a'dlfﬁcult task
to split them up by provinces in that there are three banks involved and
over 1,000 small home mortgages.

Mr. Prceon: You do not have the figure for mortgages.
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Mr. FuLLERTON: No.

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting Mr. Pigeon had certain questions
he wished to ask.

Mr. PigeoN: Yes. How many scholarships were awarded last year to
students seeking a master’s degree or class I? Out of that number how many
were students of Laval and Montreal universities?

Mr. PickERSGILL: Before that question is answered, perhaps it would be
convenient for Mr. Trueman at the same time to say how many from Memorial
university, St. Dunstan’s, St. Francis Xavier, Dalhousie, St. Mary’s, Acadia,
Mount Allison, university of New Brunswick, St. Joseph’s—

Mr. PiceoN: On a point of order, if the hon. member wishes to place a
question after me it is his right. I have placed a question and I would
appreciate it very much if Dr. Trueman would answer it. I am not sure
whether or not he is in a position to give an answer. If you want to place
a question after me that is your right.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps we can get to Mr. Pickersgill later.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Would we not save a good deal of time if we had a
full list of all scholarships and awards in all universities. If we had that it
would answer a good many of the questions which will be unanswered in
our minds if we go one by one.

Mr. PigeoN: Dr. Trueman, I would very much appreciate an answer.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: That is precisely what I had in mind. Mr. Macdonnell
has put it better than I could.

The CuARMAN: I should tell the committee that at the meeting of the
steering committee yesterday Mr. Pigeon’s questions were discussed and
submitted in full to Dr. Trueman. Is that correct, Dr. Trueman? You have
had a list of the questions.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you prepared generally speaking to answer them.

Mr. PicgeRSGILL: On a point of order, how did Dr. Trueman get this list
of questions? I suggest that all members of this committee are equal. Were
those questions put at the last meeting? I do not think any special privileges
should be given to some members of the committee and not others to submit
questions between meetings of the committee, and then be given priority in
answers. If that course has been followed I object to it.

The CHAIRMAN: There is no mystery about it. At the last meeting Mr.
Pigeon had a series of questions, the answers to which had to be researched.
They could not be answered off the bat.

Mr. PickeRsGILL: Were they put on the record at the last meeting?

Mr. Pigeon: No.

The CHAIRMAN: I suggested that he give us a list of the questions so that
Dr. Trueman could be fully prepared. These were submitted to Dr. Trueman.
So far as I know he has the information to answer them intelligently. Yester-
day at the steering committee meeting we discussed the best way to answer
~ them. It was not with the idea of hiding anything, but rather to enable him

to give an intelligent answer.
Mr. BeEniDICKSON: The steering committee was aware of the questions.
The CuAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. PickersGILL: I withdraw my objection.

Mr. Prceon: I will appreciate it very much if I am allowed to ask all my
questions in order.

The CHAIRMAN: Let us try it that way.

}
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Mr. McGee: Might I put a suggestion to Mr. Pigeon through the chair.
Perhaps in the interest of making progress some way might be found to put
Mr. Pigeon’s questions on the record, verbally or otherwise, and have the
answers placed on the record with them.

Mr. PigeonN: Mr. Chairman, I think in ten minutes I can cover all my
questions. I think, in the interest of parliamentary rights, that it is my privi-
lege to place each question I wish before this committee. If Dr. Trueman has
a reason not to give an answer, that is his responsibility. I have, however,
my duty to my constituents.

The CrHAIRMAN: I agree with that. Go ahead.

Dr. TRUEMAN: In the first instance I have to say this is a very difficult
question. We are dealing with the annual report of 1958-59 and this is a kind
of information which the council does not keep on tap.

I think perhaps I should say, with regard to the way in which the council
has operated and the principles it has adopted, that it has made it a policy not
to divide up the income of the endowment fund in mathematical proportions
among provinces, sections, regions, ethnic groups, linguistic groups, or indeed
among the various subjects which are in the area of the council’s responsibility
in the arts, humanities and social sciences.

This kind of information is not the kind of information we have on tap
or in our annual report. Therefore, this is a difficult question for me to answer.

Further, I would like to say, in commenting on the question which has
been put about the numbers of scholarships which has been given in certain
categories in certain universities in the province of Quebec, that from the
Council’s point of view, and quite in line with its policy, a bare statement of
such figures is apt to be misundertood, would not have much meaning, and,
one would be afraid, might be misapplied. For instance, one must take into
consideration the number of applications which emanate from any source.
If one were to say simply that in one section of the country, or one city or
university, out of the total of the applications for Canada so many were given,
I do not know what meaning this could have. It would, however, be misleading
unless it were understood and stated at the same time how many applications
there were.

The other day I was reading over a list of the applications in one of our
categories. I was not looking for anything in particular. In this list of around
100 applications there seemed to be almost none from the province of Quebec.
If one were simply to publish that out of so many awards given in a specific
category so many went to universities of Quebec, and if the list were un-
accompanied by the statement that there were only so many requests, one
would have a statistic which would have a wrong meaning or no meaning.

This is the reason why the council does not give figures of this kind or
break up its scholarship fund into an analysis of this type. If one were to deal
with universities like that, one would have to take into consideration the
registrations of the universities concerned in comparison with the total regis-
trations of the universities in Canada if one is to determine whether or not
there are too many or too few. One would have to know what are the total
registrations of the universities in question in comparison with the total regis-
trations of the country. Then there is the question: What is the size of the
constituency from which applications can be expected?

In dealing with these matters one has to take into consideration the differ-
ence in the degree of interest, in certain categories, shown in different parts
of the country. There is a difference in the interest and concern about a certain
category of our scholarships.

22993-0—2
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In a general way, I do not mind stating that from the province of Quebec
we get large numbers of applications in the arts categories of scholarships—
much larger than the academic categories. There are very large numbers of
applications from very talented persons. The number of awards the council
makes very closely reflects the number of applications and the interest and
concern about those categories.

I am trying to point out simply that this table and set of figures is likely
only to be inaccurate and misleading. It is likely to be misapplied. Therefore,
the council has not published, and does not publish figures of that kind.

This raises an embarrassing question for me because I do not need to
assure you that my sole purpose in being here is to give available informa-
tion if I can. We are dealing, however, with the annual report, and at the
steering committee meeting it was suggested to me that I might read this
extract from Hansard in relation to the explanations I have given and the
problem as I have outlined it. I think this extract makes a comment on the
problem and the manner in which the council operates. The hon. members
might think this has a bearing on my dilemma.

In Hansard of June 18, 1958, the Right Hon. J. G. Diefenbaker is re-
plying to a question from the floor of the House of Commons is reported as
saying:

—the government does not have in its records the information re-
quested, nor does it consider that it has the power to request informa-
tion from the council other than that which will appear in the annual
report.

so here I am faced with the problem of being asked for a type of information
which the council does not publish in its annual report.

Again on November 27, 1957, in the House of Commons the Prime
Minister said:

As a result of the legislation as passed, we do not consider that
we have the power to ask the council to reveal information about appli-
cations it receives, other than the information given in the annual
report. I would point out it could only be damaging to the organiza-
tions concerned if the council were to reveal information about applica-
tions which it had received and had not approved.

This places me in a dilemma. I pause at this moment to give the members
an opportunity to question me.

The CHAIRMAN: You are in the position of a deputy minister carrying out
the orders of the council.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: You say the council does not deem it advisable, within
their powers, to give the information.

Dr. TRUEMAN: I am reporting the policy and am not refusing anything.

Mr. PiceoN: I appreciate your view, but last week I met Mr. Bussiere
and submitted my questions. He told me some very interesting things. He
told me “I am sure the Canada council will give you these figures because
it is possible to give them”. That is why I place this question this morning.

The CramrMaN: Could we compromise by suggesting to you that you
might rediscuss the matter with your associates.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Mr. Chairman, having made this statement I would sug-
gest, if I am not out of order in doing so, that the indulgence of the committee
be extended to me, and that I be allowed to consult with the council as to
what kind of figures supported by what kind of explanatory and elucidative

additional information could in their opinion, as an advantageous public
service, be released.
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Mr. Piceon: May I place all my questions?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. PiceoN: How many scholarships—

Mr. BENIDICKSON: Would Mr. Pigeon mind if we are told the type of

question which was asked in respect of the answers given in the house by
the Prime Minister.

Mr. FisHErR: I think they were questions placed by me.

Dr. TRueMAN: I think so, but I am not absolutely certain of that.

Mr. FisHER: What I was really after is this—and this is crucial. I think
we might have a little discussion as to just what is the relationship of
parliament to the Canada council. I think you will remember, Mr. Chairman,
that last year Mr. Sellar told us that we really, in effect, have very little
authority to examine council affairs. In other words, there is a gray area

here in which no one really spelled out what the position was. Perhaps Mr.
Pickersgill may be able to make a contribution here.

The CHAIRMAN: I wonder if we could follow this procedure so that we
might finish with Mr. Pigeon first of all. I suggest you put Mr. Fisher’s
questions in the record, to complete it. Then we will go along with Mr.
Pigeon, and come back to Mr. Fisher.

Note: The following are the questions by Mr. Fisher referred to in the
quotations from Hansard appearing above:

November 27, 1957.

CANADA COUNCIL—APPLICATIONS FOR CAPITAL ASSISTANCE

Question No. 24—Mr. Fisher:

1. Has the Canada Council received any applications for capital assist-
ance under section 9 of Chapter III, 5-6 Elizabeth II?

2. If so, from what schools or colleges that are not recognized as
universities?

3. What are the names of any schools or colleges which have been
approved or accepted as “similar institutions of higher learning” as
phrased in section 9 of this act?

June 18, 1958,

CANADA COUNCIL—CAPITAL EXPENDITURE GRANTS

Question No. 17—Mr. Fisher:

1. What value and percentage of the grants of Canada Council awarded

to universities in the last operational year went for residences or

dormitories?

Is it a requirement set by Canada Council that such residences contain

a library?

3. If so, what requirements are there as to size, type of bookstack and
catalogue facilities?

4. Has Canada Council a classification of the kind of university capital
expenditures to which it will consider awarding grants?

5. If so, what is the classification?

Do

Mr. PiceoN: How many scholarships were awarded last year to students
seeking a masters degree, or what is called Class I?
22993-0—23
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Out of that number, how many were awarded to students of Laval and
Montreal universities?

How many scholarships were awarded last year to students seeking a
doctor’s degree or what is called Class II?

Out of that number, how many were awarded to students of Laval and
Montreal universities?

How many scholarships were awarded for special studies and research,
Class ITI-A?

How many of these scholarships did French-speaking professors obtain?

Another question: In the arts, what amount has the council paid over the
last three years to artistic associations of Quebec, and to those of Ontario?

How many scholarships were granted to foreign students of Class VIII-B?

Out of these scholarships, how many are studying at Toronto, McGill,
Laval and Montreal universities?

Mr. BENIDICKSON: With respect to the question immediately before the
last one, with respect to artistic institutions in either Quebec or Ontario, has
Mr. Pigeon in mind institutions that confine their activities to those provinces,
or has he in mind, perhaps, national institutions that may have a head office
in either one province or the other?

Mr. PigeonN: I want to know only the number of scholarships that were
granted to these universities—<only the number; not the names of students.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: This is not students; this is the one with respect to
institutions. It is the question immediately before the last one that you asked.

Mr. Piceon: In the arts, what amount has the council paid over the last
three years to artistic associations of Quebec, and to those of Ontario?

Another question. I do not know if it is on the same line: What salary is
paid the executive, director, and other members?

The CHAIRMAN: Are those all the questions?

Mr. PiceoN: No. What is the salary of Mr. John Robbins, adviser; and
what is the salary of Mr. Walter Herbert—

Dr. TRUEMAN: These have nothing to do with the Canada council.

Mr. PiceoN: Total administration expenses amount to almost $300,000.
How many scholarships to poor students might be awarded if those expenses
were avoided?

Dr. TRueMAN: I refuse to answer that question.

Mr. PigeoN: Another question: What was, for the years 1957, 1958 and
1959, the total amount of money paid by the Canada arts council to the province
of Quebec and the province of Ontario?

I have two more questions. Since the establishment of the Canada arts
council, what was the number and total amount of the scholarships which
have been awarded respectively during each year to (a) graduates; (b)
students: (c¢) professors of the social science faculties of the universities of
Laval and Montreal?

What is the name and address of each recipient of these bursaries, and
what amount was paid to each one?

I place these questions before the committee because I know the Canada
council was created by the former administration—

Some hon. MEMBERS: No, no.
The CHAIRMAN: Order, please, gentlemen.

Mr.. l?If;EOb{: I know all former ministers of the last administration had the
responsibility, including Mr. Lesage, and if I had these figures, all of Canada
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and the province of ngbec would see what part the province of Quebec has
f;om .the Canada Councﬂ, I know, Mr. Chairman, that you are in a very bad
situation now to give me a straight answer.

The CHAIRMAN: You mean the witness, not the Chairman.

) Mr. P1GEON: Excuse me—Mr. Trueman. I know you are in a very bad situa-
tion, becau.se you embarrass the former government. That is the only point I
want to bring.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: _On a question of privilege, Mr. Chairman: I would like
to withdraw the question I put. I would not wish my question to be associated
in any way with the question that has just been asked.

Mr. PiGeoN: I have.only a last question to ask. Should anyone who has
been granted a scholarship by the council of arts require an insurance policy on
their scholarship? Why? And who are the insurance companies?

Mr. PickERSGILL: How ridiculous can you get?

Mr. RoBICHAUD: Stupid! °

Mr. Pigeon: It is not stupid. Mr. Chairman, the hon. member told me I
am stupid. I would appreciate it very much if he would retiré this word: it is
not a parliamentary word.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Pigeon, I did not hear the word.

Mr. Piceon: But I did.
The CHAIRMAN: And if I had heard it, I would forget it.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I said the questions are stupid, and I still say they are.

Mr. PiceoN: No, the questions are not stupid. It is my right. We are a free
country. It is my right to place these questions. If Dr. Trueman does not agree,
it is his own responsibility. I have done my duty, and my constituents will
judge me at the next election, not you.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, may I make one simple remark. It is meant
to pour oil on the waters, and it is true—Mr. Pigeon is a member of this com-
mittee—he is a member of parliament. Committees have inherent powers. I
agree with him in principle. If he wants to ask any question which is in order,
it is his right to do so. He will have to take the consequences, if there are any.
It is his right and privilege to ask questions.

On the other hand, it is the right and privilege of the witness to answer,
or not answer, as he thinks is within his ability and right to do so. As Chairman,
I do not object to Mr. Pigeon’s asking these questions; but it is up to Mr. True-
man, of course, to use his best judgment as to whether he will answer in full,
or whether he is allowed to answer in part.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Mr. Chairman, I could make a comment on the last question
with relation to insurance. It is the practice of the Canada Council to ask its
scholarship and fellowship holders who are going overseas on a Canada Council
grant to take out a modest amount of insurance to cover medical contingencies
and possible loss of their effects in transit. We simply ask them to present us
with a kind of certificate that they have done that.

Where they take that insurance out is left entirely in the hands of the
individual. We only recommend to students who have our scholarships and
fellowships, and are staying in Canada, that it would be to their best advantage,
no doubt, to take out some insurance. But we do not absolutely insist on that
point. This is a matter of simple precaution on the part of the council to cover
a possibly uncomfortable situation, where a scholarship holder might be in
Paris, or in London, or in Washington, and be taken seriously ill and not have
resources to handle it. He should have some insurance to cover it. And we do
ourselves arrange insurance for the non-residence people who come from

abroad.
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The CHAIRMAN: Starting at the end and working up, there was a question
with regard to salaries of various people. Could you answer that?

Dr. TRUEMAN: I would expect, very strongly, that my chairman and the
members of the council would say these are not public figures which the council
puts in its annual report, and I would not consider I had any authority to give
those salaries out. I can see how this might be an embarrassment to other

people, and I do not think we should make public these matters of internal
administration.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps you could advise us on this question of salaries,
Mr. Bell?

Mr. BELL (Carleton): Mr. Chairman, I think we are confronted imme-
diately, in these questions, with what the authority of the committee is. I do
not have the act in front of me, but as I recollect the act it says there shall be
an annual report made to the Prime Minister and—I think I am quoting exactly
—provision shall be made for a review thereof by parliament.

Miss LILLIAN BREEN (Secretary; Canada Council): It is the last paragraph,
Mr. Bell.

Mr. BELL (Carleton): The words are, “and provision shall be made for
a review thereof by parliament.” So what we are reviewing is the annual
report. It may well be that perhaps we should have the Law Clerk tell us
whether we have any authority to go beyond what is the actual annual report.
My own view, offhand, is that those words “review thereof by parliament”
do confine us to the actual annual report. ‘

Mr. FisHER: Mr. Chairman, this question bothered me last year, and it
bothers me this year. We have examples of the problem in another committee,
when we have the Canadian National Railways and Trans-Canada Air Lines
before us. My understanding of it is that what was in the minds of the people
setting up the Canada council, and what was the purpose of parliament at
*he time—if you could read it—was to give the Canada council a unique
position,

That is, I do not think they expected the Canada council would be in
the same relationship to parliament as crown corporations or organizations
such as the Canadian National Railways.

I wish, if I may, to put this on the record. This is from the Ottawa Journal,
and it is an editorial of last year, June 5, 1959. I want to put this on the record
because it seems to me it opens up a discussion on something close to what
Mr. Bell was just suggesting. This reads:

That inflexible and wise old observer of the processes of govern-
ment, Mr. Watson Sellar, appears to have surprised the Commons
public accounts committee by telling its members that they had no
authority over -the Canada council or the $100,000,000 it has at its
disposal.

“Then what authority has this committee to examine council affairs
or make recommendations?”’, asked Douglas Fisher, C.C.F.

Mr. Sellar replied with that calm which springs from knowledge,
“You could make recommendations on the legislation setting up the
council”.

The Journal thinks this brief exchange should be helpful all
around. Parliament is supreme, but parliament must exercise its
supremacy in the channels that have been given to it. Parliament should
not seek to interfere in the administrative processes which it has itself
established: not in C.B.C., nor in the Civil Service, nor in the Canada

council, even though these bodies may seem to offer lush pickings for
the M.P.
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I think we are confronted with a problem that this comment illustrates,
and the very position Mr. Pigeon is in with regard to the questions he is
asking. I would not have asked those questions, but I think he has a perfect
right to put them. But we do not really know what to expect from Mr.
Claxton or Mr. Trueman in the form of answers.

I have some questions that I think will probably get the same response
as Mr. Pigeon’s questions had. But what I am very concerned about is finding
out exactly how much scope we have. I think that if we do not determine
it this year, we will go on like some of the other parliamentary committees.
There is the Canadian National Railways committee, which every yvear fights
again over just what its rights are to information from the president of the
Canadian National Railways. That is why I bring it up at this time.

I believe that a subcommittee of this committee should meet with the
Canada council officials and senior government people to determine just
where we stand, to mark out very clearly the boundaries of where we can go
and what we can expect. I would like to state here what I believe in this
regard, which is that we should have the right to place anything we want,
in terms of questions, to make any criticisms we want, publicly and openly,
here. I do feel that we could be very limited in the recommendations that
we could make in so far as the Canada council is concerned. In other words,
I personally would like to see the Canada council have that much freedom;
but I also think that we should have the firm knowledge that we can slap—
bang at the Canada council if we wish to.

Mr. PickerRSGILL: Mr. Chairman, I would like, as the only person in this
committee at the present time who was a member of the government which
recommended this legislation to parliament, to say a few words. And may
I say I took a certain amount of personal interest in the legislation and
discussed it a good deal with the Prime Minister of the day, who, as everyone
knows, was its main sponsor. I think I can clear this up, as far as the
intentions of those of us who recommended this were concerned. I think
it was pretty generally recognized by most of our supporters in parliament—
and this legislation was also supported by other parties—that there were
two very important considerations to be kept in mind, since this council was
to be endowed with a very large sum of money, a great deal of which was
to be used to further education in this country. And as Mr. St. Laurent had
a very clear view of the constitution of Canada and of the exclusive provincial
jurisdiction in the field of education, he wanted to have legislation which
would make it abundantly clear that neither directly nor indirectly was the
government or parliament seeking by any means to exercise any jurisdiction
over education.

That was precisely why the Canada Council was designed to be a trust, a
body corporate; and that the only responsibility that the government had
would be to appoint citizens of good character and of good report and of good
qualifications to act as citizens of Canada to administer this fund.

Those were the considerations which were very much in Mr. St. Laurent’s
mind as they were in the minds of some others of us who knew what had
happened in other jurisdictions. We did not want the Canada Council to be
handing out political scholarships, as has been done in some of the provinces
of this country, or to be under any suspicion of that kind.

Mr. PiceoN: On a point of order, the hon. member talks of the provinces.
I do not think it is his responsibility. He has his responsibility in his riding,
but his judgment is not good.

The CHAIRMAN: What is the point of order?

Mr. PrgeoN: The point of order arises out of the provinces granting scholar-
ships in a political way, and I do not agree with that.
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Mr. PicreErRsGILL: I would like to point out that I did not mention any
particular province, but if the shoe fits, the hon. member will know it.

The CHAIRMAN: I am glad to say that this is not a court of law. It would
be very easy to deal with it, if it were. We have to give a certain amount of
leeway to all members.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: I would like to say something about the very serious
point which Mr. Fisher raised. Mr. St. Laurent very largely determined these
things, or provided the ideas to which most of the rest of us just subscribed.

He was very concerned about the fact that $100 million was being taken
out of the treasury of Canada, and he regarded it as a large sum of money
which was being taken completely out of the jurisdiction—the normal jurisdic-
tion of parliament. He felt there should be some way in which the activities
of this body would be scrutinized, so that the public would be assured that
the Canada Council would have regard to the care which would be taken,
and which was taken by the previous government, and which I judge is still
being taken by the present government. I note the fact that my unsuccessful
opponent is now a member of the Canada Council—notwithstanding, every
precaution was taken— '

Mr. Piceon: Do not make political speeches.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: You are the one that brought Mr. Lesage’s name into
this discussion, and you had better not talk about it here. When Mr. Lesage
was here he had to do with the policies of the whole country. I do not think it
will be very long before he has a lot more to do with the policies of his
province; and if the hon. gentleman wishes to make political speeches, I will
make them too.

Mr. PigeoN: He has enough problems in the province of Quebec.

The CHAIRMAN: There are only ten minutes left.

Mr. PickeRsSGILL: I should think that in this committee any hon. member,
however foolish or stupid his suggestion might be, should be allowed to make
it quite freely.

I am quite sure that the Canada Council would take very careful account
of it, and I think it would be a very retrograde step for any political body to
start laying down qualifications for scholarships or for grants to these learned
societies, or even for grants made to artistic societies; because, as I look around
me, I think more competent people could be found for that purpose than those
in this committee.

Mr. McGeE: The question of relationship between this committee and the
council was answered apparently to everybody’s satisfaction last year when I
put a question to Mr. Claxton. I asked him, in effect, what would be the action
taken by the Canada Council if a unanimous opinion about any matter were to
be put to them by this committee. .

He indicated, if I remember correctly, that it would be of more than passing
interest to him. Then I asked him to define what more than passing interest it
would be to him, and I think he said that they would attach no compulsion to it,
but that it would be of somewhat more influence than an editorial which might
appear on a similar subject in one of Canada’s newspapers.

The CrHARMAN: Depending on the paper.

Mr. SmrtH (Simecoe North): There is one question I think which might be
held over. It is on page 52 of the Canada Council’s financial statement, where
there is an item of $23,145 for advisory service fees. My question is: what is
that, who was it paid to, and why?
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Dr. TRUEMAN: In answering your question I may have to be a little long
winded. We have, as you know, this tremendous flood of applications from
individuals for scholarships, which cost us something over $1 million a year.
They also come from organizations representing the arts, the humanities, and
the social sciences.

From the start we made arrangements principally with three other
institutions, namely, the Humanities Research Council of Canada, the Social
Science Research Council of Canada, and the Canada Foundation, each of which
had had many years of experience in giving out scholarships, usually with
money that had been given to them by other foundations.

They had established across Canada many panels or committees of experts
in all these fields. The Canada Foundation had to do largely with matters of
the arts, while the other two organizations were largely in connection with what
their names suggest, that is, the humanities and the social sciences.

So we entered into an arrangement with them whereby we would forward,
as we saw fit, applications to them, and they in turn would have them vetted,
examined, and assessed by panels of experts from across Canada. I was told
that the Canada Foundation at one time had on the list upwards of 150 artists,
musicians, and so on.

The point of this is that they perform that service for us. They make
assessment of these applications, and they are sent back to us, when the
council makes the final decision. But we have agreed to pay them for their
out-of-pocket expenses.

Mr. SMiTH (Simcoe North): They are not hired professionally as advisors?

Dr. TRuEMAN: No. They work on specific applications, and we pay .for their
out-of-pocket expenses such as stenographic help, correspondence, mail, travel
and so on.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: Is Mr. Robbins an official of the Canada Foundation?

Dr. TRUEMAN: No, he is on the board of directors. His full time job is to be
that of executive director of both the Humanities Research Council, and of
the Social Sciences Research Council. Mr. Walter Herbert is the director of
the Canada Foundation.

The question which the hon. member asked about the salaries of Mr.
Robbins and Mr. Herbert does not fall within our purview at all.

Mr. McGeE: I have a question for Dr. Trueman which he might want to
think about between now and the next sitting. Some remarks were attributed
to Dr. Trueman, and various versions and implications of those rgmarks
appeared in the press. They had to do with the question of the advisability of
granting what appeared to me to be a Sabbatical leave type of gl_"ant, whereby
the person receiving it would go, let us say, to Paris, not necessarily to produce
anything in terms of the arts, but simply to absorb the atmosphere, presumably.
That was according to the newspaper reports which I saw, and which 1
presume Dr. Trueman has seen as well.

Would he care to look into those newspaper reports to which I refe_r and
perhaps explain the ideas he had in mind when he made the statement in the
first place?

Dr. TRUEMAN: I could do that right now, but I imagine your time is
about up.

Mr. MorTON: In connection with the endowment fund on page 52 under
the item of expenditures miscellaneous in 1959, it seems to me that it.was
$6,132 in 1958 and only $741 was spent. I wonder what type of expenditure
would be put under miscellaneous?
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Dr. TRuEMAN: I would have to look that up.

The CHAIRMAN: Before we break up, Mr. Fisher raised a point which seems
to me to have quite a bit of merit. Would it be your wish to have a legal sub-
committee look into this question of the relationship between this public
accounts committee and the Canada Council and try to report to you at the
next meeting?

Mr. McGeE: Perhaps we might wait to see how satisfactory a pattern the
replies from Dr. Trueman take first, and he may not be prepared to answer
before that committee would meet.

Mr. F1sueR: I think it would be useful in the light of Mr. Pigeon’s question;
it is something on which I would like to have advice.

Mr. PickeERsSGILL: I think it is a very sensible idea, myself.

The CHAIRMAN: It certainly would not do any harm, and it might do a
great deal of good. Would you leave it with your chairman and vice-chairman
to appoint a small committee?

Is there any objection?

Agreed.
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PROCEEDINGS No. 5—Wednesday, May 4, 1960

On Page 140—Paragraphs 3 and 4 should read:

“Mr. Pickersgill: I would like to say something about the very serious point
which Mr. Fisher raised. Mr. St. Laurent very largely determined these things,
or provided the ideas to which most of the rest of us just subscribed.

He was very concerned about the fact that $100 million was being taken
out of the treasury of Canada, and he regarded it as a large sum of money which
was being taken completely out of the jurisdiction—the normal jurisdiction of
parliament. He felt there should be some way in which the activities of this
body would be scrutinized, so that the public would be assured that the Canada
Council was having regard to the care which would be taken to carry out its
objects economically. Care was taken by the previous government, and I judge
is still being taken by the present government in appointments to the Council.
I note the fact that my unsuccessful opponent is now a member of the Canada
Council—notwithstanding, every precaution taken—"
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

WEDNESDAY, May 11, 1960.
(7)

The Standing Committee on Public Accounts met at 9:30 i
The Chairman, Mr. Alan Macnaughton, presided. et ting &

Members present: Messrs. Beech, Bell (Carleton). Benidi i
Broome, Bruchési, Danforth, Deschatelets, (Fisher, L;ha;glcli\/l[calz?i?:;a]laciss(%;?st)e,
Macdonnell, Macnaughton, McGee, McGrath, McGregor, Morissette Morton,
Pickersgill, Pigeon, Robichaud, Smith (Winnipeg North), Stefaryxson and,
Wratten.—24 X

In attendance: From The Canada Council: Dr. A. W. Trueman Director;
Mr. Eugene Bussiere, Associate Director; Mr. D. H. Fullerton, Trea,surer- Mr’
Peter Dwyer, Supervisor of Arts Programme; and Miss L. Breen, Secre,tary'
From the Auditor General’s office: Mr. A. Maxwell Henderson, Auditor General'.
and Mr. A. B. Stokes, Supervisor of Audit of Canada Council. And also Drt
P. M. Ollivier, Parliamentary Counsel.

A letter received from the Honourable Brooke Claxton was included in
the Committee’s record.

The Vice-Chairman, Mr. Murray Smith, presented the following report of
the special Subcommittee appointed to consider the problem of the Committee’s
powers to elicit information from the officials of Canada Council:

At the May 4 meeting of the Standing Committee on Public Accounts
it was agreed that a subcommittee be appointed by the Chairman and
Vice-Chairman to consider the question of the relationship between the
Committee and The Canada Council and, in particular, the scope of the
Committee’s examination of the Council’s operations. This Subcommittee
was composed of Messrs. Fisher, Benidickson, Robichaud, Morton,
Morissette, Bell (Carleton), and myself. Your Subcommittee engaged
Dr. Ollivier, the Parliametnary Counsel and obtained his opinion on
various aspects of the matter.

Members will recall that Dr. Trueman made reference to two state-
ments of Prime Minister Diefenbaker made in the House of Commons
in reply to questions asked by Mr. Fisher. The statements appear at
page 134 of the proceedings of this Committee and the questions asked
by Mr. Fisher appear at page 135. Dr. Ollivier’s opinion was that these
statements were justified in view of Section 13 of The Canada Council
Act which specifically states that the Council is not an agent of Her
Majesty.

Section 8 of The Canada Council Act sets out the objects and powers
of the Council, and it will be seen that money is disbursed in the form
of scholarships, grants, awards, etc. Section 23 of the Act requires the
Council to “submit to the member of the Queen’s Privy Council for
Canada, designated by the Governor in Council for the purpose, a report
of all proceedings under this Act”—and I emphasize the words all pro-
ceedings under this Act—*“and provisions shall be made for a review

thereof by Parliament.”
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Dr. Ollivier held the opinion that in view of these sections of The
Canada Council Act and because the Council has included in its report
its financial statements, the Committee is entitled to details of expendi-
tures including awards, grants, scholarships, ete., if it so desires.

In amplifying this Dr. Ollivier felt that the following general principles
should apply:

(1) every member of the Committee has the right to ask any question.
Questions, however, must be in order and fall within the terms of
reference of the Committee.

(2) all questions should be answered but a witness is entitled to say
that in his opinion the question should not be answered and state his
reason for declining to answer—for example that he does not feel
that it would be in the public interest to give such information.

(3) the member asking the question may appeal to the Committee and
the Committee has the right to demand full information in spite of
the statement of the witness. The procedure would be for the Com-
mittee to pass a motion to the effect that the information demanded
should be given.

(4) the witness should then produce the information requested.

The Committee thus has the right to closely examine all aspects of the
operations of The Canada Council that are included in its Annual Report. As a
Committee of Parliament it can seek and gain information that is not available
to the Government or any member thereof because of the fact that The Canada
Council is not an agent of Her Majesty.

(Sgd) Murray Smith,
Vice-Chairman.

Dr. Ollivier clarified certain points in the Subcommittee report.
Moved by Mr. Pickersgill, seconded by Mr. Broome,
Resolved,—That the abovementioned report be adopted.
Carried unanimously.

The Committee further considered the Annual Report of The Canada
Council, 1959, the officials of the Council supplying information thereon.

The witness, Dr. Trueman, supplied information requested at a previous
meeting. Supplemental information, respecting questions asked by Mr. Pigeon
on Pages 135-137 of Proceedings No. 5, appears as Appendix “A-4” to this day’s
Proceedings.

The Chairman brought to the attention of the Committee a telegram from
the Quebec Municipal Library Association.

Mr. Pickersgill requested that alterations be made in the Committee’s
proceedings at page 140 of No. 5 Proceedings.

At 11.00 a.m. the Committee adjourned until 9.30 a.m., Wednesday, May
18, 1960.

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.
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EVIDENCE

Wednesday, May 11, 1960.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. We have delayed a while
this.morning until one or two more of our members were here. These members
asked certain questions at the last meeting and I Wwanted to be sure they were
here before we started.

Mr. Brooke Claxton has sent us a reply to the remarks that were made
at the last meeting and with your permission I would like to table it and
have it printed in the record. Is that agreed?

Agreed.

The Canada Council
Ottawa

May 6, 1960.

Alan Macnaughton, Esq., M.P.
Chairman

Public Accounts Committee
Parliament Buijldings

Ottawa, Ontario

Dear Mr. Macnaughton:

Having the highest regard for Parliament, its institutions and the
amenities between members, I am most grateful for the very kind
remarks of yourself and the others and their friendly reception at the .
meeting of the Public Accounts Committee on Wednesday. I shall never
forget the fourteen years of my membership in the House and the
wonderful memories it left with me, as well as the associations I made
there with members of all parties.

Few people who have not enjoyed the common bond of election in
this way can appreciate how much this means, not only in personal
satisfaction but in the promotion of the public service.

With renewed thanks,

Yours sincerely,
(Sgd) Brooke Claxton

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting of this committee you will recall that
it was decided to set up a legal subcommittee, so-called, to look into the rela-
tionship between the Public Accounts Committee and the Canada Council in
general. Acting on your instructions I asked Murray Smith, the vice-chairman
of this committee, if he would set this committee up, examine the question and
bring in a report.

Have you the report, Mr. Smith?

Mr. SmitH (Winnipeg North): Yes, we have, Mr. Chairman.
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May 10, 1960.

At the May 4 meeting of the standing committee on public accounts it
was agreed that a subcommittee be appointed by the chairman and vice-
chairman to consider the question of the relationship between the committee
and the Canada Council and, in particular, the scope of the committee’s
examination of the council’s operations. This subcommittee was composed of
Messrs. Fisher, Benidickson, Robichaud, Morton, Morissette, Bell (Carleton)
and myself. Your subcommittee engaged Dr. Ollivier, the parliamentary counsel,
and obtained his opinion on various aspects of the matter.

Members will recall that Dr. Trueman made reference to two statements
of Prime Minister Diefenbaker made in the House of Common in reply to
questions asked by Mr. Fisher. The statements appear at page 134 of the
proceedings of this committee and the questions asked by Mr. Fisher appear at
page 135. Dr. Ollivier’s opinion was that these statements were justified in
view of section 13 of the Canada Council Act which specifically states that the
council is not an agent of Her Majesty.

Section 8 of the Canada Council Act sets out the objects and powers of
the council and it will be seen that money is disbursed in the form of
scholarships, grants, awards, etc. Section 23 of the act requires the council to
“submit to the member of the Queen’s Privy Council for Canada designated by
the governor in council for the purpose a report of all proceedings under this
act”—and I emphasize the words ‘“all proceedings under this Act”, and later
on in that section it says: “and provisions shall be made for a review thereof
by parliament”.

Dr. Ollivier held the opinion that in view of these sections of the Canada
Council Act and because the council has included in its report its financial
statements, the committee is entitled to details of expenditures including
awards, grants, scholarships, etc., if it so desires.

In amplifying this Dr. Ollivier felt that the following general principles
should apply:

(1) every member of the committee has the right to ask any question.
Questions however must be in order and fall within the terms of
reference of the committee.

(2) all questions should be answered but a witness is entitled to say
that in his opinion the question should not be answered and state his
reason for declining to answer—for example that he does not feel that
it would be in the public interest to give such information.

(3) the member asking the question may appeal to the committee and the
committee has the right to demand full information in spite of the
statement of the witness. The procedure would be for the committee
to pass a motion to the effect that the information demanded should be
given.

(4) the witness should then produce the information requested.

The committee thus has the right to closely examine all aspects of the
operations of the Canada Council that are included in or flowing from its
annual report. As a committtee of parliament it can seek and gain information
that is not available to the government or any member thereof because of
the fact that the Canada Council is not an agent of Her Majesty.

! This report, Mr. Chairman, I believe is unanimous and if any amplification
1s needed Dr. Ollivier is present this morning.

The CrAIRMAN: I was going to ask for approval of the report. I suppose
we had better have discussion before that.

e e e A —
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Mr. PiceoN: I would appreciate very much, before this committee, Dr.
Ollivier giving a decision now, if it is possible, to answer my other questions
I asked at the last meeting.

Dr. P. M. OrLiviEr (Law Clerk): That, of course, is up to the committee.
I think the procedure was clearly explained in that report of the subcommittee
that you are entitled to ask any questions you want to ask within the terms
of reference. Then it is up to the witness to either answer exactly your question
or give the reason why he does not think he should answer that question.
But having done that, you still have the right, or somebody has the right, to
make a motion in the committee that the answer be given in spite of what
has first been said by the witness. It is then up to the committee, really, to
decide whether they want an answer or not. In other words, the committee can
overrule the member asking the question.

Mr. Pigeon: But the rules of the Canada Council permit the member of
parliament to ask a question?

Dr. Orrivier: That is what I think, yes. I think you can ask any questions
that flow from the report, that are ancillary to the report.

Mr. PiceoN: Thank you, sir.

Mr. PickeRsGILL: In order to get the proceedings regularized I would be
very happy to move that the report of the subcommittee be accepted.

Mr. BroomEe: I will second that.

The CHAIRMAN: It has been moved and seconded that the report be
accepted. Those in favour? Contrary?
Agreed to, on division.

The CuHamrMAN: Gentlemen, you have heard this report. At the last
meeting—

Mr. PiceoN: Excuse me, I vote for the report.

The CHAIRMAN: Then it will be unanimous. If there is any doubt I will
call it again. Those in favour? Those contrary?

Agreed unanimously.

The CHAIRMAN: At the last meeting Mr. Morton, Mr. McGee, Mr. Pigeon
and I think Mr. Fisher asked various questions. I suggest we start with Mr.
Morton’s, then Mr. McGee’s, Mr. Pigeon’s and then Mr. Fisher’s. Did you
have certain answers to give?

Dr. A. W. TRuEMAN (Director, Canada Council): Well, Mr. Chairman,
before I begin to give my answers sir, might I point out that I handed in last
day, I think in response to a question from the hon. member, two tables on
administration: one, the head office locations of companies whose shares the
Canada Council owns, as of March 31, 1959. That table was printed in Hansard;
but the second table which we also submitted was not printed. I merely pass
this to you, if it is the desire of the committee to have it printed too. You
now have an extra copy of it here. ' ;

The CHAIRMAN: This is information given to Mr. Pigeon at the last
meeting?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, there were two tables and one table was printed. The
other table was not printed in Hansard.

The CHAIRMAN: Will we print this table, gentlemen?
Agreed.
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Note: The table is as follows:

Heap Orrice LocatioNn oF CoMpANIES OF WHICH BoNDs 0R DEBENTURES
ARE HELD BY THE CANADA CouNciL As AT MarcH 31, 1959

Book Value of Investment

Ontario Quebec Other

$ $ $
BB D) P OWOr BHAPADOI, o st ain st on s i vras dxas sy s 351,000 — —
Algorwaa Central Rajlway . ..ooc o . vl iiiinliaden, 193,000 — —
Anglo-Canadian Pulpand Paper.............................. —_ 350,000 —
Anglo-Canadian Telephone: .. ... ...0....coeiiliionisveeinans — 200, 000 —
B.(%. Co ot g e b IR E R A S O SR e St S — — 476,000
ST R On ICOMMACIEE, . o 220 « i ciin oas o o5s it s s rmmriiin - 234,000 —
e O R R R e S N e el — 200, 000 -
A RO TERICRLEOR DT, o v e i s oty 0 BB N v 55 st ais e 93, 000 — -
o 2 B T B RG-S O S SIS SR R 279,000 — —
T T g B T P e s U L cNeac M S S A — — 191,000
o LA RS S AR S e L A ST S s O — - 479,000
L R TR N e S e S S G N e 643,000 —_ —
LT T T R e KR WP PR M (P trte O S Rt — — 195,000
e AL T A R S LN SR SR SR e e s — — 100,000
Newfoundland Light and Power............cccvivieieneinin — — 100, 000
BB BT TOTED: A, il R 10 S b b s N s 23 o e — — 92,000
iNorthemm Telephomeis sl @b bl Ll s Ml i 100,000 —_ -
Northern Ontario Natural Gas...... ... couseeseiroeneacninns 155,000 = —
20000 Retroletmn ™ o 5ot s e b R 908 D — = 399, 000
OO EIDEITHE, ik s N ok ek v e o S i LS — - 251,000
I O er O DOTBELON. 1 cs. st Yo Dt s itos oo U kA B ek e BV — 217,000 =
Ehiebees NALaXal as.; 5.0 . iy Sh w kit o 2 odnts iw issai s ¥on o7 Higa — 630, 000 —
Quebec Telephone. ... ..... = 368, 000 —
Hudson’s Bay Oil and Gas. = W 197,000
Steinberg Properties......... — 150,000 —
Traders Finance................. FeRLY 249,000 — o
Trans-Canada Pipe Lines............ = — — 695, 000
BIIOR AGCOPHARCE. + <17t 4 v s da tmiers 5 ba Bos s e hove 5 5 100, 000 - —
Westeoast TTaARSIIISSION A, - - - « s 5= swsiss niies v ol s Sobfes sin oo s — e 563,000
Loblaw Groceterias. .................: i S AN Sl R 200, 000 — 25
BEaelillan and Bloedely . < of Lul i atmes b elinsbrims dae s slir — i 100,000
Mid-Western Industrial Gas..........cocoieireieiiiasiienain — = 44,000

BN ORUORY B PIDBTANG S . 3ot 05 o s e o 0 i S 8 o B2 ey 5o — 300,000

2,363,000 2,349,000 4,182,000

Dr. TRUEMAN: Mr. Chairman, one of the hon. members asked the question:
“] wonder what type of expenditure would be put in miscellaneous?” and he
quoted two or three figures. The figures which he had in mind included safe
keeping charges, for the most part to the Montreal Trust company and in
1958 and 1959 some to the Bank of Canada. That was very nearly $3,000 of
the $6,000. Then there were legal and other fees, consultants fees. We had
two or three consultations and we consulted legal opinion. The other is
entertainment expenses, the large part of which that year was for a rather
large dinner of 40 or 50 people in honour of the chairman of the organisation
which is, so to speak, our opposite number in the United Kingdom, the Arts
Council of Great Britain. Sir Kenneth Clark came over here under the auspices
of our organization to give a series of lectures.

Mr. MorToN: Mr. Chairman, when you have a legal fee should that not
be under the heading of advisory service fees?

Dr. TRuEMAN: That was not for that purpose. I think I explained that
at the last meeting. I think the item to which you refer consists largely of
thg costs which we paid to the Humanities Research Council, the Social
Sciences Research Council and the Canada Foundation for processing and
sybmitting our applications to panels and giving us back their recommenda-
tions. Those were out-of-pocket costs of these organizations.
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The second question, sir, with which I wish to deal, was this. An hon.
member asked a question about certain remarks attributed to me in the
press dealing with the advisability of granting what appeared to be a sab-
batical-type-of-leave grant, whereby the person receiving it would go, say,
to Paris, not necessarily to produce anything in terms of the arts but simply
presumably to absorb the atmosphere.

I may say, sir, to begin with that grants of that kind are not made by the
council. Every applicant is required to present a program of study, research
or some other type of activity. These programs, as part of the information
furnished by the applicant, are then assessed, reviewed by a panel of judges
along with other information that the applicant presents, and must be ap-
proved before a grant is made. I do recall, however, talking with a reporter
about the difficulty of handling scholarships for artists, and raising and making
the point to him that there was often a considerable difference between the
programs proposed by scholars and those proposed by artists and writers. The
former, that is to say the scholars, have usually a clear-cut program of study
which involves attendance at an academic institution or a library, where certain
very definite and, so to speak, time-tabled activities are to be followed. But
the artist and the writer, however, very often do not want to attend a school
or follow some prescribed course in somebody’s curriculum. Nevertheless, they
are required to submit, as I have suggested, a program of planned and pur-
poseful activities.

I think the misunderstanding, if there is a misunderstanding, arose from
my having presented to this reporter the point of view of Mr. Henry Moe of
the Guggenheim Foundation in New York, generally regarded, we learn, as
one of the most astute pickers of talent in all the American foundations.

Mr. Moe once pointed out to me—and this was the point I was making
with the reporter—that the most important and maybe the most difficult
thing that any foundation had to do in relation to scholarships was to take as
much care as possible to pick the man of outstanding talent, of demonstrated
promise, of industry and integrity.

You have to ask him a planned program, continued Mr. Moe. But if, he
said, you have picked the right man, if your energies and your ingenuity have
been concentrated on that main task of picking the right man, and he then
departs somewhat from the proposed program, it may well be, pointed out
Mr. Moe, that he is doing the best thing for the development of his art. I
remember his giving me a concrete illustration. He may not, in fact, write the
book he said he wanted to write; he may start on another book instead, or he
may not even start on a book at all, said Mr. Moe. The point ‘is, what did the
experience under the grant do for him, and what effect did '1t have on, say,
the writing of his next book, which may not take place until the next year
or two years from that time. :

This, presumably, is the sort of thing that may happen, and if you have
picked the right man it will probably be all right. If you ha\(e not p1§:ked the
right man it will probably be wrong. So much for the point of view that
Mr. Moe was expressing.

I wish to assure the hon. member that I know of no such ingtance of this
kind of departure from the program among the successful appllc_:ants to the
Canada Council; and the Canada Council will not give a grant simply to lgt
a man, let us put it at its worst, loaf about in some attractive place and, as it
has been called, absorb the atmosphere.

Furthermore, all holders of grants are required to make reports to the
council, I perhaps could break off from my notes here and say that normally
our grants are given in three stages, one about a month or three weeks before
the actual time at which the man wishes to take up the grant or travel, or
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whatever. The second, three or four months later; and before he gets his second
portion of the grant, he must write in to the Canada Council and report on
what he has been doing, and where he is. The same procedure applies before he
gets the final share of the grant. So he is required to make reports to the council
to show, in so far as that is possible, that he is following the program of
activity indicated in the application.

I trust that is an adequate explanation of the rather difficult and sensitive
point which the hon. member raised.

Mr. FisHER: Was this a question that I put?
Dr. TRUEMAN: No, this is Mr. McGee.

Mr. FisHER: The reason I wondered, is that I wanted to carry on in this
area.

Dr. TRuEMAN: Shall I proceed, sir, with the next?
The CHAIRMAN: Did you have a similar point?
Mr. F1sHER: I have quite a number of points.

The CHAIRMAN: On this particular subject?

Mr. FisHeR: Yes. This takes us, it seems to me, into the division of spoils,
as it were, between academic and creative categories.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps, Mr. Fisher, we had better go straight to Mr.
Pigeon. He is anxious and has been waiting. Did you have any reply for
Mr. Pigeon?

Dr. TRUEMAN: I have a reply to questions put by the hon. member. I may
say, Mr. Chairman, that I have the mimeographed reply here and I am sure
there are more than enough to give to you.

I might say, Mr. Chairman, before reading this document, which I should
like to read through, that the questions as they appear in Hansard are not
numbered. They begin at the bottom of page 135, and as the questions first came
to us they seemed to group themselves. The first question: “How many scholar-
ships were awarded last year to students seeking a master’s degree, or what
we call class 1?7, is then followed by “Out of that number how many were
awarded to students of Laval and Montreal universities?”” We have marked
these as one question.

The CHAIRMAN: May I interrupt you here? You referred to Hansard. You
meant the minutes of the proceedings of this committee, did you not?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, I am sorry.

The CHAIRMAN: Also, did you agree to have this reply translated into
French for Mr. Pigeon?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes, we would be glad to do that. In the report of the
committee—I am sorry, I should not have said Hansard—we will refer to
questions by number, and I am just pointing out that those two halves we have
put together and regarded as one question.

I would like also to refer to the fact that in, I think, the third paragraph,
towards the end of it—the paragraph begins, “Questions 1 to 5”—1I have said,
“Copies are attached.” A copy will be attached to the document which I file,
but this again is a somewhat large document. It was put together only quite
recently and we have not had time to duplicate all this. But this can be filed
and printed in the proceedings, if required, or a copy can be made available
to the questioner, if that is the best method.

The CHAIRMAN: This copy is part of your answer?
Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreed, gentlemen, that this be printed as an appendix?
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: Mr. PICKERSGILL: I wonder, Mr. Chairman. It appears we are going to start
printing all over again pages 59 to 63 of a printed document.

Dr. TRUEMAN: No, it is not that.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: It says, “See pages 59-63 of report for 1957-58.” I would
question whether we want to reprint in our proceedings something that is
already in the annual report of a year ago and available to the committee
in that way.

Dr. TRUEMAN: This document to which I refer is not in the annual report.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: I beg your pardon.

The CHAIRMAN: Is it agreed, then, gentlemen, that this extra material be
printed as an appendix?

Agreed.
(See Appendix “A-4).

Dr. TRUEMAN: Now, may I read the document? This is the answer which
has been devised on consultation with the Hon. Brooke Claxton, the chairman
of the Canada Council.

The Canada Council exists to carry out the terms of The Canada
Council Act; those are its terms of reference. The council holds strongly to the
view that its success depends on confidence in its intention and ability to dis-
charge the responsibilities placed upon it by parliament, in accordance with
the terms of the act.

Parliament established the council as a body corporate. As set out in
section 23 of the act, parliament itself limited its function to the consideration
of the annual report of the chairman of the council and of its financial statements
and the Auditor General’s report. To change this would in effect change the
decision of parliament and curtail the independence of the council, which has
been widely recognized as a significant feature. This alteration would change
the concept of the council held by its members and officers, as well as by
educational and other institutions and the public. It might also, it is submitted,
discourage donations of grants by private or corporate donors.

Questions 1 to 5 by Mr. Pigeon. The second annual report of The Canada
Council for the year ending March 31, 1959 is now before parliament and under
consideration by the committee. The information put before parliament in this
report deals with questions 1 to 5 of the questions put forward by Mr. Pigeon
for that year. (See pages 71-97.) Similar information for the year ending
March 31, 1958 was publicly released. Copies are attached. (See also pages 59-63
of report for 1957-58.)

I think I should break off to explain there, again, that in the first annual
report of the council, the report for 1957-58, we did not publish the individual
names of scholars who had received grants. I do not recall whether this was
because we were new and a little confused, and there was some misunderstand-
ing about what should be printed and what should not be printed; but we did
print those in the next year’s report and plan to do so in the future.

However, all those names of scholars were publicly released, as this docu-
ment puts it, in the press, and I have given copies of those names to the
chairman.

Then to continue with the questions:

Question 6. The salaries of the director and associate director, that is myself
and Mr. Eugene Bussiere, which are determined by the governor in council, are
at present $17,000 and $14,000 respectively. The other salaries are not available
in the reports and come within the administration of the council.

Question 7. Neither Mr. Robbins nor Mr. Herbert is in the salaried employ
of the council. The arrangements with the Humanities Research Council of
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Canada and the Social Science Research Council of Canada, of which Mr. Robbins
is secretary-treasurer, and with the Canada Foundation, of which Mr. Herbert
is director, are dealt with in paragraph 15 of the First Annual Report, and
paragraph 17 of the Second Annual Report.

Question 8. The administrative expenses of The Canada Council for the
year ending March 31, 1958 are shown in the First Annual Report as $180,316
(p. 36), and for the year ending March 31, 1959 are shown in the Second Annual
Report as $269,838 (p. 52). These expenses include the costs of safeguarding and
investing two funds of $50,000,000 each; they include the costs of administering
the programme of the Endowment Fund, of the University Capital Grants Fund,
and of the Canadian National Commission for UNESCO. All such costs are
charges against the income of the Endowment Fund.

There is no way of estimating how many scholarships to poor students
might be awarded if “those expenses were avoided” because (a) administrative
expenses are unavoidable, and (b) if an attempt were made to avoid them the
work of the Council would stop.

Question 9. For the years ending March 31, 1958 and March 31, 1959, which
are dealt with in the First and Second Annual Reports, nothing was paid to the
province of Quebec or to the province of Ontario.

Questions 10 and 11. See the answers to questions 1 to 5.

Question 12. To protect both the scholars receiving grants and the council
from payments for hospital and medical expenses, scholars who are going abroad
are requested to take insurance policies providing this protection to them. They
pay the premiums themselves and select the company with whom they wish to
insure. Arrangements have been made by the council for group insurance against
hospital expenses, accidents and death, on behalf of scholars in category 8b
(non-residents), with the Dominion of Canada General Insurance Company. The
scholars themselves pay the premiums, which amount to $23 per year per scholar.

Mr. Pigeon: Dr. Trueman, the question I placed about the total adminis-
trative expenses, which are almost $300,000, is because in some provinces, like
the province of Quebec, we have an office to give scholarships; and I thought,
myself, if the province of Quebec or any other province had this money, the
cost would be reduced for administration. It is only for that point I wanted
to put this question.

Dr. TRueMAN: Well, I have no means of knowing whether that statement
is correct or not; whether the administrative expenses in total of the ten
different provinces would be less, to handle, these scholarships, than these
administrative expenses of the Canada Council.

Mr. PiceoN: I give you an example. In the province of Quebec we have
an office which grants scholarships, and if the province of Quebec had this
money the administrative expenses would be less because we have an admin-
istration in the province of Quebec to grant scholarships.

Mr. PickeERSGILL: Is that because of such low salaries in Quebec?

Mr. Piceon: No, you have administration in the Canada Council to grant
scholarships. We have an office in Quebec which grants scholarships in the
provinece. To give you an example, if the province of Quebec had this money
and administered this money itself, the cost of administration would be less.
I only wanted to bring up this point. '

Dr. TRUEMAN: I think I should remind the questioner that the figure which
he used was for the total administrative costs of the council, which includes
costs not only of the scholarship program, which is only part of the en-
dowment fund, but the cost of administering the university capital grants
administering the UNESCO grant and several others. I presume, however, when
the questioner says if the province of Quebec had this money, he means if




S i s

i,
e -

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 153

each of the provinces had this money. I have no means of proving this, but
I suggest to the committee that if this money had been divided up among each
of the provinces and each province was to administer the cost of the National
Commission for UNESCO, the university capital grants fund, the scholarship
fund, and so on, I would require a little proof myself before I would believe
that the total of such administrative costs would be less than having it handled
by the Canada Council.

Mr. MACDONNELL (Greenwood): Would it not be an altogether hard and
onerous job for each of the provinces to keep watch on the others, to make
sure the amount each was getting was fair? X

Mr. Prceon: I placed this question because I had in my mind a main
reason, a very strong reason. I' can give this reason right now, it is only
to have information about that.

Dr. TRueMAN: Thank you.

The CHAIRMAN: Any other questions, Mr. Pigeon? Are you satisfied with
the answer?

Mr. PigeoN: I can’t say I am satisfied.

The CHAIRMAN: There is the pamphlet here answering in general, and then
you have all the details which will be printed.

Mr. PiceoN: Yes, I notice the answer which is going around. I have given
a straight question but I have not a straight answer. However, that is the
opinion of the Canada Council.

The CHAIRMAN: You have not seen the further information which will
be printed, and there are a great many details given in it.

Mr. PiceoN: I hope so. ’
The CHAIRMAN: Anything else to raise Mr. Fisher, I think you were next.

Mr. FrsHER: If I might preface the questions by saying I wrote to and ‘got
in touch with a number of people in order to get criticisms of the Canada
Council—to get some views. One of the ironies is that three of the people I
approached have since won awards this year from the Canada Council. I
think it is rather a good statement from people who are prepared to present
criticism and who were at the same time applying for help. But the point
I want to make is that while some of these may be at odds, they are criticisms
that have been presented to me by people who have looked at the annual re-
port; I wanted to underline that they are not necessarily views that I hold,
but I thought there were a number of worthwhile criticisms.

In the first place we see grants to academic endeavour and the arts, and
evidence would suggest that it is over two to one in balance towa}rds the aca-
demic category. Is this an indication that there is more talent in that field,
or is it an indication that they are easier to prove, to make an assessment
or what? »

Dr. TRUEMAN: I will be delighted to answer that question; if I understand
the question correctly. When you look through the list of individual awards,
scholarship awards to individuals for various purposes, you find that something
like 75 per cent—the figure is not exact but within that vicinity—of these
individual awards go to academic people; and something like 25 per cent
go to awards in one art profession or another.

This is true, and the reasons are more than one. In the .ﬁrst'place the
constituency which makes the applications is much larger, I think, in the one

case than the other.

Mr. FisHER: Are you sure about that?

Dr. TRUEMAN: This again would be hard to substantiate statistically, per-
haps, but what I am thinking of is that you have a whole university complex
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behind the one side of the thing, the academic people from all over Canada,
and you have a certain body of people definitely moving on for graduate work
in the humanities and the social sciences. As I say, they seem to represent
a very large group of people who have not had too many scholarships, actually,
in the humanities and social sciences.

The other reason is that in working out a balance, a reasonable balance
between the expenditure of our fund for the arts on the one hand and, on
the other hand, for the more academic subjects we find that we have spent
in grants to organizations representing the arts something like $1,100,000 or
$1,200,000 a year, and to the organizations representing the humanities and
social sciences $300,000 or something of that sort. In other words, the whole
thing balances up.

Mr. FisHER: Yes, but then the other side, your whole establishment has
to do with capital grants to universities, which throws the balance much more
the other way.

Dr. TRUEMAN: I think that is a separate operation which would have to
be considered as separate in practice; it is another thing entirely. We are
talking about the endowment fund here, dealing directly with individual people.
It works out that about 55 per cent of the endowment fund—and I would
not like to be put on oath about that figure, it is an approximation—about
55 per cent of the endowment fund goes in support of the arts in one way and
_another, and about 45 per cent goes in support of the humanities and social
sciences.

If this is felt not enough for the arts, I would certainly like to point out
that we have not failed to hear from the students of the humanities and
social sciences that they think the artists are getting a pretty good share of
the endowment fund.

Mr. FisHER: The problem, is it is more difficult to find a creative artist
than it is to find a person with academic talent?

Dr. TRueMmAN: I would think in general it is more difficult to find people
in the arts to whom you would want to give substantial grants than it is to
find promising academic people who are going on to the M.A. and Ph.D.,
degrees, and from whom will be recruited the teaching staffs for our uni-
versities.

Mr. FisHER: This gives you a role as talent pickers that in a sense is
creative. How are you answering that?

Dr. TRUEMAN: You have got that large establishment on the other side,
through the existence of the universities. They are in a position to give you
counsel and advice and you know pretty well what is your answer on the
academic side. x

Mr. FisHER: You have the research foundations on the humanities and
social sciences on the one side, but on the other side what are you doing to
develop your own establishment, to be able to pick the creative people? I
am not trying to make a value judgment now, but I would like to be sure
that the creative people have a real opportunity, because they have not got
the establishment to support them.

Dr. TRueMAN: If you have the research councils for the humanities and
social sciences. Then another organization that serves us a great deal with the
arts is the Canada Foundation; it has assisted us to a great extent. It occurs
to me that we have with us Mr. Peter Dwyer, supervisor of the arts program,
Canada Council, and if the committee would not mind, perhaps he could say
something on this subject.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Fisher, have you seen the report of March 1959?

Mr. F1sHER: Yes.
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The CHAIRMAN: There is a lot of statistical detail.

Mr. PETER DWYER (Supervisor of Arts Program, Canada Council): I think
the answer to Mr. Fisher’s question is that through the Canada Council we
have a network of about 130 or 140 judges, who are distinguished people in all
the different fields of the arts and who work anonymously without any pay
at all. When any application is received in the arts category they are sent
out to the appropriate experts and each one will be judged by at least four,
possibly six or seven judges, who will give a separate report. These are put
together and considered one against the other. The basic idea behind the
system is that artists shall be judged by their peers or their betters.

Mr. FisHER: When Mr. Claxton made the introductory remarks at the
first meeting he made the point that it would be five years before an estimate
could be made of how the council was doing and you are into your fourth year
of operations, is that right?

Dr. TRUEMANY Yes it is.

Mr. FisHER: Has any consideration been given to getting a small com-
mittee to appraise how your program is going? I am thinking possibly of a
small committee of people who in a sense are free from the academic establish-
ment?

Dr. TRUEMAN: The answer to that is yes. The council has given considera-
tion to that. I might say too that I am sure the questioner understands this,
that to date we have held two major conferences and one minor conference
with artists and with representatives of the humanities and social sciences to
discuss the programs and problems. We held two successive Christmas meet-
ings at Kingston and held a short day-and-a-half one here at Ottawa. So we
have kept in touch as we went along with those great bodies of people; that
is to say those representing the arts and those representing the humanities and
social sciences. :

Mr. MACDONELL: Were they both represented at both conferences?

Dr. TRUEMAN: No, we had one for the artists at which we dealt with
the problems dealing with the arts, and at the other conference we had repre-
sentatives of the humanities and the social sciences at which conference we
dealt pretty exclusively—although there is this sort of thing, too—inter-
relation between the groups—with the problems of the humanities and the
social science programs.

There is on the council’s books a minute to the effect that after three or
four years the council would probably do very much the kind of thing the
hon. member has suggested, get together a committee, if you want to call it
that, or a small conference again and say: “Let us look back over the three
or four years of the council’s operations, draw what conclusions we can,.make
what proposals we can and carry on from there”. That is very much in the
council’s mind.

Mr. FisHER: The only suggestion I wanted to make here was th_at when
you do this you would keep in mind what seems to me, and Wha't it Yvould
appear other people have expressed to me namely that the a?ademlc point of
view may have an overweight in the way of requests a_nd 1nﬁ1{ence on 1_;he
views of your board. I would like to think that this committee or investigative
group would have some outstanding people who were detached from that
particular sort of thing.

Dr. TRUEMAN: This is a very interesting observation, too. While I certainly
would not undertake to argue with the questioner, I would like to point out
"again the fact remains that the lion’s share of the income from the endowment
fund is going to the arts and this heavy representation or pressure or wha.t-
ever you like to call it from the academic side has certainly not succeeded in
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reducing that lion’s share. But as a matter of fact I am a little concerned about
the humanities and social sciences,—not the scholarship side, but the grants
given to organizations representing the humanities and social sciences.

Mr. FISHER: Something which might be a relative comparison: we all
know the national research council has been in operation for a long time, and
I believe awards scholarships.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes.

Mr. FisHER: Have you had anybody take a look at them to see how you
are doing? This is another government establishment. I am not saying it is
in rivalry with you: it is not. But it seems to me we should be doing as
much in your particular side as we are doing in the natural sciences. What
are we doing there?

Dr. TRUEMAN: We have kept quite closely in touch with the national
research council for the obvious reason that we were beginners and they
were experienced in this business of giving out fellowships and research grants.
We have discussed with them conditions of scholarships, the terms under which
the holder holds the scholarship, the amounts which they give, what kind of
travel allowance they allow, and the like. We have had their representatives in
our office many times, and we have been there many times, just to avail our-
selves of their great experience and knowledge,—if that is the answer you
want. G

Mr. FisHeEr: It is part of it. Comparatively do they have more funds at
their disposal?

Dr. TRuMAN: Oh yes, I think so, for the giving of scholarships.

Mr. FisHER: What is the comparison?

Dr. TRuEMAN: I do not know if anyone can give me that and I hate to
hazard a guess; but, whereas we spend something like $1 million or $1,150,000
on our scholarship scheme, I think it is nearly $3 million or in the vicinity of
$3 million on their scale.

Mr. FisHErR: But in terms of what parliament has done in setting up the
Canada Council, perhaps parliament has built up a greater share on the natural
sciences side?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes; but of course as I understand it, the national research
council comes to parliament for an appropriation each year, which can there-
fore be adjusted upward.

Mr. FisHER: I thought this point was worth while, because when parliament
wishes we are the ones who can think of increasing grants to the social
sciences and humanities?

Dr. TRvEMAN: I should point out in all fairness that the council can, if it
thought it was right, devote a larger proportion of its income to the scholar-
ship scheme; but if it has an income of something like $2,850,000 a year and it
has all the responsibilities laid upon it listed in the act, and separates out
from that $1,300,000, $1,100,000 or $1,200,000 for the scholarships scheme, that
would seem to be going just as far as it can go. But we could theoretically
say spend $2,000,000 of our income on scholarships.

Mr. FisHER: It is a choice you have within your limitations. I am suggesting
that perhaps in proportion to the national income, it should be more.

Dr. TRueMAN: We would be happy to receive another fund of $50,000,000
at anytime.

The CramrmAN: Is that particular question cleaned up?
Mr. FisHER: No.

Mr. FisHER: I want to ask a couple more questions on the same point.
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What is your liaison in the creative field with writers in the mass media?
I have searched through your scholarship list and it seems to me I do not
recognize many names of people there from the mass media. Are you not
getting applications?

Dr. TRuemaN: The applications have not been numerous. If I remember
correctly you refer to category 9 which is for broadcasters and film makers and
journalists in the creative aspects of this work. This category is for fellowships
with an average value of $3,000 tenable in Canada or abroad for one year,
or for a shorter period and a smaller amount, in accordance with the nature
and duration of the program proposed, for experienced creative and interpreta-
tive workers in journalism, television, radio broadcasting and film making.

Mr. FisHER: No doubt you are aware of the Neiman fellowships at Harvard.
Well, during the period of his fellowship should not a journalist in Harvard
for example draw the pay approximately of what he is actually getting in his
field? Do you feel this could not be given from your fund?

Dr. TRueMAN: I think we feel that this would make such a startling excep-
tion to the general scheme of grants, if we came to parallel the Neiman thing—

Mr. FisHEr: Well, $3,000 a year to a married journalist is not much of an
inducement.

Dr. TRUEMAN: It is not much of an inducement and I think perhaps this
is the least satisfactory of all the categories that we have had. I think quite
frankly this is one that the council could very well sit back and take a look
at and say, either we should do something more or not do it at all, or what-
ever. I would agree this is a point to look at. '

Mr. FisHER: Have you ever thought, in so far as journalists are concerned,
of tying it down the way Neimans are tied down to the university, and tying the
work within the university, and so giving the scope there?

Dr. TRUEMAN: We have not, I think, given consideration to that. No. I
do not know if it is possible for me to question the questioner, but to clarify
my own mind, is the questioner suggesting that he thinks this would be a good
thing to do?

Mr. FisHer: I certainly think that our journalists, broadcasters and film
makers should be getting a bit better deal, because it seems to me this is a
most popular and in some cases the most creative of all our groups at the
present time. I think there should be some encouragement there, and I cannot
get enthusiastic about this when I look at your record.

Dr. TRUEMAN: We thought of it as a sort of parallel to category 2.
Category 2 picks up the young man who has accomplished I_lis MA degree
work and then wishes to go on towards a Ph.D. We have given h1¥n -$2,000
as a basic amount, plus some travel if he wants to hold his scholarslfu'p in the
United States or somewhere else. So he would come out usually with $2,000
plus travel which might come out to $2,500 or $2,600. We thought here of
the younger beginner in the journalist profession, and that perha'ps 1jc would
cost him no more than it costs an academic to live. But I do not thm.k it works
very well, and I do not think we have had many interested applicants.

Mr. FIsHER: So this is something you would like to review?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Definitely something we should review.

Mr. PICKERSGILL: On that very point, I would hope that in. any review
some account would be taken of the fact that well over $E?0. million a year
is now being spent by the taxpayers in providing opportumtles to peop;e of
this sort through the Canadian Broadcasting Corporation and a very consider-
able sum every year through the national film board.

23054-0—2
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Mr. FisHEr: That point just expresses the whole scholarship idea, the
encouragement. It is just giving the people who work at the C.B.C., the
national film board and our people a chance to be free of the obligation for a
year.

Dr. TRUEMAN: One consideration, sir, which I might bring up here is
that it is quite a different matter dealing with an application, I think, from
the C.B.C. and the National Film Board on the one hand, and from an
independent journalist on the other. Here, as one hon. member has pointed
out, you have two organizations which are in receipt of considerable sums
from the federal government; and there can be an argument that if young
and creative people in the C.B.C. and the national film board need to have
a year off, that responsibility should be the C.B.C.’s.

Mr. FisHER: Well, you could make the same argument, sir, with univer-
sities, with some of these senior people who have received awards for work
for a year. This might be the universities’ responsibility.

Dr. TRUEMAN: Well, of course, the universities do accept that respon-
sibility up to a high level; Many of the people to whom we offer a scholarship—
which I know is not adequate to support a man, his wife and three children
in London for an academic year—receive an amount from their university,
as part of their salary. They do accept this principle to a considerable extent,
in varying degrees.

The CHAIRMAN: I have a list of members who want to ask questions,
Mr. Broome, Mr. Beech, Mr. McGee and Mr. Macdonnell.

Mr. BRoOME: Dr. Trueman, in regard to grants to organizations, I think
I mentioned at the conclusion of the last meeting that I was rather interested
in whether the ‘Theatre under the Stars’ in Vancouver had approached the
Canada Council. This endeavor I think you know a lot about. It has been a
proving ground for some very promising artists. Unfortunately we do seem
to get the odd bit of rain out there, which affects the condition of the ‘Theatre
under the Stars’, and makes for some very poor years. This is an organization
that is making a tremendous contribution on the west coast. I was wondering
whether the Canada Council have been considering the plight of the ‘Theatre
under .the Stars’, and have you contemplated any action?

Dr. TRUEMAN: All I can say is that if this organization makes an appli-
cattion to the Canada Council it will be given very serious consideration.

Mr. BrooME: That is the point; have they made an application, or if
vou do not know could you check?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Well, I know. Mind you, this a question which embarrasses
me a little bit. I am not quite sure here on my directions from my bosses. We
feel in general, sir, that applications from individuals and organizations are,
as it were, private, between them and ourselves. The Prime Minister, as we
noted the other day in the House of Commons, said that public discussion
on the reason why an organization was turned down would only cause difficulty
to the organization.

Mr. BRooME: I am not pressing the question at all.

Dr. TRUEMAN: I am only beating about the bush to see whether I should
say “Yes, we have had an application from such an organization”, or “No,
we have not had an application”. I think I will be brave and say ‘“No, we
have not had an application” but I do not like saying it.

Mr. BrRoomE: Would that depend on the initiative of the board of directors
of the ‘Theatre under the Stars’? .

Mr. BEEcH: Perhaps I am going to stick my neck out, too. I was wondering

if the Canada Council had given some consideration to Olympic training for
the development of our athletes?
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Dr. TRUEMAN: I would not say our council have given consideration, and
if I may go on I might say that I would think the council would not give
consideration to it, on the ground that taking the act and the meaning of it in
relation to arts and humanities and social sciences, I would expect if we
gave a grant for something like that it would be putting a very different
meaning on the word “creative”.

Mr. FisHER: I think you realize that sport is always put in with the arts
in any breakdown of interests. Surely that in itself would give you a kind
of a criterion.

Mr. PrckersGILL: I suggest it would lead to a breakdown of the council
very fast.

Dr. TRuEMAN: I would think we would take refuge, if that is the proper
word, in what could be regarded as the intent of the act, and I for one would
refuse to believe that the framers of this act and the developers of the Canada
Council would think that we should become supporters of athletes.

Mr. FisHER: I am not trying to suggest by my question that you should,
but if you look at Elliot’s Notes in Defence of Culture, he starts with sports
and leads right through. y

Dr. TRUEMAN: But you are bringing in the word “culture”. T. S. Eliot
deals with culture in a very broad way. If we are going to bring in everything
Mr. T. S. Eliot means, we are going to get the sum total of the different
institutions and mores in the whole society making up the western or European
culture. I would not buy that.

Mr. A. MaxwEgLL HENDERSON (Auditor General of Canada): Section 2 of

the act itself gives the interpretation.

Dr. TRueMAN: Of the arts, yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. McGee was next.

Mr. McGeg: Mr. Chairman, I have a proposal to put forward and I am
putting it not only to Dr. Trueman but to the rest of the membgrs of the
committee, having in mind Mr. Claxton’s definition last year that if in their
wisdom the members of the committee were unanimqus in the support of a
certain proposition, this might be of more than passing interest to the members
of the council. One could carry that to a wild realm of fantasy and conclude
that members well might agree in a particular instance.

I have had requests from a cultural group whq have achieved a high
degree of proficiency in their particular pursuit. I might say at once I have
not witnessed their performance myself, but I have heard very much fror-n
very large groups to the effect that everything thgt has beep.sald about this
group is not exaggerated in the least. They are in the position where they
are to attend an international festival competition on Canada’s behalf apd
require certain funds or subsidization towards their travels to go through with

i ional competition. :

o 'Il‘%t:eil;)ztéiﬁc organri)zation is the East York Chapter of tpe .Soci'ety for j:he
Preservation and Encouragement of Barber Shop Quartet Slnglqg in Amer{ca,
This is not a barber shop quartet, but a barber shop choir, whl‘ch is, I think
will be recognized, something quite different frc?m a quartet, in terms that
it poses a very much more serious prob}em in transportation and pther
problems. This group is one of thg top five in the world, as far as proficiency
a mpetition is concerned.

: fo';‘r}?ealr:glyri'eceived this year from the chairmaq, Mr. Brooke Claxtpn, was
to the effect—well, the operative part of the letter is that as you can imagine
applications for assistance exceed the funds available, and so far tl}e c_ounc11
have not found it possible to extend its suppox:t as a council to this kind of
activity. My contention is that this group qualifies in every respect as much

23054-0—23
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as the other choral groups. I was not able to find out whether any of them, or
particularly the men’s musical club of Winnipeg, sing the very type of song
that this group do in their competition, or if the types of songs of the choir
and choral groups listed on page 25 of the annual report move into this area.
But my point is that in this particular case you have a type of unique, and
possibly the only unique North American cultural development in recent years.
I am wondering what the council’s reasons were for not considering this type
of choir as appropriate to receive a grant. If the members of the committee
would, depending on their views on this thing, support the proposition that
this grant be made, what would the attitude of the council be?

Dr. TRUEMAN: In reply, Mr. Chairman, to the hon. member’s question, I
would say first of all that as far as the application of any specific individual
organization is concerned, I would not like to give the precise reasons why
that organization itself, as an organization, is turned down.

Mr. McGEeE: Perhaps that was an unfair question.

Dr. TRUEMAN: And the question is difficult. But I suggest, as a partial
answer to the hon. member’s question, that Mr. Dwyer might outline briefly
what the policy is that the council has followed with respect to choral musie,
which would give you part of your answer if not all of it.

Mr. McGeE: May I say, that on page 25 in the annual report it is stated
that the council decided to help those choirs which are able to reach large
audiences with their concerts. In terms of that qualification, this group, I
should say, has reached possibly ten times the number of persons, and created
interest and so on, than all these other choir groups listed combined.

Dr. TRUEMAN: That ties in, however, with other conditions. The same
thing could be said about jazz bands and rodeos and everything else.

Mr. McGeE: This is an important point I would like to take up a little
further. What about individual jazz groups?

Dr. TRueMmAN: Shall we have the choral policy first?
Mr. McGEeE: Yes.

Mr. DwygERr: The reason why certain limitations have been set by the
council on assistance to choral groups is that money is so desperately short
that it is very difficult to help amateur groups unless they are banded together
in a very large national organization or region. One good example would be
the amateur theatre, which we are not able to help by giving grants direct
to individual amateur theatres. So that we give grants in that field direct to
the dominion drama festival, which gives national service to that body.

In the case of choral music no doubt this group of barber shop quartet
amateurs has reached a very large audience. The other limitation that has
had to be imposed upon choral organizations, because they are primarily
amateur, is that they shall use an orchestra of at least twelve or fifteen players
for their concerts. This helps in some degree the orchestral musicians. It is
also required that they shall perform music which has not previously been
performed by the choir, in order to have new works brought forward and not
a constant repetition, perhaps, of the Messiah at Christmas time. This goes on
throughout the country.

Mr. McGee: May I ask how you reconcile that last remark with the
Montreal Bach choir, which just sings Bach,—and I don’t think he has written
any more music lately.

Mr. DwyeRr: The Montreal choir specializes in Bach, but it sings a lot of
other music too, modern music, music by Canadian composers, and so on.
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Mr. McGeg: As I said, I was making my pitch not only to the council
but to the other members of the committee. It is perhaps an unusual procedure.
Is it possible to get some indication from the members of the committee whether
they are inclined to give some support to this proposition?

Mr. FisHer: Could I ask Mr. McGee a question? Might we generalize
from your remarks that you feel that popular culture is not getting enough
recognition or enough opportunity through the Canada Council?

Mr. McGeEe: I am not prepared to generalize to that extent. As I say, I have
some doubt in my mind considering individual jazz groups that certainly are
creating new works and are certainly well within the orbit of my particular
definition of culture. I do not want to get into a side issue concerning that.
The witness has, said this is a discussion for the purpose of nurturing a higher
development of a particular form of culture, rather than all these particular
components across the country. Here is a group which has demonstrated its
ability to rise to the top of the field and, as I say, represents one of the five
most prominent groups on the continent. I do not think there is any inconsist-
ency in citing high development of this particular form of culture along with
that taken by other groups, such as the National Ballet, and so on.

Mr. PIcKERSGILL: I would like to raise, in as uncontroversial a way as I
can, the suggestion that we are the public accounts committee of the parliament
of Canada. We are not the Canada Council. It seems to me the task entrusted
to us by parliament is to examine this annual report and to examine the
accounts of the Canada Council,—not to make qualitative judgments on matters
of art or of scholarships. If parliament had thought that a parliamentary
committee could do the work of the Canada Council, parliament -would have
entrusted that work to a parliamentary committee; but in fact it did entrust
the work to the Canada Council.

Mr. McGEeEe: If I may speak to that point of order, this was precisely the
point I had in mind when I raised this whole question with Mr. Claxton last
year. Unless I am very much mistaken in his reply he made remarks along
this line to indicate that the council would be delighted, in fact, to hear the
points of view of the committee. It was then, when I tried to determine what
the effect of that collective information would be, that I found myself in this
position. Ordinarily I can see no great difference between this application and
the other choral groups here, in terms of what I understand to be the function
of the council. Following Mr. Claxton’s suggestion, and what might be construed
as the reason for seeking an expression of opinion from the committee or
attempting to have such an expression made, I would say, fox: instance that this
particular case is not in my constituency. It is not something that has come
to me as a personal interest of mine in my own riding. I have.not, as I said,
heard this group, but I had representations from the group and 11§ted a number
of organizations that have been willing to support the presentation I have put
forward.

The CHAIRMAN: It seems to me you have done a very good job of presenting
your viewpoint. By sheer coincidence I have just receiv‘ed a telegram. 1t runs
on the point that Mr. Pickersgill has mentioned here. I will say, w1_thqut readmg
the whole thing, it is from the Quebec Municipal Library Association, and it
says:

% Request you kindly authorize the council—
Presumably the Canada Council.

—the amount fifteen thousand dollars financial help to operate secretary

of the association whose duty is to foster the production of the public

libraries.
And so on.
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With your permission I would like to turn this over to Dr. Trueman. While
it is addressed to the Commons committees on art council, obviously it is for
the Canada Council.

Mr. PickERSGILL: I am wondering about that. That is inviting people to
send all sorts of petitions to members of parliament who happen to be members
of the committee, to possibly put pressure on the Canada Council. I think it
would be far better to write back and tell these people that if they want
something from the Canada Council they should apply, themselves, and not use
this committee as a vehicle for pressure on this organization or that organiza-
tion. That is precisely why I raised my point of order, because it does seem
to me that, notwithstanding what anybody may have said to this committee,
what any witness might have said, our terms of reference are laid down by
parliament and we should stick to those terms of reference.

Mr. McGeE: On that point I would submit, if we follow the suggestion of
Mr. Pickersgill to its logical conclusion, we should all sit here like a bunch of
dummies and say, “Carried” and walk out. According to Mr. Pickersgill’s
definition, whatever Mr. Fisher has put forward here this morning is of no
value, and beyond the terms of reference.

Mr. BENIDICKSON: Nobody agrees with you on that expression.

The CHAIRMAN: All I was trying to do was simply recording the receipt
of this telegram, which in fact does not concern us. If they want any grant the
request should be made by application to the Canada Council. That is what I
was trying to do.

Mr. MAcpoNNELL: I fully agree with Mr. Pickersgill. On the other hand,
it seemed to me Mr. Fisher has been most helpful in the points he has raised
this morning. It seems to me the points he has raised as to the distribution of
the university grants for the humanities, and so on, are tremendously important
things.

I go back to my previous question. You had these conferences in Kingston,
where groups met separately. My apology if it is naive, but I cannot help
wondering whether it would not be better to get both groups together, so that
it would not be then a mutual congratulation society on what they have been
doing. I wondered if it could not be possible in that way for those responsible
for making the final decision to have a means to compare the two kinds of
people, because it is very difficult to know what is best for the benefit of
Canada—barber shop music or the Greek classics. That is a very difficult
decision; but I wonder if it might be a help for those making those difficult
decisons if they might see those two groups together.

Dr. TRUEMAN: I understand the suggestion to be that if we have another
conference we should have the artists and the representatives of the humanities
and social sciences together at the one time.

Mr. MACDONNELL: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Fisher was next on the list, unless there is
someone else. !

Mr. FisgER: Does Mr. McGee wish to go further?

The CuAtRMAN: I think he has made his point, and we all understand it.

Mr. FisHER: You know the Tamarack Review?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Yes:

Mr. FisHER: Can you explain to me the grant that you gave them for this
edition, I have just finished reading, on the West Indies?

Dr. TRUEMAN: It was not given precisely for that. It was the usual grant
to help them in the support of the magazine, and I think I am correct in saying
tha}: one of the things they proposed to do was to use some of that money for
assistance in bringing out a special edition of that kind.
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Mr. DwWYER: It was a special grant of $3,000 for a year of publication.

Mr. FisHER: The edition before the West Indies edition had a number of
very interesting articles that expressed very strong opinions on a variety of
topics. Now, I would certainly judge, possibly by the last edition and the previous
one, that this was a journal of opinion. I would be willing to argue this a long
way. I am convinced that in those two issues and previous issues of the
Tamarack Review that they were journals of oipnion. I have here a copy of
the Canada Council’s policy on aid to periodicals, and I would like an explana-
tion of your policy that would eliminate this from being a journal of opinion.

Dr. TRUEMAN: This is, I am afraid, a question of semantics—what does the
phrase “a journal of opinion” mean? As it is used by the council in that state-
ment it was taken in the common and popular sense of meaning a publication
whose editorial policy or selection of material was aimed in one direction,
either to support a certain political issue or to support a certain economic point
of view, or to support a labour point of view—something like that. The idea
was that it was the organ of a channelled, determined bias, if you like—I do
not mean that in the bad sense—based on opinion. This was the general notion.
All journals, as I think you are suggesting, that are worth their salt are going
to publish a great many opinions; but as far as the Tamarack Review is con-
cerned, I would happily suppose that the opinions in one issue might very
well cancel out the opinions in another, and that does not throw the journal
into the class, journal of opinion, in the sense in which I employed it.

Mr. F1sHER: Whom do you have to advise you; what group do you have
to advise you on this question of whether a journal should properly receive
support? The reason I ask that is that your policy would eliminate:

(a) university quarterlies; 4
(b) journals published by a faculty or department of one university;
(c) bulletins or “house organs” of societies;

(d) journals of opinion; i

(e) magazines of specialists such as philatelists, numismatics, et al.

Now, what have we got left?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Academic journals published by associations of scholars.
The policy, I should say, that eliminates the university quarterly like the
Toronto university quarterly, the Queen’s quarterly, the new British Columbia
quarterly review, is not aimed at suggesting that these are not worth support,
but—

Mr. Fisuer: No, but I want to know what you have got left, after you
are through with these five?

Dr. TRUEMAN: You have got journals published by associations of scholars,
if we are dealing with the academic side. You hear of historians publishing a
Canadian historical review and they may call it the Canadian Historif:al Journal.
That is not published by a university or a faculty of a \}niversﬁ;y, but an
organization of scholars generally having national membersh1p: They also have
no money at their disposal except possibly $5 a year membership fee.

Mr. McGee: I might ask Mr. Fisher if he thinks the Canadian Forum

should receive a grant?

Mr. FisHER: This may be incidental to the point. What I am coming to is
the number of applications you'have had from journals that have been turned
down because they were journals of opinion, because .I war}t to say 'the
Tamarack Review have support. It, to me, is a very stimulating magazine;
but I can think of several others which to me are in the same category, publish-
ing short stories, publishing poetry for critical interpretation; and yet I have

not heard of their receiving anything.
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Dr. TRUEMAN:. We have given some grants. As a matter of fact we have
not had a tremendous list of applications for grants of this kind, and we have
tried to avoid—this seemed to have the support of everybody on both sides
of the fence—giving support to what are called the little magazines. These are
the ephemeral journals and magazines. They are put together by a group of
enthusiastic people in one corner acting with great faith and high hopes. They
get out three or four issues a year for two years, and then they can only get
out two issues, and then one issue, and it finally folds up. This is what it
ought to do, according to our advisers.—By all means let these people get rid
of their enthusiasm this way. It can’t last, and it won’t last and it should not
last. We have tried to avoid any general giving of grants to ephemeral
publications of this kind which by their nature must be ephemeral.

Mr. FisHER: Nearly all journals, which are hopelessly esoteric will tend to
express opinions, possibly political opinions, that you do not want to support.

Dr. TRUEMAN: The board’s editorial policy and the selection of material,
in the journal of opinion, seems to be made for the purpose of propagandizing
a certain body of uniform opinion. This could be an opinion of a political
party, it could be the opinion—I am just pulling illustrations out of the air—
of the labour movement, or it could be the opinion of a religious group. As we
have said, we are not subsidizing publication of a magazine in which there
seems to be a propagation of one line of opinion. That ought to be supported
by people who hold that opinion and want to express it.

Mr. FisHER: That brings up a question that was bound up in a question
Mr. McGee brought up. When you have an application from a particular
journal where do you turn to have advice on what it is?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Well, we read it ourselves, to begin with, and we certainly
ask the opinions of academic people. We might even pass this along to an
organization like the humanities research council or the social sciences research
organization or the Canada Foundation and say, “What are your views about
this?” We try to find outside opinion.

Mr. FisHER: Since you have got into this policy of aid to periodicals, have
you ever turned down a request from a periodical that is approved by one of
those bodies?

Dr. TRUEMAN: Have we ever turned down—

Mr. PicKERSGILL: Mr. Chairman, this seems to me a rather big question
at 11 o’clock.

The CHAIRMAN: I was just going to ask Mr. Fisher, have you many
questions?

Mr. FisHER: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: How long do you assume it may take? I am thinking of the
next meeting, whether we should still continue Canada Council or not?

Mr. FisHER: I would say half an hour.

Mr. PickeRsGILL: I would like to speak to a question of privilege for a
second, sir, to ask for a correction to be made. At page 140 of the record
there are two sentences which seem to have got telescoped into one, and do

not make any sense at all as they stand. The sentence starts at line 12 and
should read this way:

He felt there should be some way in which the activities of this
body would be scrutinized, so that the public could be assured that the
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Canada Council was having regard to the care which should be taken
to carry out its suggestions.”
Then the next line should start with a capital “C”.
! Care was taken by the previous government, and I judge is still
being taken by the present government, on appointments to the council.
And then it goes on, “I note . . . ”.
The CHAIRMAN: Is that agreed, gentlemen?
Agreed.

The CHAIRMAN: Next meeting May 18, Canada Council.
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APPENDIX "A-4"

The following information was tabled by Dr. Trueman in reply to questions
asked by Mr. Pigeon, M.P., on May 4, as printed on pages 135-137 of the

Committees Proceedings No. 5.

AWARDS OF SCHOLARSHIPS, FELLOWSHIPS AND OTHER GRANTS TO
INDIVIDUALS TO BE USED IN 1958-59

CATEGORY 1—PRE-MASTER’S DEGREE
SCHOLARSHIPS

Awards for use in 1958-59

NAME

ABBEY, David Samuel
ABRAMS, Mable Helen (Mrs.)
ASSELIN, Suzanne
AUCHINACHIE, Gerald
BELANGER, Pierre Wenceslas
BERNHARDSON, Clemens S.
BISHOP, Peter Victor
BONYUN, David Austin
BOUDREAU, Thomas J.
*BREGMAN, Albert S.

*BRUCHMANN, Monika Martha

CALDER, Eileen R.
CARRIERE, Marie Rose
CAUZX, Réal
CLOUTIER, Normand
*COUSENS, James Philip
CUDDIHY, Anne
DARBIS, Doreen
DUPASQUIER, Maurice
DUPONT, Jacques
*EICHNER, Joan M. (Mrs.)
ELLMAN, Sheila
EMBREE, Bernard L. M.
FONTAINE, Fernand
FREDDI, Sylvia E.
HEPPNER, Christopher
GENNO, Charles Norman
*GITTINS, John Ramsay
GLENDINNING, Robert J.
GOSSELIN, Guy
HEROUX, Valbert Rev. Pere
HILL, Douglas A.
HOEFERT-WEWERIES, S. P.
HOFFMAN, John David
JACKSON, Eric
JOHNSON, Rodrique

* Award declined.

ADDRESS

835 Roselawn Ave., Apt. 305, Toronto, Ont.
6992 Angus Drive, Vancouver, B.C.
446-61st Avenue, L’Abord a Plouffe, Que.
R.R. 2, Gibbins Road, Duncan, B.C.
Lotbiniere, Cté Lotbiniere, Que.

c/o Mrs. S. Bernhardson, Camrose, Alta.
3843 W. 4th Avenue, Vancouver 8, B.C.
4395 Grand Boulevard, Montreal, P.Q.
830-3rd Avenue, Quebec 3, P.Q.

42 Roseneath Gardens, Toronto, Ont.

232 Mountain Park Avenue, Hamilton, Ont.
Spruce Lake, Sask.

3110 Maplewood, Apt. 18, Montreal, P.Q.
325 St. Vallier E., Quebec, P.Q.

East Broughton, C.P. 103, Co. Beauce, Que.
287 Frontenac Street, Kingston, Ont.

315 Taschereau St., E., Rouyn, P.Q.

54 Vaughan Road, Toronto, Ont.

Notre Dame de Lourdes, Man.

1033 rue Courcelette, Sherbrooke, P.Q.

85 Wellington Street, Kingston, Ont.

362 Brunswick Street, Fredericton, N.B.
Summerland, B.C.

292 St. Andrew, Ottawa, Ont.

259 Metcalfe Ave., Westmount, Montreal, P.Q.
135 Clandeboye Avenue, Westmount, Que.
1302 Woodbine Ave., Toronto, Ont.

1863 Gonzales Avenue, Victoria, B.C.

1235 Troy Ave., Winnipeg 4, Man.
Seminaire de Valleyfield, Valleyfield, Que.
Seminaire Saint Antoine, Trois Rivieres, Que.
Apt. 909, 206 St. George St., Toronto 5,

106 Lawlor Avenue, Toronto, Ont.

12863 King Street, E., Hamilton, Ont.

131 Lowther Avenue, Toronto, Ont.

4389 rue Fabre, Montreal, Que.
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NAME
JONCAS, Pierre
KALEFF, Joseph
KAMPFF, Gisela
*KEFFER, Lowell William
KERR, Donald C.
KLEINER, John Walter
KOERBEL, Kurt
KOPETSKY, Elma Emily

KOSOWSKI, Irene
MARTTILA, Walter R.
MOWAT, Vaila S. (Miss)
*McLEAN, Sheila B.
MEUNIER, G. (Award Can.)
NEMIROFF, Stanley Allan
NOBLE, PAUL C.

O’NEIL M. Pierre
*OSMERS, Helga
OUELLET, Ferdinand
OUELLET, Lionel

OWENS, Jane
PALMASON, Diane
PAQUETTE, Jean Guy
PEDERSEN, Paul
*PERRON, Madeleine
PICHETTE, Claude
*RICHARDSON, Robert L.
RIPLEY, John D.
*ROBERTS, John Clement
SMITH, Stuart Allen
ROSE DU CARMEL, Soeur
*SWAYZE, Nansi E.
TIGER, Lionel

TISDALL, Douglas
TRUDEL, Nicole

*TUCK, Donald Bruce

VUCKOVIC, Milorad
*WHEELER, Frances Mina

WHITESIDE, Mary E.
WITHFORD, William J. R.
WIEDEN, Fritz

WILLIAMSON, E. L. R.

ADDRESS

647 rue Donovan, Montreal 8, Que.

7745 Sherbrooke, Montreal, Que.

Ste. 6, 10924—87th Ave. Edmonton, Alta.

391 Timothy Street, Newmarket, Ont.

220-9th Street, Saskatoon, Sask.

Saskatoon, Sask.

2376 Melrose, Apt. 15, Montreal, Que.

c¢/o Mrs. R. Stark, 54 Aragon Ave. R.R.2
Agincourt, Ont.

550 Palmerston Blvd., Toronto, Ont.

5 Marttila Drive, Sudbury, Ont.

2 Studyley Avenue, Halifax, N.S.

359 Oak Street, Winnipeg, Man.

7687 Edouard, Ville Lasalle, Que.

4268 Madison Avenue, Montreal, Que.

4441 Oxford Avenue, Montreal, Que.

3 des Ursulines, Que.

P.O. Box 883, 'Quesnel, B.C.

St. Philippe de Neri, Kamouraska, Que.

9 des Remparts, Quebec.

757 Dorchester Avenue, Winnipeg 9, Man.

1985 Hanover Road, Montreal 16, Que.

4294 rue de Mentana, Montreal 34, Que.

Box 111, Camrose, Alta.

1253 Ave. Luxembourg, Quebec 6.

40 Brooks Sud, Apt. 2, Sherbrooke, Que.

251 William Street, Kingston, Ont.

Londonberry, Col. Co. N.S.

56c Mansfield Street, Glace Bay, N.S.

66 Barton Street, Ottawa, Ont.

Maison Provinciale, Bienville, Levis, Que.

319 Glencairn Avenue, Toronto, Ont.

5625 Park Avenue, No. 4, Montreal, Que.

14 Whitney Avenue, Toronto, Ont.

753 Chemin Ste. Catherine, Outremont, Que.

c¢/o Mr. and Mrs. R.V. Tuck, 554 King Street,
Woodstock, Ont.

224 Watson Ave., Riverside, Windsor, Ont.

95 Wildwood Park, Fort Garry, Winnipeg,
Man. y

15 Lapthorne Ave., Charlottetown, P.E.L

109 Invernay Avenue, Downsview, Ont.

Christ the King College, Waterloo Street,
London, Ont.

P.O. Box 1282, Ottawa, Ont.

CATEGORY 2—PRE-DOCTOR’S DEGREE FELLOWSHIPS
Awards for use in 1958-59

NAME
ABBOTT, Eric
ADAM, Ian William
ALLARD, Jean Louis

* Award Declined.

ADDRESS

259 Elizabeth Avenue, St. John’s, Nfld.
Box 40, Ponoka Alberta.
170 Glenora, Ottawa, Ontario.
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NAME

*APPELBE, Jane Lund
BANKS, Robert K.
BERTRAND, Robert
BESSETTE, Emile
BLOSTEIN, David
BOLGER, Rev. Francis W. P.
BOWEN, Rev. Desmond G.
BRAULT, Jacques

BRINE, Margaret Ann
BRUCKMANN, John
BURSILL-HALL, Geoffrey

CAIRNS, Hugh Alan
CALDER, Loren David
CHOLETTE, Gaston
CLARKSON, G. Austin E.
*CRISPO, John G.
CRUNICAN, Rev. P. E.
DAGENAIS, Marcel Gilles
DALLAIRE, Raymonde
DANIELS, Stanley

DE CHANTAL, Rene
DESGAGNE, Andre
DREYER, Frederick August
EARL, John F.

EVANS, Rev. Donald P.
FARIS, Kenneth H.

FERGUSON, John Duncan A.

GARON, Pere Yves
GILES, Frederick J.
GODIN, Father Guy
GRAHAM, John F.
GRANTER, Harry S.
GRASHAM, W. E.
GRUBERT, Harry
GWYN, Julian
HARPER, Robert J. D.
HARRIS, Leslie
HEWSON, John
HICKS, John R.
HIRTLE, Walter Heal
HOEY, Father Thomas F.
HUGHES, Kenneth R.
HULCOOP, John F.
*KENNE, Lorne Milford
~ KERPNECK, Harvey 1.
*KING, Ralph F. B.
KLEMPA, William J.
KRUGER, Arthur Martin
TRYRITZ, Heinz G
LACHS, John
LA PIERRE, Laurier L.
LAPOINTE,